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September 2011

TO: Senator Brian D. Langley, Senate Chair
Representative David E. Richardson, House Chair
Committee on Education and Cultural Affairs

FROM: Robert O. Lenna, Executive Director
RE: Governmental Evaluation Act review

Enclosed please find reports, audits, and other material in response to the Committee’s
request for information and a self-evaluation from the Maine Health and Higher Educational
Facilities Authority for the Committee’s review of the Authority pursuant to the Governmental
Evaluation Act. The material in this memo is directed toward providing information concerning
the items in the program evaluation report or to supplement the information in the enclosed
documents that have been submitted as part of the program evaluation report. If there is further
information that the Authority can provide the Committee or questions to which we might
respond please let me know. The Authority is very happy to have the opportunity to discuss with
the Legislature what it believes to be one of the most effective, if not the most effective, program
for providing financing for capital projects to non-profit education and health care providers in
the country.

1. Enabling Legislation: Enclosed are twenty copies of the Authority’s enabling legislation first
adopted in 1971 and its subsequent amendments as found in MRSA, Title 22, Chapter 413,
Sections 2051 ET. Seq.

2. Program Description: Under the US internal revenue service tax code, non-profit institutions,
including educational institutions or health care providers, have the authority to issue debt the
interest payments on which are exempt from taxation under the federal income tax — so-called
tax exempt bonds. Further, under the terms of the federal tax code, while these institutions may
be the beneficiaries of tax exempt debt in order for them to actually sell tax exempt bonds they
must use a governmental entity as the issuer of their debt — a so-called conduit borrower. Every
state in the nation has some type of Authority or instrumentality of the state to provide to its
state’s non-profit institutions an issuer for their tax-exempt debt as is called for under the federal
tax code. Maine, in 1971, created the Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority
to accomplish this task on behalf of its non-profit health care and education providers.

The goal of the Authority is to provide to Maine’s non-profit education and health care
providers the most cost effective issuance of tax-exempt debt and the lowest interest rate on that
debt available in the national credit markets. The Authority believes, and independent analysis
seems to validate that belief, that it has created a program for the issuance of tax exempt bonds



for all its eligible borrowers, from the largest to the smallest, which is second to none in the
country. For example, the Authority has obtained an AA credit rating from Fitch Investor’s
Services and an Al rating from Moody’s credit rating service (reports enclosed). These credit
ratings mean that for all our borrowers we enter the national credit markets with a strong
investment grade credit rating which in turn results in lower interest rates on our bonds. These
savings are passed on to our borrowers.

Perhaps the greatest challenge to providing affordable capital to all of the Authority’s eligible
borrowers is the range of size and credit quality of such institutions in a large, rural state with a
small population. Generally speaking the national tax-exempt bond market looks upon any bond
sale of less than $10M, and for some institutional buyers less than $25M, as a small bond sale.
Also speaking generally the interest rate available for a small bond sale is higher than the rate on
a larger bond sale and the costs of issuance associated with a small sale of the bonds is no less
than those for a large sale and in some instances are higher. To address these concerns, in
cooperation with the Legislature, the Authority has put in place several program elements which
reduce costs for its eligible borrowers and create a strong portfolio of loans for the Authority that
translate to lower interest rate costs on Authority bonds.

One of the program elements the Authority has put in place is to issue bonds for several
institutions at the same time, in so-called pools, rather than attempting to sell individual bond
sales for every borrower. This pooled finance model allows institutions to share the fixed costs
associated with any sale of tax-exempt debt thus reducing their costs of issuance. The pooled
model has been augmented by the Authority’s use of standardized documents for its pooled
financing bond sales. Standardized documents not only help control legal costs for the bond sale
but also allow potential purchasers of our bonds to become comfortable with the legal standards
we have established for our bonds and loan contracts with our borrowers thus making it much
easier for buyers to know what they are purchasing, which increases the market’s appetite for
our bonds.

In addition to the pooling mechanism, the Legislature in 1991 authorized the Authority to use
a Capital Reserve Fund, or moral obligation debt, model for its bonds. In this model, each time
the Authority markets a bond sale it sells a sufficient number of bonds to fund both the loans it
makes to its eligible borrowers and a reserve fund equal to the highest one full year of principle
and interest due annually over the life of the bonds. The money in the reserve fund may only be
used to pay off the bonds associated with the reserve fund or to make payments on behalf of a
borrower who has failed to make a loan payment. The statute provides that each year the
Authority must determine that there is an amount of money in the reserve fund equal to or higher
than the highest remaining full year of debt service on the outstanding bonds. If the reserve fund
falls below this minimum amount then the Authority sends a request to the Governor to submit
legislation to appropriate an amount of money sufficient to bring the debt service reserve back up
to the minimum amount. For example, if there is supposed to be $85M in the reserve fund and
the determination is made that there is only $84.9M in the fund, then the Authority would request
that $100,000 be appropriated for deposit to the reserve fund. There is no statutory or
constitutional requirement that the Legislature appropriates the money and the Maine Law Court
has found that these bonds do not constitute a full faith and credit pledge of the State of Maine.
Since the Authority’s adoption of its tax-exempt Capital Reserve Fund Bond Resolution it has



never made a request to the Governor for such legislation, has never used money from the
reserve fund to pay debt service and has never had the amount of money in the reserve fund go
below the statutorily required minimum amount.

Another element of the Authority’s pooled borrower program is a statutory provision that
authorizes the Authority to intercept any borrower funds held by the State if a borrower fails to
make its required debt service payments. This so call state intercept provision provides another
layer of credit strength to the pooled borrower program.

The combination of program elements such as pooling, standardization of documents, the
state intercept and the Capital Reserve Fund, among others, has made the Maine program for
capital financing for our non-profit educational providers and health care institutions arguably
the lowest cost, most accessible such program in the country. The savings achieved through the
program translate directly to lower costs for debt service for our borrowers, and in the case of our
health care borrowers, lower costs for Medicaid reimbursements from the state. For our smaller
and more rural institutions it means that they obtain capital in a national credit market that might
well simply shut them out if they attempted to sell on their own credit or at the least would
charge them interest rates as much as two to four percent higher for an equivalent term than they
can obtain with the Authority’s program. The pooled borrowing program has been under review
by the Office of the Governor since February 2011 so the Authority has been unable to sell any
new money tax exempt bonds using the pooled bond sale model in 2011. It has continued to sell
so-called conduit bonds on behalf of individual eligible borrowers.

The Authority is involved in two other programs to provide service to our eligible borrowers.
In 1991, the Legislature made proprietary (for profit) health care providers eligible borrowers
through the Authority. The goal for this program was to stabilize loan payments for nursing care
facilities that are reimbursed through the state Medicaid program and possibly to lower interest
rates. The program was successful in achieving both goals but ongoing programmatic and
financial chaos in the national and local delivery of nursing care made such loans extremely
difficult if not impossible to review for credit worthiness. The Authority has made no more
loans to for profit nursing homes under its taxable bond resolution since 1996 and anticipates no
future loans under the program. The Authority has worked with its loan recipients in the
program to reduce its portfolio of loans to proprietary nursing care facilities from over $108M to
$1.1M.

In 1997, the Legislature authorized the Authority to provide its eligible borrowers a program
to help them reduce operating costs through the bulk purchase of commodities such as electricity
and fuel oil. Today, in a program operated jointly with the Maine Municipal Bond Bank, Maine
Power Options aggregates electricity and organizes bulk purchase of petroleum products for any
of our eligible borrowers who decide to become members of Maine Power Options and
participate in its programs. Membership and participation in Maine Power Options is entirely
voluntary. To date just under one hundred of the Authority’s eligible institutions have decided to
become members of Maine Power Options. (Membership list enclosed)

2. Organizational structure: The Authority is a beneficiary of a joint administrative group that is
the result of a cooperative venture among the Maine Municipal Bond Bank, the Maine



Governmental Facilities Authority, the Maine Public Utility Finance Bank and the Maine
Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority. One person serves as the Executive
Director of each of these separate entities while a joint staff of seventeen people provides
administrative services. On a full time equivalent basis (FTE) the Authority under its current
budget has 5.7 FTEs. It has three employees who derive more than eighty five percent of
their salary from the Authority: the Senior Program Officer, Program Assistant, and an
Accounting Administrator. The balance of the FTE count comes from the Executive
Director, computer services, receptionist and similar shared activities. The Authority
receives no funds from the state for its costs of operation or salaries. It is funded through
fees charged to borrowers and investment earnings. Authority employees are members of a
Participating Local District of the Maine State Retirement System through the Maine
Municipal Bond Bank.

Compliance with health and safety laws: The Authority requires through its loan agreements
with its borrowers that they must comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws,
including those covering health and safety during construction and after occupancy. These
compliance requirements include ADA and OSHA. The Authority’s offices are in
compliance with current ADA and OSHA workplace standards.

Ten year financial history: Under the terms of its bond resolutions the Authority is required
to have independent financial audits undertaken each year. Enclosed are copies of those
audits for the last ten years, including the most recent audit completed by our independent
auditors for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. All of the Authority’s annual financial
audits have received a clean audit opinion from its independent financial auditor. The June
30, 2011 audit will be completed by October 2011 and will be forwarded to Committee
members as soon as it is available.

Regulatory agenda and rules. The Authority has no rules pending on the regulatory agenda
and has not adopted any rules under the Administrative Procedures Act. Specific loan
requirements for Authority borrowers such as borrower eligibility and authorized project
activity are specified in the Authority’s enabling statute.

Coordination: The Authority has established a strong working relationship with the
Department of Human Services as it pursues its health care financing services. The
Authority enabling statute requires that it cannot finance a project if it is subject to the Maine
Certificate of Need Act and has not received CON approval from DHS. In addition, the
Authority is required to obtain from DHS for each of its bond sales involving health care
borrowers a letter acknowledging that it understands that such a financing is being
undertaken and that the activity to be financed is within the scope of the current state health
plan. In addition the Commissioner of DHS is an ex-officio member of the Authority’s
Board of Commissioners, as are the Commissioner of the Department of Education, the
Superintendent of Banks, and the State Treasurer.

Under federal law the Authority is required to obtain the specific approval of the Governor
for each project for which it issues tax exempt bonds. The so-called federal TEFRA
requirement says that an issuer of tax exempt bonds on behalf of non-profit institutions must



10.

obtain the approval of the senior elected official in the jurisdiction of the issuer prior to the
sale of the bonds. In the Authority’s case, as its jurisdiction is state wide, the senior elected
official in the issuer’s jurisdiction is the Governor of the State. Prior to each new money
bond sale by the Authority it must advertise and then hold a public hearing to solicit
comments on any project that it proposes to finance with the proceeds of its tax-exempt
bonds. Subsequently it must report any information obtained at such a hearing to and then
receive a letter from the Governor approving the sale of tax-exempt bonds for each project to
be funded with the proceeds of that bond sale.

The constituencies served by the Authority are specifically defined in its enabling
legislation. The legislative definition is in several parts but essentially our constituencies are
licensed health care facilities and institutions providing educational services, which include
institutions of higher education across the state as well as secondary schools and other non-
profit cultural and library institutions which operate a significant educational program as part
of their institution.

The Authority makes extensive use of the private sector in the delivery of its services. All of
its legal, banking, banking trustee, auditing, printing and bond underwriting services are
provided by the private sector. This extensive use of the private sector for the
accomplishment of many of its program and bond issuance responsibilities, along with its
shared services with other entities as mentioned previously, has allowed the Authority to
successfully operate and carry out its responsibilities with the small staff it has. There are
very few if any remaining elements of the Authority’s activities that given the restrictions of
the federal tax code can be carried out through other delivery mechanisms or private sector
providers.

Emerging issues: Federal tax code standards and regulations that impact the Authority
change, unfortunately, on a regular basis but the most immediate potential issue for the
Authority is in the area of the continuing availability tax exempt bonds for our eligible
borrowers. Several members of Congress as well as the Executive Branch have raised the
issue of the removal or limitation of the tax exemption on bonds sold by state and local
governments as well as by non-profit corporations as an avenue to pursue in the efforts to
reduce costs for the federal government. Any such change would have a very large impact on
not only the Authority’s eligible borrowers but on costs for Maine government as a whole.

The Authority is not aware of any other information that has been requested by the
Committee at this time.

Enclosures:

Copy of Enabling Act

Moody’s Rating Service Report

Fitch Rating Report

List of Authority Borrowers

Maine Power Options MHHEFA membership
2000-2010Annual Reports

Official Statement Series 2010 B&C Bond Issue
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22 §2051. TITLE

This chapter shall be known as, and may be cited as, the "Maine Health and Higher Educational
Facilities Authority Act." [1979, <. 680, §1 (aMD).]

SECTION HISTORY
1971, e. 303, 51 (NEW). 1979, c. 680, §1 (AMD).

22 §2052. DECLARATION OF NECESSITY

It is declared that for the benefit of the people of the State, the increase of their commerce, welfare
and prosperity and the improvement of their health and living conditions, it is essential that health care
facilities within the State be provided with appropriate additional means to expand, enlarge and establish
health care facilities and other related facilities; that this and future generations of students be given the fullest
opportunity to learn and to develop their intellectual capacities: and that it is the purpose of this chapter to
provide a measure of assistance and an alternative method to enable health care facilities , institutions for
higher education and nonprofit institutions providing an educational program in the State to provide the
facilities and structures needed to accomplish the purposes of this chapter, all to the public benefit and goad,
and the exercise of the powers, to the extent and manner provided in this chapter, is declared the exercise of
an essential governmental function. [2007, <. 354, §1 (AMD).]

SECTION HISTORY
1971, e. 303, §1 (NEW). 1973, c. 713, §1 (AMD). 1979, c. 680, §2 (AMD).
1991, c. 50, §§1-5 (AMD). 1993, c. 390, §1 (AMD). 2007, c. 354, §1
(AMD) .

22 §2053. DEFINITIONS

As used in this chapter, the following words and terms shall have the following meanings unless the
context indicates another or different meaning or intent. [1971, <. 303, §1 (NEW).]

1. Authority. "Authority” means the Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority created
and established as a public body corporate and politic of the State of Maine by section 2054 or any board,
body, commission, department or officer succeeding to the principal functions thereof or to whom the powers
conferred upon the authority by this chapter shall be given by law.

[ 1978, c. 680, §3 (AMD) .]

2. Bonds and netes. "Bonds" and "notes" mean bonds and notes of the authority issued under this
chapter, including refunding bonds, notwithstanding that the same may be secured by mortgage or the
full faith and credit of the authority or the full faith and credit of a participating health care facility . a
participating institution for higher education or a participating institution providing an educational prograni,
or any other lawfully pledged security of a participating health care facility , a participating institution for
higher education or a participating institution providing an educational program.

[ 2007 ©. 354, 82 {(A¥MD) .7

2-A. Community health or social service facility, "Community health or social service facility" means
a community-based facility that provides medical or medically related diagnostic or therapeutic services,
mental health or mental retardation services, substance abuse services or family counseling and domestic
abuse intervention services, and is licensed by the State.

[ 1895, = 172, '8 (BPR] .]

22 §2051, Tite | 3
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2-B. Community health center. "Community health center" means an incorporated nonprofit health
facility that provides comprehensive primary health care to citizens in a community.

[ 1993, c. 390, §4 (NEW) .]
2-C. Congregate housing facility.
[ 1995, c¢. 670, Pt. C, §1 (RP); 1995, c. 670, Pt. D, §5 (AFF) .1

3. Cost. "Cost" as applied to a project or any portion thereof financed under this chapter shall mean the
cost of construction, building, acquisition, equipping, alteration, enlargement, reconstruction and remodeling
of a project and acquisition of all lands, structures, real or personal property, rights, rights-of-way, franchises,
easements and interest acquired, necessary, used for or useful for or in connection with a project and all other
undertakings which the authority deems reasonable or necessary for the development of a project, including
but not limited to the cost of demolishing or removing any building or structures on land so acquired, the
cost of acquiring any lands to which such building or structures may be moved, the cost of all machinery
and equipment, financing charges, interest prior to and during construction, and if judged advisable by the
authority, for a period after completion of such construction, the cost of financing the project, including
interest on bonds and notes issued by the authority to finance the project; provisions for working capital;
reserves for principal and interest and for extensions, enlargements, additions and improvements; cost of
architectural, engineering, financial, legal or other special services, plans, specifications, studies, surveys,
estimates of cost and revenues; administrative and operating expenses; expenses necessary or incident to
determining the feasibility or practicability of constructing the project; and such other expenses necessary or
incident to the construction and acquisition of the project, the financing of such construction, and acquisition
and the placing of the project in operation.

[ 1971, c. 303, §1 (NEwW) .]

3-A. Health care facility. "Health care facility” means a nursing home that is, or will be upon
completion, licensed under chapter 405; a residential care facility that is, or will be upon completion, licensed
under chapter 1663; a continuing care retirement community that is, or will be upon completion, licensed
under Title 24-A, chapter 73; an assisted living facility that is, or will be upon completion, licensed under
chapter 1664; a hospital; a community mental heaith facility; a scene response air ambulance licensed under
Title 32, chapter 2-B and the rules adopted thereunder; a facility of a hospice program that is, or will be upon
completion, licensed under chapter 1681; a nonprofit statewide health information network incorporated in
the State for the purpose of exchanging health care information among licensed health care providers in the
State; or a community health center.

[ 2007, <. 72, §1 (AMD) .]

3-B. Eligible entity. "Eligible entity" means a facility or institution eligible to participate in financing
or other borrowing services authorized by this chapter and includes a participating community health or
social service facility, a participating health care facility , a participating institution for higher education or a
participating institution providing an educational program.

[ 2007, c. 354, 8§83 (AaMD) .]

4. Hospital. "Hospital" means any private, nonprofit or charitable institution or organization which is
either:

A. Engaged in the operation of, or formed for the purpose of operating, a hospital which is, or will

be upon completion, licensed as a hospital under the laws of the State; or {1983, c. 199, §1

(NEW) . ]
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B. Whose sole members are 2 or more institutions or organizations which are licensed as hospitals or
nursing homes under the laws of the State. [1983, c. 199, §1 (NEW).]

[ 1983, c. 199, §1 (RPR) .]

4-A. Nursing home,
[ 1991, c. 584, §2 (RP) .}

4-B. Institution for higher education. "Institution for higher education” means:

A. Any private, nonprofit, governmental or charitable institution or organization engaged in the
operation of, or formed for the purpose of operating, an educational institution within this State,
including the Maine Community College System and the University of Maine System, that, by virtue of
law or charter, is an educational institution empowered to provide a program of education beyond the
high school level; and [2003, <. 20, Pt. DDD, §1 (AMD); 2003, c¢. 20, Pt. 00,
§2 (AaMD); 2003, c. 20, Pt. 00, §4 (AFF).]

B. The Maine School of Science and Mathematics, as established in Title 20-A, chapter 312. To repay
any necessary outstanding construction bonds, the adjusted tuition and insured value factor amount
defined in Title 20-A, section 5805, subsection 3, may be increased as specified in that definition. The
adjustment may be used solely to repay bonds from the authority and expires when the bond is retired.
[1993, <. 706, Pt. A, §5 (NEW).]

[ 2003, ¢. 20, Pt. DDD, §1 (AMD); 2003, c. 20, Pt. OO, §2 (AaMD); 2003,
c. 20, Pt. 00, §4 (AFF) .]

4-C. Participating community mental health facility.
[ 1993, <. 390, §6 (RP) .]

4-D. Participating community health or social service facility. "Participating community health or
social service facility” means a community health or social service facility that is exempt from taxation under
section 501 of the United States Internal Revenue Code and that, pursuant to this chapter, undertakes the
financing and construction or acquisition of a project or undertakes the refunding or refinancing of existing
indebtedness as provided in and committed by this chapter.

[ 1995, ¢. 179, §2 (NEW) .]

4-E. Institution providing an educational program. "Institution providing an educational program"”
means a nonprofit or charitable institution, public or private, that is exempt from federal taxation pursuant to
the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, Section 501 and that provides a program of
education for the purpose of enhancing the knowledge or abilities of its members or the general public.

[ 2007, c. 354, &4 (NEW) .]

5. Participating health care facility. "Participating health care facility” means a health care or licensed
assisted living facility that, pursuant to this chapter, undertakes the financing and construction or acquisition
of a project or undertakes the refunding or refinancing of existing indebtedness as provided in and permitted
by this chapter.

[ 1995, c. 670, Pt. C, §3 (AMD); 1995, c. 670, Pt. D, §5 (AFF) .]

22 §2053. Definitions | 5
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5-A. Participating institution for higher education. "Participating institution for higher education”
means an institution for higher education which, pursuant to this chapter, shall undertake the financing and
construction or acquisition of a project or shall undertake the refunding or refinancing of obligations or of a
mortgage or of advances as provided in and permitted by this chapter.

[ 1979, c. 680, §5 (NEW) .]

5-B. Participating institution providing an educational pregram. "Participating institution providing
an educational program” means an institution providing an educational program that, pursuant to this
chapter, undertakes the financing and construction or acquisition of a project or undertakes the refunding or
refinancing of obligations or of a mortgage or of advances as provided in and permitted by this chapter.

[ 2007, <. 354, §5 (NEW) .]

6. Project. "Project” means:

A. In the case of a participating health care facility or a participating community health or social service
facility, the acquisition, construction, improvement, reconstruction or equipping of, or construction

of an addition or additions to, a structure designed for use as a health care facility, community health

or social service facility, congregate housing facility, laboratory, laundry, nurses or interns residence

or other multiunit housing facility for staff, employees, patients or relatives of patients admitted for
treatment in the health care facility, community health or social service facility, doctors office building,
administration building, research facility, maintenance, storage or utility facility or other structures or
facilities related to any of the foregoing or required or useful for the operation of the project, or the
refinancing of existing indebtedness in connection with any of the foregoing, including parking and
other facilities or structures essential or convenient for the orderly conduct of the health care facility or
community health or social service facility. "Project” also includes all real and personal property, lands,
improvements, driveways, roads, approaches, pedestrian access roads, rights-of-way, utilities, easements
and other interests in land, parking lots, machinery and equipment, and all other appurtenances and
facilities either on, above or under the ground that are used or usable in connection with the structures
mentioned in this paragraph, and includes landscaping, site preparation, furniture, machinery and
equipment and other similar items necessary or convenient for the operation of a particular facility

or structure in the manner for which its use is intended, but does not include such items as food, fuel,
supplies or other items that are customarily considered as a current operating charge. In the case of a
hospital, as defined in subsection 4, paragraph B, a community health center or a community health or
social service facility, "project” does not include any facilities, structures or appurtenances, the use of
which is not directly related to the provision of patient care by its members; [2007, <. 354, §6
(AMD) . ]

B. In the case of a participating institution for higher education, the acquisition, construction,
improvement, reconstruction or equipping of, or construction of an addition or additions to, any structure
designed for use as a dormitory or other housing facility, dining facility, student union, academic
building, administrative facility, library, classroom building, research facility, faculty facility, office
facility, athletic facility, health care facility, laboratory, maintenance, storage or utility facility or other
building or structure essential, necessary or useful for instruction in a program of education provided

by an institution for higher education, including a parking facility, or any multipurpose structure
designed to combine 2 or more of the functions performed by the types of structures enumerated in this
paragraph. "Project” includes all real and personal property, lands, improvements, driveways, roads,
approaches, pedestrian access roads, rights-of-way, utilities, easements and other interests in land,
machinery and equipment, and all appurtenances and facilities either on, above or under the ground

that are used or usable in connection with any of the structures mentioned in this paragraph, and also
includes landscaping, site preparation, furniture, machinery, equipment and other similar items necessary
or convenient for the operation of a particular facility or structure in the manner for which its use is
intended, but does not include such items as books, fuel, supplies or other items that are customarily
considered as a current operating charge; and [2007, <. 354, §6 (AMD).]

6 | 225§2053. Definitions
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C. In the case of a participating institution providing an educational program, the acquisition,
construction, improvement, reconstruction or equipping of, or construction of an addition or additions
to, any structure designed for use as a dormitory or other housing facility, dining facility. student

union, academic building, administrative facility, library, classroom building, research facility, faculty
facility, office facility, athletic facility, health care facility, laboratory, maintenance, storage or utility
facility, exhibition facility or space, performing arts facility, museum, theater. studio or other building or
structure essential, necessary or useful to the participating institution providing an educational program,
including a parking facility or any multipurpose structure designed to combine 2 or more of the functions
performed by the types of structures enumerated in this paragraph. "Project” includes all real and
personal property, lands, improvements, driveways, roads, approaches, pedestrian access roads, rights-
of-way. utilities, easements and other interests in land, machinery and equipment, and all appurtenances
and facilities either on, above or under the ground that are used or usable in connection with any of

the structures mentioned in this paragraph. and also includes landscaping, site preparation, furniture,
machinery, equipment and other similar items necessary or convenient for the operation of a particular
facility or structure in the manner for which its use is intended. but does not include such items as books,
fuel, supplies or other items that are customarily considered as a current operating charge. [2007, c.
354, §6 (NEW).]

2000, e, 35y B (BMD) o]

7. Refinancing of existing indebtedness. "Refinancing of existing indebtedness" means liquidation,
with the proceeds of bonds or notes issued by the authority, of an indebtedness of a health care facility ,
an institution for higher education or a participating institution providing an educational program incurred
to finance or aid in financing a lawful purpose of that health care facility , institution for higher education
or participating institution providing an educational program not financed pursuant to this chapter that
would constitute a project had it been undertaken and financed by the authority, or consolidation of such
indebtedness with indebtedness of the authority incurred for a project related to the purpose for which the
indebtedness of the health care facility . institution for higher education or participating institution providing
an educational program was incurred.

[ 2007, c. 354, §7 (AMD) .]

SECTION HISTORY

1971, e. 303, &1 (NEW). 1973, c. 713, §§2-5 (AMD). 1979, c. GBO, §§3-7
(AMD). 1983, ec. 199, §§1,2 (AMD). RR 19881, e. 2, §78 (COR). 1991, c.
584, §81-3 (AMD). 1993, c. 390, §§2-9 (aMD). 1993, c. 661, §1 (AMD).
1993, o 706; BAS (AMD} . 1995; o 178, BRI=Z (AMD), A885, o 364, §81,2
(AMD) . 1995, c. 452, §1 (AMD). 1995, c. 670, §§C1-3 (AMD). 1995, c.
670, 8D5 (AFF). 1997, <. 385, §1 (AMD). 2001, c. 580, 84 (AMD). 2001,
c. 596, §B25 (AFF). 2001, c. 596, §B7 (aMp). 2003, c. 20, §§002,DDD1
(AMD) .. 2003; <. 20, 5004 (AFF).  2005; ¢, 407, &1 (AMD). 32007, e. 72,
§1 (aMp). 2007, c. 354, §§2-7 (AMD).

22 §2054. HEALTH FACILITIES AUTHORITY; EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

1. Authority. The Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority. established by Title 3,
chapter 379, is constituted a public body corporate and politic and an instrumentality of the State, and the
exercise by the authority of the powers conferred by this chapter is deemed and held to be the performance of
an essential public function. The authority consists of 12 members, one of whom must be the Superintendent
of Financial Institutions, ex officio; one of whom must be the Commissioner of Health and Human Services,
ex officio; one of whom must be the Commissioner of Education, ex officio; one of whom must be the
Treasurer of State, ex officio; and 8 of whom must be residents of the State appointed by the Govemnor. Not
more than 4 of the appainted members may be members of the same political party. Three of the appointed
members must be trustees, directors, officers or employees of health care facilities and one of these appointed
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members must be a person having a favorable reputation for skill, knowledge and experience in state and
municipal finance, either as a partner, officer or employee of an investment banking firm that originates

and purchases state and municipal securities, or as an officer or employee of an insurance company or bank
whose duties relate to the purchase of state and municipal securities as an investment and to the management
and control of a state and municipal securities portfolio. Of the 3 members first appointed who are trustees,
directors, officers or employees of hospitals, one shall serve for 2 years, one for 3 years and one for 4 years.
Of the 5 remaining members initially appointed, one shall serve for one year, one for 2 years, one for 3 years,
one for 4 years and one for 5 years. For the 2 members whose terms expire in 1980 and 1981, the Governor
shall appoint as successors, for terms of 5 years each, persons who are trustees, members of a corporation

or board of governors, officers or employees of institutions for higher education. Annually, the Governor
shall appoint, for a term of 5 years, a successor to the member whose term expires. Members shall continue
in office until their successors have been appointed and qualified. The Governor shall fill any vacancy for
the unexpired terms. A member of the authority is eligible for reappointment. Any non-ex officio member

of the authority may be removed by the Govemor, after hearing, for misfeasance, malfeasance or willful
neglect of duty. Each member of the authority before entering upon the member's duties must take and
subscribe the oath or affirmation required by the Constitution of Maine, Article IX. A record of each such
oath must be filed in the office of the Secretary of State. The Superintendent of Financial Institutions, the
Treasurer of State, the Commissioner of Health and Human Services and the Commissioner of Education may
designate their deputies to represent them with full authority and power to act and vote in their behalf or, in
the case of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions, the Commissioner of Health and Human Services
and the Commissioner of Education, any member of their staffs to represent them as members at meetings
of the authority with full power to act and, in the case of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions, the
Commissioner of Health and Human Services and the Commissioner of Education, to vote in their behalf.

[ 1993, <. 390, §10 (AMD); 2001, c. 44, §11 (AMD); 2001, c. 44, §14
(AFF); 2003, c. 689, Pt. B, §7 (REV) .1

2. Chairman, vice-chairman; executive director. The authority shall annually elect one of its
members as chairman and one as vice-chairman, and shall also appoint an executive director who shall not be
a member of the authority and who shall serve at the pleasure of the authority and receive such compensation
as shall be fixed by the authority.

[ 1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW) .]

3. Duties of executive director. The executive director shall keep a record of the proceedings of the
authority and shall be custodian of all books, documents and papers filed with the authority and of the minute
book or journal of the authority and of its official seal. He may cause copies to be made of all minutes and
other records and documents of the authority and may give certificates under the official seal of the authority
to the effect that such copies are true copies, and all persons dealing with the authority may rely upon such
certificates.

[ 1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW) .]

4. Powers of authority. The powers of the authority shall be vested in the members thereof in office
from time to time and 5 members of the authority shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the authority.
No vacancy in the membership of the authority shall impair the right of such members to exercise all the
rights and perform all the duties of the authority. Any action taken by the authority under this chapter may
be authorized by resolution approved by a majority of the members present at any regular or special meeting,
which resolution shall take effect immediately or by a resolution circularized or sent to each member of the
authority, which shall take effect at such time as a majority of the members shall have signed an assent to
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such resolution. Resolutions of the authority need not be published or posted, The authority may delegate
by resolution to one or more of its members or its executive director such powers and duties as it may deem

proper.
[ 1971, e. 303, 81 (NEW) .]

5. Bond. Each member of the authority shall execute a surety bond in the penal sum of $50,000 and the
executive director shall execute a surety bond in the penal sum of $100,000, or, in lieu thereof, the chairman
of the authority shall execute a blanket position bond covering each member, the executive director and the
employees of the authority, each surety bond to be conditioned upon the faithful performance of the duties of
the office or offices covered, to be executed by a surety company authorized o transact business in this State
as surety and to be approved by the Attorney General and filed in the office of the Secretary of State. The cost
of each bond shall be paid by the authority.

[ 1971, . 303, §1 (NEW) .]

6. Expenses. The members of the authority shall be compensated according to the provisions of Title 5,
chapter 379,

{ 1883, . 812, §51Z5 (RPR) ]

7. Conflict of interest. Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, it does not constitute a conflict
of interest for a trustee, director, officer or employee of a health care facility or a participating institution
providing an educational program or for a trustee, member of a corporation or board of governors, officer or
employee of an institution for higher education to serve as a member of the authority if that trustee, director.
member of a corporation or board of governors, officer or employee abstains from deliberation, action and
vote by the authority under this chapter in specific respect to the health care facility , institution for higher
education or participating institution providing an educational program of which that member is a trustee,
director, member of a corporation or board of governors, officer or employee.

[ 2007 ‘e 3544, 88 (AMB) 7]

SECTION HISTORY

1991, B 2035, '§1 (NEW). IBTIR, e, BES,, §1L (AMBRYy X9V, G T3 EE
(avoD). 1973, e. 788, §84 (aMp), 1875, e. 771, 8217 (aMp). 19739, c.
533, §§11-13 {(aMp). 1979, <. 680, §§88,9 (AMD). 1883, ¢. B12, §§124,125
(AMD) . 1987, c. 403, §4 (AMD), 1989, c. 700, §a76é (aMD). 1991, c.

50, §§6,7 (AMD). 1993, c. 390, §§10,11 (AMD). 2001, c. 44, §11 (AMD).
2001, c. 44, §l4 (AFF). 2003, c¢. 689, §B7 (REV). 2007, c. 354, §8
(AMD) .

22 §2055. POWERS OF AUTHORITY

The purpose of the authority is to assist participating health care facilities, participating institutions
providing an educational program and participating institutions for higher education in the undertaking of
projects and the refinancing of existing indebtedness that are declared to be public purposes, and for the
purposes of this chapter the authority is authorized and empowered: [2007, c. 354, §9 (AMD).]

1. Bylaws. To have perpetual succession as a body politic and corporate and to adopt bylaws for the
regulation of its affairs and the conduct of its business:

[ 1971, c©. 303, §1 (NEW) .]
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2. Seal. To adopt an official seal and alter the same at pleasure;
[ 1971, c¢. 303, §1 (NEW) .]

3. Office. To maintain an office at such place or places as it may designate;
[ 1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW) .]

4. Sue. To sue and be sued in its own name, and plead and be impleaded;
[ 1971, c¢. 303, §1 (NEW) .]

5. Projects. To determine the location and character of any project to be financed under this chapter and
to acquire, construct, reconstruct, renovate, improve, replace, maintain, repair, extend, enlarge, operate, lease,
as lessee or lessor, and regulate the same, to enter into contracts for any or all of such purposes, to enter into
contracts for the management and operation of a project, and to designate a participating health care facility ,
a participating institution for higher education or a participating institution providing an educational program
as its agent to determine the location and character of a project undertaken by the participating health care
facility , participating institution for higher education or participating institution providing an educational
program under this chapter and, as the agent of the authority, to acquire, construct, reconstruct, renovate,
improve, replace, maintain, repair, extend, enlarge, operate, lease, as lessee or lessor, and regulate the same
and, as the agent of the authority, to enter into contracts for any or all of such purposes, including contracts
for the management and operation of such project;

[ 2007, c. 354, §10 (AaMD) .]

6. Bonds. To borrow money and issue bonds, notes, bond anticipation notes and other obligations of the
authority for any of its corporate purposes, and to fund or refund the same, all as provided in this chapter;

[ 1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW) .]

7. Rates and fees. Generally, to fix and revise from time to time and charge and collect rates, rents,
fees and charges for the use of and for the services furnished or to be furnished by a project or any portion
thereof and to contract with any person, partnership, association or corporation or other body public or private
in respect thereof;

[ 1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW) .]

8. Rules. To establish rules for the use of a project or any portion thereof and to designate a
participating health care facility , a participating institution for higher education or a participating institution
providing an educational program as its agent to establish rules for the use of a project undertaken by the
participating health care facility , participating institution for higher education or participating institution
providing an educational program;

[ 2007, c. 354, §11 (AMD) .]

9. Consultants and agents. To employ consulting engineers, architects, attorneys, accountants,
construction and financial experts, superintendents, managers and such other employees and agents as may be
necessary in its judgment, and to fix their compensation;

[ 1971, <. 303, §1 (NEW) .]
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10. Grants. To receive and accept from the Federal Government or the State or any other public agency
loans or grants for or in aid of the construction of a project or any portion thereof, and to receive and accept
loans, grants, aid or contributions from any source of either money, property, labor or other things of value, to
be held, used and applied only for the purposes for which such loans, grants, aid and contributions are made;

[ 1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW) .]

11. Mortgages. To mortgage any project and the site thereof for the benefit of the holders of bonds or
notes or other obligations issued to finance such project;

[ 1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW) .]

12. Loans. To make loans to a participating health care facility, participating institution for higher
education, participating institution providing an educational program, other entity eligible to use the authority
or consortium of entities eligible to use the authority for the cost of a project in accordance with an agreement
between the authority and the participating entity or entities, except that no such loan may exceed the total
cost of the project as determined by the participating entity or entities and approved by the authority;

[ 2007, c. 354, §l2 (aMD) .]

13. Refund. To make loans to a participating health care facility , a participating institution for higher
education or a participating institution providing an educational program to refund outstanding obligations,
mortgages or advances issued, made or given by such a participating health care facility , participating
institution for higher education or participating institution providing an educational program for the cost of
the project;

[ 2007, c. 354, §13 (AMD) .]

14. Apportionment. To charge to and equitably apportion among participating health care facilities ,
participating institutions for higher education and participating institutions providing an educational program
its administrative costs and expenses incurred in the exercise of the powers and duties conferred by this
chapter;

[ 2007, c. 354, §14 (AMD) .]

15. Other acts. To do all things necessary or convenient to carry out the purposes of this chapter. In
carrying out the purposes of this chapter, the authority may undertake a project for 2 or more participating
health care facilities jointly , 2 or more participating institutions for higher education jointly or 2 or more
participating institutions providing educational programs, and, upon undertaking the project, all other
provisions of this chapter apply to and for the benefit of the authority and such joint participants;

[ 2007, c. 354, §15 (aMD) .]

16. Bulk purchases. To purchase, lease or otherwise acquire, finance, sell and transfer for, to or on
behalf of itself and any eligible entities organized pursuant to the United States Internal Revenue Code,
Section 501 or in partnership with any of its eligible entities organized pursuant to the United States Internal
Revenue Code, Section 501 commodities necessary for the daily operation of the facilities of the eligible
entities, including, but not limited to, electricity, petroleum products, fuel oil and natural gas. For purposes
authorized in this subsection, the University of Maine System and its colleges and universities are eligible
participating institutions under the definition of eligible participant for the authority; and

[ 1998, c. 231, §1 (AMD) .]
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17. Nonprofit corporation. In accordance with the limitations and restrictions of this chapter, 10 cause
any of its powers, duties, programs or operations to be carried out by one or more nonprofit corporations.
Nonprofit corporations acting at the direction of the authority must be organized and operated under the
Maine Nonprofit Corporation Act. For the purposes authorized in this section the University of Maine
System and its colleges and universities are eligible participating institutions under the definition of eligible
participant for the authority.

[ 1997, c. 385, §4 (NEW) .]

SECTION HISTORY

1971, <. 303, §1 (NEW). 1979, c. 680, §§10-13 (AMD). 1981, c. 470, BAB2
(AMD) . 1991, . 50, §§8-13 (AMD). 1991, c. 584, §4 (AMD). 1993, c.
390, §§12-18 (AMD). 1997, c. 385, §§2-4 (aMD). 1999, c. 231, §1 (AMD).
2007, e. 354, §§9-15 (AMD).

22 §2056. PAYMENT OF EXPENSES

All expenses incurred in carrying out this chapter shall be payable solely from funds provided under the
authority of this chapter and no liability or obligation shall be incurred by the authority beyond the extent to
which moneys shall have been provided under this chapter. 11971, <. 303, §1 (NEW).]

SECTION HISTORY
1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW).

22 §2057. ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY BY AUTHORITY

The authority is authorized and empowered, directly or by and through a participating health care
facility , a participating institution for higher education or a participating institution providing an educational
program, as its agent, to acquire by purchase or by gift or devise such lands, structures, property, real or
personal, rights and air rights, rights-of-way, franchises, easements and other interests in lands, including
lands lying under water and riparian rights, and air rights, that are located inside or outside the State, as it
determines necessary or convenient for the construction or operation of a project, upon such terms and at
such prices as may be considered by it to be reasonable and can be agreed upon between it and the owner of
lands, including lands lying under water and riparian rights, and air rights, that are located inside or outside
the State, and to take title to lands, including lands lying under water and riparian rights, and air rights, that
are located inside or outside the State in the name of the authority or in the name of a participating health care
facility , a participating institution for higher education or a participating institution providing an educational
program as its agent. [2007, c. 354, §16 (AMD).]

SECTION HISTORY
1971, c. 303, §1 (NEwW). 1979, c. 680, §14 (aMD). 1991, c. 50, §14
(aMp) . 1993, ¢. 390, §19 (AMD). 2007, c. 354, §16 (AMD).

22 §2058. CONVEYANCE OF TITLE TO PARTICIPATING INSTITUTIONS

When the principal of and interest on bonds of the authority issued to finance the cost of a particular
project or projects for a participating health care facility , a participating institution for higher education or
a participating institution providing an educational program, including any refunding bonds issued to refund
and refinance such bonds, have been fully paid and retired or when adequate provision has been made to
fully pay and retire the same, and all other conditions of the resolution or trust agreement authorizing and
securing the same have been satisfied and the lien of such resolution or trust agreement has been released
in accordance with the provisions of the bonds, the authority shall promptly do such things and execute
such deeds and conveyances as are necessary and required to convey title to such project or projects to such
participating health care facility , participating institution for higher education or participating institution
providing an educational program, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, all to the extent that title
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to such project or projects 1s not, at the time, vested in such participating health care facility , participating
institution for higher education or participating institution providing an educational program. [2007, c.
354, §17 (AMD).]

SECTION HISTORY
B9RL. o 303, 81 ((NEW). 1978, ¢, 680, 8§15 (AMR). 1821 T 50y 815
(aMD) . 1993, c. 390, 820 (aMp). 2007, c. 354, §17 (aMD).

22 §2059. NOTES OF THE AUTHORITY

The authority is authorized from time to time to issue its negotiable notes for any corporate purpose,
including the payment of all or any part of the cost of any project, and renew from time to time any notes
by the issuance of new notes, whether the notes to be renewed have or have not matured. The authority
may issue notes partly to renew notes or to discharge other obligations then outstanding and partly for any
other purpose. The notes may be authorized, sold, executed and delivered in the same manner as bonds. Any
resolution or resolutions authorizing notes of the authority or any issue thereof may contain any provisions
which the authority is authorized to include in any resolution or resolutions authorizing bonds of the authority
or any issue thereof, and the authority may include in any notes any terms, covenants or conditions which it
is authorized to include in any bonds. All such notes shall be payable from the proceeds of bonds or renewal
notes or from the revenues of the authority or other moneys available therefor and not otherwise pledged,
subject only to any contractual rights of the holders of any of its notes or other obligations then outstanding.
[1971, . 303, §1 (NEW}.]

SECTION HISTORY
1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW).

22 §2060. BONDS OF THE AUTHORITY

1. Negotiable. The authority is authorized from time to time to issue its negotiable bonds for the
purpose of financing all or a part of the cost of any projects authorized hereby. In anticipation of the sale of
such bonds, the authority may issue negotiable bond anticipation notes and may renew the same from time
to time. Such notes shall be paid from any revenues of the authority or other moneys available therefor and
not otherwise pledged, or from the proceeds of sale of the bonds of the authority in anticipation of which
they were issued. The notes shall be issued in the same manner as the bonds. Such notes and the resolution
or resolutions authorizing the same may contain any provisions, conditions or limitations which a bond
resolution of the authority may contain.

[ 1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW) .1]

2. General obligations. Except as may otherwise be expressly provided by the authority, every issue
of its bonds, notes or other obligations is a general obligation of the authority payable from revenues or
money of the authority available for the payment of the obligation and not otherwise pledged, subject only
to agreements with the holders of particular bonds, notes or other obligations pledging particular revenues
or money and subject to any agreements with a participating health care facility , participating institution
for higher education or participating institution providing an educational program. Notwithstanding that
such bonds, notes or other obligations may be payable from a special fund, they are and must be deemed
to be for all purposes negotiable instruments within the meaning of and for all the purposes of the Uniform
Commercial Code, Article 8, subject only to the provisions of such bonds, notes or other obligations for
registration.

[ 2007, . 354, 8§18 (AMD) .]
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3. Issuance. The bonds may be issued as serial bonds or as term bonds, or the authority, in its discretion,
may issue bonds of both types. The bonds shall be authorized by resolution of the members of the authority
and shall bear such date or dates, mature at such time or times, not exceeding 50 years from their respective
dates, bear interest at such rate or rates, be payable at such time or times, be in such denominations, be in
such form, either coupon or registered, carry such registration privileges, be executed in such manner, be
payable in lawful money of the United States of America at such place or places, and be subject to such
terms of redemption, as such resolution or resolutions may provide. The bonds or notes may be sold at public
or private sale for such price or prices as the authority shall determine. The power to fix the date of sale of
bonds, to receive bids or proposals, to award and sell bonds, and to take all other necessary action to sell
and deliver bonds may be delegated to the executive director of the authority by resolution of the authority.
Pending preparation of the definitive bonds, the authority may issue interim receipts or certificates which
shall be exchanged for such definitive bonds.

[ 1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW) .]

4. Provisions. Any resolution or resolutions authorizing any bonds or any issue of bonds may contain
provisions, which shall be a part of the contract with the holders of the bonds to be authorized, as to:

A. Pledging the full faith and credit of the authority, the full faith and credit of a participating health
care facility , a participating institution of higher education or a participating institution providing

an educational program, all or a part of the revenues of a project or a revenue-producing contract or
contracts made by the authority with an individual, partnership, corporation or association or other body,
public or private, to secure the payment of the bonds or of a particular issue of bonds, subject to such
agreements with bondholders as may then exist; [2007, <. 354, §19 (AMD).]

B. The rentals, fees and other charges to be charged, and the amounts to be raised in each year thereby,
and the use and disposition of the revenues; [1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW).]

C. The setting aside of reserves or sinking funds, and the regulation and disposition thereof; [1971,
c. 303, §1 (NEW).]

D. Limitations on the right of the authority or its agent to restrict and regulate the use of the project;
[1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW).]

E. Limitations on the purpose to which the proceeds of sale of any issue of bonds then or thereafter to be
issued may be applied and pledging such proceeds to secure the payment of the bonds or any issue of the
bonds; [1971, c¢. 303, §1 (NEW).]

F. Limitations on the issuance of additional bonds, the terms upon which additional bonds may be issued
and secured and the refunding of outstanding bonds; [1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW).]

G. The procedure, if any, by which the terms of any contract with bondholders may be amended or
abrogated, the amount of bonds the holders of which must consent thereto, and the manner in which such
consent may be given; [1971, <. 303, §1 (NEW).]

H. Limitations on the amount of moneys derived from the project to be expended for operating,
administrative or other expenses of the authority; [1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW).]

I. Defining the acts or omissions to act which shall constitute a default in the duties of the authority to
holders of its obligations and providing the rights and remedies of such holders in the event of a default;
[1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW).]

J. The mortgaging of a project and the site thereof for the purpose of securing the bondholders; and
(1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW).]

K. Such other additional covenants, agreements and provisions as are judged advisable or necessary by
the authority for the security of the holders of such bonds. [1971, <. 303, §1 (NEW).]

[ 2007, c. 354, §19 (AMD) .]
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5. Personal liability. Neither the members of the authority nor any person executing the bonds or notes
shall be liable personally on the bonds or notes or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by
reason of the issuance thereof.

[ 1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW) .]

6. Purchase. The authority shall have power out of any funds available therefor to purchase its bonds
or notes, The authority may hold, pledge, cancel or resell such bonds, subject to and in accordance with
agreements with bondholders.

[ 1871, ¢. 303 81 (NEW) ]

SECTION HISTORY

171, . 303, §1 (KEW). 1878, &. 680, §§516,.17 (AMD}, 1991, ¢. 50
§§16,17 (aMp). 1993, e. 390, §§21,22 (aMD). 2007, c. 354, §8§18, 19
(aMD) .

22 §2061. PROCEDURE BEFORE ISSUANCE OF BONDS

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, the authority is not empowered to undertake any
project authorized by this chapter unless, prior to the issuance of any bonds or notes hereunder, the authority
has determined that: [1975, c. 264, (RPR).]

1. Assistance. Such a project will enable or assist a health care facility to fulfill its obligation to provide
health care facilities , an institution for higher education to provide educational facilities within the State or a
participating institution providing an educational program to fulfill its mission within the State;

f 2007 e 354 §20- {AMBY ]

2. Review. Each project for a health care facility has been reviewed and approved to the extent required
by the agency of the State that serves as the designated planning agency of the State or by the Department of
Health and Human Services in accordance with the provisions of the Maine Certificate of Need Act of 2002,
as amended, and is consistent with the cost containment provisions for health care and health coverage of the
State Health Plan adopted pursuant to Title 2, section 101, subsection 1, paragraph A

[ 2003, . 2, 8§71 (COCR) .]

3. Lease. Such a project will be leased to, or owned by, a health care facility , institution for higher
education or institution providing an educational program inside the State:

[ 2007, c. 354, §21 (AaMD) .]

4. Payment. Adequate provision has been or will be made for the payment of such project and that
under no circumstances will the State be obligated for the payment of such project, or for the payment of the
principal of, or interest on, any obligations issued to finance such project; and

{ 2001, c. 609, §2 (AaMD) .]

5. Projects for program of independent housing with services not required to be licensed. If the
project is for a program of independent housing with services that is not required to be licensed under this
Title, the participating health care facility has agreed to comply with the requirements applicable to assisted
living providers with regard to the standardized contract under section 7916 and residents' rights under section
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7902-A, subsection 6 and rules adopted pursuant to those provisions. This requirement does not apply to the
refinancing of an authority loan outstanding on April 1, 2002 or to a project specifically authorized under this
chapter.

[ 2001, c. 609, §3 (NEW)

SECTION HISTORY

1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW). 1973, c. 713, §7 (aMD). 1975, c, 264, (RPFR).
1979, c. 680, §18 (AMD). 1981, c. 455, (AMD). 1983, c. 579, §11 (aMD).
1991, <. 50, §§18-20 (aMp). 1991, c. 584, §5 (AMD). 1993, c. 390,
§§23-25 (AMD). 2001, c. 60%, §§1-3 (AMD). RR 2003, c. 2, §71 (COR).
2003, c. 469, §clé (AMD). 2003, c. 510, §Alé (AMD). 2003, c. 599, §€
(AMD) . 2003, c. 6B%, §B6 (REV). 2007, c. 354, §§20, 21 (AMD).

22 §2062. TRUST AGREEMENT TO SECURE BONDS

In the discretion of the authority, any bonds issued under this chapter may be secured by a trust
agreement by and between the authority and a corporate trustee or trustees, which may be any trust company
or bank having the powers of a trust company within or without the State. Such trust agreement or the
resolution providing for the issuance of such bonds may pledge or assign the revenues to be received or
proceeds of any contract or contracts pledged and may convey or morigage the project or any portion thereof.
Such trust agreement or resolution providing for the issuance of such bonds may contain such provisions
for protecting and enforcing the rights and remedies of the bondholders as may be reasonable and proper,
and not in violation of law, including particularly such provisions as have been specifically authorized to
be included in any resolution or resolutions of the anthority authorizing bonds thereof. Any bank or trust
company incorporated under the laws of this State, which may act as depositary of the proceeds of bonds or of
revenues or other moneys, may furnish such indemnifying bonds or pledge such securities as may be required
by the authority. Any such trust agreement may set forth the rights and remedies of the bondholders and of the
trustee or trustees, and may restrict the individual right of action by bondholders. In addition, any such trust
agreement or resolution may contain such other provisions as the authority may deem reasonable and proper
for the security of the bondholders. All expenses incurred in carrying out such trust agreement or resolution
may be treated as a part of the cost of the operation of a project. [18971, <. 302, §1 (NEW).)

SECTION HISTORY
1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW).

22 §2063. CREDIT OF STATE NOT PLEDGED

Bonds and notes issued under this chapter do not constitute or create a debt or debts, liability or liabilities
on behalf of the State or of a political subdivision of the State other than the authority or a loan of the credit
of the State or a pledge of the faith and credit of the State or of any such political subdivision other than the
authority, but are payable solely from the funds provided for the bonds and notes. All such bonds and notes
must contain on the face of the bonds and notes a statement to the effect that neither the State nor a political
subdivision of the State is obligated to pay the same or the interest on the bonds and notes, except from
revenues of the project or the portion of the project for which they are issued and that neither the faith and
credit nor the taxing power of the State or of a political subdivision of the State is pledged to the payment of
the principal of or the interest on such bonds or notes. The issuance of bonds or notes under this chapter may
not directly or indirectly or contingently obligate the State or a political subdivision of the State to levy or to
pledge any form of taxation whatever for the bonds and notes or to make an appropriation for their payment.
Nothing in this section may prevent nor be construed to prevent the authority from pledging its full faith and
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credit or the full faith and credit of a participating health care facility , participating institution for higher
education or participating institution providing an educational program to the payment of bonds or notes or
issue of notes or bonds authorized pursuant to this chapter. [2007, c. 354, §22 (AMD).]

SECTION HISTORY
1971, c. 303, 81 (NEwW). 1979, c. 680, §19 (AMD). 1991, c. 50, §21
(AMD) . 1993, c. 390, 8§26 (AMD). 2007, c. 354, §22 (AMD).

22 §2064. RENTS AND CHARGES

The authority is authorized to fix, revise, charge and collect rates, rents, fees and charges for the use of
and for the services furnished or to be furnished by each project and to contract with a person, partnership,
association or corporation, or other body, public or private, in respect of rates, rents, fees and charges. Such
rates, rents, fees and charges must be fixed and adjusted in respect of the aggregate of rates, rents, fees and
charges from such project so as to provide funds sufficient with other revenues or money available for the
project, if any, to pay the cost of maintaining, repairing and operating the project and each and every portion
of the project, to the extent that the payment of such cost has not otherwise been adequately provided for,
to pay the principal of and the interest on outstanding bonds or notes of the authority issued in respect of
such project as the same become due and payable, and to create and maintain reserves required or provided
for in a resolution authorizing, or trust agreement securing, such bonds or notes of the authority. Such rates,
rents, fees and charges are not subject to supervision or regulation by a department, commission, board,
body, bureau or agency of this State other than the authority. A sufficient amount of the revenues derived in
respect of a project, except such part of such revenues as may be necessary to pay the cost of maintenance,
repair and operation and to provide reserves and for renewals, replacements, extensions, enlargements and
improvements as may be provided for in the resolution authorizing the issuance of bonds or notes of the
authority or in the trust agreement securing the same, must be set aside at such regular intervals as may
be provided in such resolution or trust agreement in a sinking or other similar fund that is pledged to, and
charged with, the payment of the principal of and the interest on such bonds or notes as the same become
due, and the redemption price or the purchase price of bonds retired by call or purchase as therein provided.
Such pledge is valid and binding from the time when the pledge is made; the rates, rents, fees and charges
and other revenues or other money so pledged and later received by the authority are immediately subject
to the lien of such pledge without any physical delivery of the revenues or money or further act, and the
lien of any such pledge is valid and binding as against all parties having claims of any kind in tort, contract
or otherwise against the authority, irrespective of whether such parties have notice of the lien. Neither the
resolution nor a trust agreement nor any other agreement nor any lease by which a pledge is created need be
filed or recorded except in the records of the authority. The use and disposition of money to the credit of such
sinking or other similar fund are subject to the resolution authorizing the issuance of such bonds or notes or
of such trust agreement. Except as may otherwise be provided in such resolution or such trust agreement,
such sinking or other similar fund may be a fund for all such bonds or notes issued to finance projects at a
particular participating health care facility , participating institution for higher education or participating
institution providing an educational program without distinction or priority of one over another, provided
the authority in any such resolution or trust agreement may provide that such sinking or other similar fund
is the fund for a particular project at a participating health care facility , participating institution for higher
education or participating institution providing an educational program and for the bonds issued to finance a
particular project and may, additionally, permit and provide for the issuance of bonds having a subordinate
lien in respect of the security authorized in this chapter to other bonds of the authority, and, in such case,
the authority may create separate sinking or other similar funds in respect of such subordinate lien bonds.

[2007, c. 354, §23 (AMD).]

SECTION HISTORY

1971, <. 303, §1 (NEw). 1973, c. 713, §8 (AMD). 1979, c. 680, §20
(AMD) . 1991, c¢. 50, §22 (AMD). RR 1993, c. 2, §12 (COR). 1993, c. 390,
§27 (AMD). 2007, c. 354, §23 (AMD).
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22 §2065. TRUST FUNDS

All moneys received pursuant to the authority of this chapter whether as proceeds from the sale of bonds
or notes or as revenues, are trust funds to be held and applied solely as provided in this chapter. Any officer
with whom, or any bank or trust company with which. such moneys are deposited shall act as trustee of such
moneys and shall hold and apply the same for the purposes of this chapter, subject to such regulations as this
chapter and the resolution authorizing the bonds or notes of any issue or the trust agreement securing such
bonds or notes provide. [1271, c. 303, §1 (NEW).]

SECTION HISTORY
1971, e©. 303, §1 (NEW).

22 §2066. ENFORCEMENT OF RIGHTS AND DUTIES

Any holder of bonds, notes, bond anticipation notes, other notes or other obligations 1ssued under this
chapter or any of the coupons appertaining thereto, and the trustee or trustees under any trust agreement,
except to the extent the rights herein given may be restricted by any resolution authorizing the issuance of,
or any such trust agreement securing, such bonds, may, either at law or in equity, by suit, action, mandamus
or other proceedings, protect and enforce any and all rights under the laws of the State or granted under this
chapter or under such resolution or trust agreement, and may enforce and compel the performance of all
duties required by this chapter or by such resolution or trust agreement to be performed by the authority or by
any officer, employee or agent thereof, including the fixing, charging and collecting of the rates, rents, fees
and charges herein authorized and required by such resolution or trust agreement to be fixed, established and
collected. (1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW).]

SECTION HISTORY
1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW).

22 §2067. EXEMPTION FROM TAXATION

The exercise of the powers granted by this chapter will be in all respects for the benefit of the people
of the State, for the increase of their commerce, welfare and prosperity. and for the improvement of their
health and living conditions, and will constitute the performance of an essential governmental function,
and neither the authority nor its agent shall or may be required to pay any taxes or assessments upon or
in respect of a project or projects or any property acquired, used by the authority or its agent or under the
jurisdiction, control, possession or supervision of the same or upon the activities of the authority or its agent
in the operation or maintenance of a project or projects under this chapter, or upon income or other revenues
received therefrom, and any bonds, notes and other obligations issued under this chapter, their transfer and
the income therefrom, including any profit made on the sale thereof, as well as the income and property of the
authority, are at all times exempt from taxation of every kind by the State and by the municipalities and all
other political subdivisions of the State. [1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW).]

SECTION HISTORY
1971, e. 303, §1 (NEW).

22 §2068. BONDS DECLARED LEGAL INVESTMENTS

Bonds and notes issued by the authority under this chapter are hereby made securities in which all public
officers and public bodies of the State and its political subdivisions, all insurance companies and associations
and other persons carrying on an insurance business, trust companies, banks, bankers, banking associations,
savings banks and savings associations, including savings and loan associations, credit unions, building and
loan associations, investment companies, executors, administrators, trustees and other fiduciaries, pension,
profit-sharing, retirement funds and other persons carrying on a banking business, and all other persons
whatsoever, who are now or may hereafter be, authorized to invest in bonds or other obligations of the State,
may properly and legally invest funds. including capital in their control or belonging to them. Such bonds and
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notes are hereby made securities which may properly and legally be deposited with and received by any state
or municipal or public officer or any agency or political subdivision of the State for any purpose for which the
deposit of bonds or other obligations of the State is now or may hereafter be authorized by law. [1971, c.
303, §1 (NEW).]

SECTION HISTORY
1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW).

22 §2069. ANNUAL REPORTS

Within 4 months after the close of each fiscal year of the authority, the executive director of the authority
shall prepare and submit a complete financial report to the Governor and to the Legislature, duly audited
and certified by the auditor of accounts of the operations and activities of the authority during the preceding
fiscal year to be distributed in the same way as state departmental reports. Within 5 months after the close
of the authority's fiscal year, the executive director shall prepare and submit to the Legislature a detailed
report on the activities of the authority during the preceding fiscal year. The report must contain information
concerning the authority's financial and operational activities, including, but not limited to, resolutions,
projects, grants, mortgages and loans. The report also must address continuing and potential problems with
finances, operations and projects. {1999, c¢. 122, §1 (AMD).]

SECTION HISTORY
1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW). 1975, c. 771, §218 (AMD). 1999, c. 122, §1
(AMD) .

22 §2070. REFUNDING BONDS

1. Refunding. The authority is authorized to provide for the issuance of bonds of the authority for the
purpose of refunding any bonds of the authority then outstanding, including the payment of any redemption
premium thereon and any interest accrued or to accrue to the earliest or subsequent date of redemption,
purchase or maturity of such bonds, and, if deemed advisable by the authority, for the additional purpose
of paying all or any part of the cost of constructing and acquiring additions, improvements, extensions or
enlargements of a project or any portion thereof.

[ 1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW) .]

2. Use of proceeds. The proceeds of any such bonds issued for the purpose of refunding outstanding
bonds may, in the discretion of the authority, be applied to the purchase or retirement at maturity or
redemption of such outstanding bonds either on their earliest or any subsequent redemption date or upon the
purchase or at the maturity thereof and may, pending such application, be placed in escrow to be applied to
such purchase or retirement at maturity or redemption on such date as may be determined by the authority.

[ 1971, c. 303, &1 (NEW) .]

3. Escrow proceeds. Any such escrowed proceeds, pending such use, may be invested and reinvested
in obligations of, or guaranteed by, the United States of America, or in certificates of deposit or time deposits
secured by obligations of, or guaranteed by, the United States of America, maturing at such time or times as
shall be appropriate to assure the prompt payment, as to principal, interest and redemption premium, if any,
of the outstanding bonds to be so refunded. The interest, income and profits, if any, earned or realized on
any such investment may also be applied to the payment of the outstanding bonds to be so refunded. After
the terms of the escrow have been fully satisfied and carried out, any balance of such proceeds and interest,
income and profits, if any, earned or realized on the investments thereof may be returned to the authority for
use by it in any lawful manner.

[ 1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW) .]
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4. Investments. The portion of the proceeds of any such bonds issued for the additional purpose of
paying all or any part of the cost of constructing and acquiring additions, improvements, extensions or
enlargements of a project may be invested and reinvested in obligations of, or guaranteed by, the United
States of America, or in certificates of deposit or time deposit secured by obligations of, or guaranteed by, the
United States of America, maturing not later than the time or times when such proceeds will be needed for the
purpose of paying all or any part of such cost. The interest, income and profits, if any, earned or realized on
such investment may be applied to the payment of all or any part of such cost or may be used by the authority
in any lawful manner.

{ 1972, c. 303, §1 (NEW) .]

5. Conditions. All such bonds shall be subject to this chapter in the same manner and to the same extent
as other bonds issued pursuant to this chapter.

[ 1971, e. 303, §1 (NEW) .1

SECTION HISTORY
1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW).

22 §2071. SOURCE OF PAYMENT OF EXPENSES

All expenses incurred in carrying out this chapter shall be payable solely from funds provided under the
authority of this chapter and no liability or obligation shall be incurred by the authority under this chapter
beyond the extent to which moneys shall have been provided under this chapter. [1271, c. 303, &1
(NEW) . ]

SECTION HISTORY
1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW).

22 §2072. AGREEMENT OF THE STATE

The State pledges to and agrees with the holders of bonds, notes and other obligations issued under this
chapter, and with those parties who may enter into contracts with the authority pursuant to this chapter, that
the State will not limit, alter, restrict or impair the rights hereby vested in the authority and the participating
health care facilities , the participating institutions for higher education and the participating institutions
providing an educational program to acquire, construct, reconstruct, maintain and operate a project as
defined in this chapter or to establish, revise, charge and collect rates, rents, fees and other charges as may be
convenient or necessary to produce sufficient revenues to meet the expenses of maintenance and operation
of the project and to fulfill the terms of any agreements made with the holders of bonds, notes or other
obligations authorized and issued by this chapter, and with the parties who may enter into contracts with the
authority pursuant to this chapter, or in any way impair the rights or remedies of the holders of such bonds,
notes or other obligations of such parties until the bonds, notes and such other obligations, together with
interest on the bonds, notes and other obligations, with interest on any unpaid installment of interest and all
costs and expenses in connection with an action or proceeding by or on behalf of the bondholders, are fully
met and discharged and such contracts are fully performed on the part of the authority. Nothing in this chapter
precludes such limitation or alteration if and when adequate provision is made by law for the protection of the
holders of such bonds, notes or other obligatons of the authority or those entering into such contracts with the
authority. The authority is authorized to include this pledge and undertaking for the State in such bonds, notes
or other obligations or contracts. [2007, c. 354, §24 (AMD).]

SECTION HISTORY
1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW). 1979, c. 680, §21 (AMD), 1993, c. 390, §28
{AMD) . 2007, c. 354, §24 (AMD).
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22 §2073. ACT CUMULATIVE; NO NOTICE REQUIRED

Neither this chapter nor anything contained in this chapter is or shall be construed as a restriction or
limitation upon any powers which the Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority might
otherwise have under any laws of this State, and this chapter is cumulative of any such powers. This chapter
does and shall be construed to provide a complete, additional and alternative method for the doing of the
things authorized thereby and shall be regarded as supplemental and additional to powers conferred by other
laws. Neither the making of contracts nor the issuance of bonds, notes, refunding bonds and other obligations
pursuant to the provisions of this chapter need comply with the requirements of any other state law applicable
to the making of contracts and the issuance of bonds, notes and other obligations, for the construction and
acquisition of any project undertaken pursuant to this chapter. No proceedings, notice or approval shall be
required for the issuance of any bonds, notes and other obligations or any instrument as security therefor,
except as is provided in this chapter. [1979, c. 680, 8§22 (AMD).]

SECTION HISTORY
1971, c. 303, 81 (NEW). 197%; c. 680, §22 (AMD).

22 §2074. ACT LIBERALLY CONSTRUED

This chapter, being necessary for the welfare of the State and its inhabitants, shall be liberally construed
50 as to effect its purposes. [1971, c. 303, §1 (NEW).]

SECTION HISTORY
1971, <. 303, §1 (NEW).

22 §2075. MAINE HEALTH FACILITIES' RESERVE FUND

1. Maine Health Facilities' Reserve Fund. The authority shall establish and maintain a reserve fund
called the "Maine Health Facilities' Reserve Fund" in which is deposited all money appropriated by the
State for the purpose of that fund, all proceeds of bonds required to be deposited in the fund by terms of
any contract between the authority and its bondholders or any resolution of the authority with respect to the
proceeds of bonds and any other money or funds of the authority that the authority determines to deposit in
the fund and any other money made available to the authority only for the purposes of the fund from any other
SOUTCE Or SOurces.

A. Money in the reserve fund is held and applied solely to the payment of the interest on and principal of
bonds secured by the reserve fund and sinking fund payments referred to in this chapter with respect to
bonds secured by the reserve fund as the interest, principal and sinking fund payments become due and
payable; and for the retirement of bonds, including the payment of any redemption preminm required to
be paid when any bonds are redeemed or retired before maturity. Money may not be withdrawn from the
fund if the withdrawal reduces the amount in the reserve fund to an amount less than the required debt
service reserve, except for:

(1) Payment of interest then due and payable on bonds;
(2) Payment of the principal of bonds then maturing and payable:
(3) Sinking fund payments referred to in this chapter with respect to bonds;

(4) The retirement of hbonds in accordance with the terms of any contract between the authority and
its bondholders; or

(5) The payment for which other money of the authority is not then available for payment of
interest, principal or sinking fund payments or the retirement of bonds in accordance with the terms
of any such contract. [1991, c¢. 584, §6 (NEW).]
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B. As used in this chapter, "required debt service reserve” means, as of any date of computation, the
amount or amounts required to be on deposit in the reserve fund as provided by resolution of the
authority. For purposes of this chapter, the amount of any letter of credit, insurance contract, surety bond
or similar financial undertaking available to be drawn upon and applied to obligations to which money
in the reserve fund may be applied is deemed to be and must be counted as money in the Maine Health
Facilities’ Reserve Fund, capital reserve funds or any other reserve fund as provided by resolution of the
authority. The required debt service reserve is, as of any date of computation, an aggregate amount equal
to at least the largest amount of money required by the terms of all contracts between the authority and
holders of bonds secured by the reserve fund to be raised in the current or any succeeding calendar year
for:

(1) The payment of interest on and maturing principal of that portion of outstanding bonds secured
by the reserve fund; and

(2) Sinking fund payments required by the terms of any such contracts to sinking funds established
for the payment or redemption of those bonds. [1995, <. 179, §4 (AMD).]

C. To ensure the maintenance of the required debt service reserve in the reserve fund, there must be
annually appropriated and paid to the authority for deposit in the fund the sum, if any, certified by the
executive director of the authority to the Governor, required to restore the reserve fund to an amount
equal to the required debt service reserve. On or before December 1st of each year, the executive director
shall make and deliver to the Governor a certificate stating the sum and the sum or sums so certified
must be appropriated and paid to the authority during the current state fiscal year.

To ensure the maintenance of the required debt service reserve in any capital reserve fund to which, at
the direction of the authority pursuant to the resolution or resolutions establishing a capital reserve fund,
this provision applies, there is annually appropriated and paid to the authority for deposit in the fund
the sum, if any, certified by the executive director of the authority to the Governor, required to restore
the reserve fund to an amount equal to the required debt service reserve. On or before December 1st of
each year, the director shall make and deliver to the Governor a certificate stating the sum and the sum
or sums so certified must be appropriated and paid to the authority during the current state fiscal year.
[1991, c. 584, §6 (NEW).]

[ 1995, c. 179, &4 (AMD) .]

2. Capital reserve fund. This subsection applies to capital reserve funds.

A. The authority may establish and maintain one or more special funds called "capital reserve funds” in
which must be deposited:

(1) All money appropriated by the State for the purpose of those funds;

(2) All proceeds of bonds required to be deposited in those funds by the terms of any contract
between the authority and its bondholders or any resolution of the authority with respect to the
proceeds of bonds;

(3) Any other money or funds of the authority that the authority determines to deposit in those
funds; and

(4) Any other money made available to the authority only for the purposes of the fund from any
other source or sources. [1991, c. 584, §6 (NEW).]

B. Money in any capital reserve fund is held and applied solely:

(1) To pay the interest on and principal of bonds secured by the capital reserve fund and sinking
fund payments referred to in this chapter with respect to bonds secured by the capital reserve fund
as the interest and principal becomes due and payable; and

(2) To retire bonds secured by the capital reserve fund, including the payment of any redemption
premium required to be paid when any such bonds are redeemed or retired before maturity.
[1991, c¢. 584, §6 (NEW).]
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C. The minimum amount of any capital reserve fund must be equal to the amounts required under the
resolutions pursuant to which the bonds secured by the capital reserve fund are issued. These amounts
are referred to in this chapter as the "required minimum reserve.” With respect to bonds secured by

a capital reserve fund for which the resolution authorizing the issuance of those bonds states that the
provisions of subsection |, paragraph C apply, the required minimum reserve is, as of any date of
computation, an aggregate amount equal to at least the largest amount of money required by the terms
of all contracts between the authority and its bondholders of the bonds to be raised in the current or any
succeeding calendar year for the payment of interest on and maturing principal of that portion of the
outstanding bonds or sinking fund payments required by the terms of any such contracts to sinking funds
established for the payment or redemption of the bonds, all calculated on the assumption that the bonds
will cease to be outstanding after the date of the computation because of the payment of the bonds at
their respective maturities and the payments of the required money to sinking funds and the application
of the sinking funds in accordance with the terms of all such contracts to the retirement of the bonds.
[1991, c. 584, §6 (NEW).]

D. Money in any capital reserve fund may not be withdrawn if the withdrawal reduces the amount in the
capital reserve fund to an amount less than the required minimum reserve for all such bonds issued and
to be issued that are secured by the capital reserve fund, except for:

(1) Payment of interest then due and payable on bonds secured by the capital reserve fund then
maturing and payable;

(2) Sinking fund payments required by the terms of any such contracts to sinking funds established
for the payment of redemption of the bonds;

(3) The retirement of bonds secured by the capital reserve fund in accordance with the terms of any
contract between the authority and its bondholders; and

(4) The payments for which other money of the authority is not then available for payment of
interest or principal or sinking fund payments or retirement of bonds secured by the capital reserve
fund in accordance with the terms of any such contract. [1991, c¢. 584, §6 (NEW).]

[ 1991, c. 584, §6 (NEW) .]

SECTION HISTORY
1991, c. 584, §6 (NEW). 1995, c. 179, §4 (AMD).

22 §2076. AUTHORITY TO INTERCEPT FEDERAL AND STATE AID

1. Treasurer to withhold funds. When the authority notifies the Treasurer of State in writing that an
entity eligible to use the authority is in default as to the payment of principal or interest on any securities of
that entity sold through or by the authority, or that the authority has reasonable grounds to predict that the
entity will not be able to make a full payment when that payment is due, the Treasurer of State shall withhold
any funds in the Treasurer of State's custody that are due or payable to the eligible entity until the amount
of the principal or interest due or anticipated to be due has been paid to the authority or the trustee for the
bondholders, or the authority notifies the Treasurer of State that satisfactory arrangements have been made for
the payment of the principal and interest. Funds subject to withholding under this subsection include, but are
not limited to, federal and state grants, contracts, allocations or appropriations.

[ 1991, c. 584, 8§87 (NEW) .]

2. Withheld funds to be made available to authority. If the authority further notifies the Treasurer of
State in writing that no other arrangements are satisfactory, the Treasurer of State shall deposit in the General
Fund and make available to the authority any funds withheld from the eligible entity under this section. The
authority shall apply the funds to the costs incurred by the eligible entity, including payments required to be
made to the authority or trustee for any bondholders of debt service on any debt issued by the authority for the
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eligible entity or required by the terms of any other law or contract to be paid to the holders or owners of debt
issued on behalf of the eligible entity upon failure or default, or reasonable expectation of failure or default, of
the eligible institution to pay the principal or interest on its securities when due.

[ 1991, c. 584, §7 (NEW) .1

3. Other agencies to be notified. Concurrent with any notice from the authority to the Treasurer
of State under this section, the authority shall notify any other agency, department or authority of State
Government that exercises regulatory, supervisory or statutory control over the operations of the eligible
entity. Upon notification, the agency, department or authority shall immediately undertake reviews to
determine what action, if any, that agency, department or authority should undertake to assist in the payment
by the eligible entity of the money due or steps that the agencies of the State other than the Treasurer of State
or the authority should take to assure the continued prudent operation of the eligible entity or provision of
services to the people served by the eligible entity.

[ 1991, c. 584, §7 (NEW) .]

SECTION HISTORY
1991, c. 584, §7 (NEW).

22 §2077. LEASE FINANCE PROGRAM

1. Establishment; administration. A lease finance program under the jurisdiction and direction
of the authority is established to provide for or assist with financing leases for eligible entities to acquire
the use of personal or real property. The lease finance program must provide methods of direct or indirect
financing, insurance, borrowing, credit enhancement and other financial tools for the lease, lease-purchase,
rental or right of use of any real or personal property or other authorized activity of an eligible entity. For
the purposes authorized in this section the University of Maine System and its colleges and universities are
eligible participating institutions under the definition of eligible participant for the authority.

[ 1997, c. 385, §5 (NEW) .]

2. Eligible entity defined. For purposes of this section "eligible entity” means an eligible entity, as
defined in section 2053, subsection 3-B, that is organized pursuant to the United States Internal Revenue
Code, Section 501.

[ 1997, c. 385, §5 (NEW) .]

3. Powers. The authority may make loans or borrow money on behalf of any eligible entity for any of
the purposes of this section. The authority may purchase, refinance or enter into leases with or on behalf of
any eligible entity. The authority may purchase or refinance for or on behalf of any eligible entity any lease
that is held or issued by a 3rd party. The authority may issue its bonds or notes for the purchase of leases
on behalf of any eligible entity or any group of those entities or for the establishment of a pool of funds to
be used for the purchase, financing or other means of acquisition of leases. The authority shall establish
prudent standards for the terms and conditions of any lease financing made available to any eligible entity
or any group of those entities. Terms and conditions include, but are not limited to, the general obligation of
the eligible entity, liens on any real or personal property held by the eligible entity whether financed by the
specific lease or not and sinking funds held by or available to the eligible entity.

[ 1997, c. 385, §5 (NEW) .]

4. Application; eligibility. The authority may prescribe and require an application or procedure for
an eligible entity to participate in any form of lease financing assistance made available under this section.
An application must include any information that the authority decides is necessary for implementing this
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section, including, but not limited to, supporting documents, certifications, feasibility studies, financial data,
utilization studies or other applicable information. An eligible entity may not participate in any lease finance
assistance made available under this section unless, in the sole judgment of the authority, the eligible entity
has satisfactorily demonstrated that it will pay the principal, interest, fees and related charges on the bond,
debt, or other instrument issued by the authority on its behalf or purchased by the bank from the eligible entity
as well as the costs for operation and maintenance of any real or personal property acquired or made available
for use by the eligible entity by virtue of the lease assistance. Satisfactory assurance can be demonstrated if an
eligible entity has:

A. Established a method of payment by fee, rate, charges, assessment or other mechanism satisfactory to
the authority; or [1997, c. 385, §5 (NEW).]

B. Provided collateral sufficient to ensure payment. [1997, c. 385, §5 (NEW).]
[ 1997, c. 385, §5 (NEW) .]

5. State not liable. Bonds, notes, leases or other forms of debt or liability entered into or issued by the
authority under this section are not in any way a debt or liability of the State and do not constitute a loan of
the credit of the State or create any debt or debts, liability or liabilities on behalf of the State or constitute a
pledge of the faith and credit of the State. Each bond, note, lease or other evidence of debt or liability entered
into by the authority must contain a statement to the effect that the authority is obligated to pay the principal,
interest, redemption premium, if any, and any other amounts payable solely from the sources pledged for that
purpose by the authority and that neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State is pledged to the
payment of the principal, interest, premium, charge, fee or other amount of the bond, note, lease or other form
of indebtedness, as the case may be.

[ 1997, c. 385, §5 (NEW) .]

6. Lease finance agreement. I.case financing and refinancing, lease purchase, loans and other forms
of indebtedness or obligations incurred by an eligible entity due the authority under the terms of this section
must be evidenced by and be made in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in a lease finance
agreement to be executed by the authority and any eligible entity or any group of those entities. The lease
finance agreement must specify, among other things, the terms and conditions for the disbursement of lease
finance proceeds, the term and interest rate of the lease, the scheduling of lease payments or bond payments,
as the case may be, and any other terms and conditions determined necessary or desirable by the authority.

[ 1997, c. 385, §5 (NEW) .]

7. Utilization of municipal lease finance program. The authority, for the benefit of its eligible entities,
may utilize the municipal lease finance program created in Title 30-A, section 6006-C for the purposes of this
section.

[ 1997, c. 385, §5 (NEW) .]

SECTION HISTORY
1997, <. 385, §5 (NEW).

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish
this material, we require that you include the following disclaimer in your publication:

All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this
publication reflects changes made through the Second Regular Session of the 124th Legislature, is current through
October 1, 2010, and is subject to change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially certified
by the Secretary of State. Refer to the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated and supplements for certified text.
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The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory
publication you may produce. Our goal is not to restrict publishing activity, but t keep track of who
is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication and to preserve the State's copyright rights.

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot petform research for or provide legal advice or
interpretation of Maine law to the public. If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney.
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New Issue: MOODY'S DOWNGRADES MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES
AUTHORITY'S RESERVE FUND RESOLUTION BONDS TO A1 FROM Aa3, AFFECTING $1.4
BILLION IN OUTSTANDING DEBT; OUTLOOK IS STABLE

Global Credit Research - 22 Dec 2010
A1 RATING ASSIGNED TO $48 MILLION OF SERIES 2011A,B&C BONDS

Health Care-Hospital
ME

Moody's Rating
ISSUE RATING
Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A Al
Sale Amount $37,500,000
Expected Sale Date 01/15/11
Rating Description Revenue Bonds

Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B Al
Sale Amount $4,100,000
Expected Sale Date 01/15/11
Rating Description Revenue Bonds

Revenue Bonds, Series 2011C A1
Sale Amount $6,000,000
Expected Sale Date 01/15/11
Rating Description Revenue Bonds

Moody’s Outiook Stable

Opinion

NEW YORK, Dec 22, 2010 -- Moody's Investors Service has downgraded the Maine Health and Higher Educational Faciiities Authority’s
(MHHEFA) Reserve Eund Resolution bond rating to A1 from Aa3, affecting $1.4 billion in outstanding debt. At this time, we have also assigned
A1 ratings to $48 million of Series 2011AB&C fixed rate revenue bonds to be issued under the Reserve Fund Resolution. The outlook is stable.

The rating action conciudes a rating review for possible downgrade initiated on October 28, 2010 following the application of our new rating
methodology for pool program debt, "U.S. Municipal Pool Program Debt" dated August 25, 2010.

RATINGS RATIONALE

The downgrade to A1 from Aa3 refiects the application of our recently released methodology for pool program debt. The methodology’s key
rating factors and weights assigned to each factor are as follows: underlying credit quality and default tolerance (50%), pool size and diversity
(15%), debt structure and legal covenants (20%), and management and govemance (15%). The methodology states that for pool program
structures that inciude a moral obligation pledge of their respective states to replenish a draw on the debt service reserve fund in the event of a
loan repayment deficiency, we will compare the credit quality of morai obligation pledge to the undertying pool program rating and apply the
higher of the two. In this case, we have determined the credit quality of the moral obligation pledge to be A1 and equivalent to the pool program
rating of A1 assigned through the application of the U.S. Municipal Pool Program Debt methodology. The moral obligation pledge is two notches
below the state's general obligation bond rafing of Aa2 with a stable outlook.

Considering the factors driving the assessment of the pool program rating, we believe MHHEFA demonstrates very strong characteristics
related to debt structure and legal covenants as well as management and governance, and demonstrates strong characteristics overall refated
to pool size and diversity. We believe these strengths compensate for our estimate of the debt-weighted average pool credit quality in the Baa
range as well as a concentration of ioans among the top five and top ten borrowers. '

USE OF PROCEEDS: The proceeds will be used to refund existing debt of the following entities. The proceeds of the Series 2011A Bonds will
be loaned by the Authority to Cove's Edge, Inc., Maine Medical Center, Miles Memorial Hospital, St. Andrews Hospital and Waldo County General
Hospital. The proceeds of the Series 2011B Bonds will be ioaned by the Authority to Maine Medical Center. The proceeds of the Series 2011C
Bonds will be loaned by the Authority to Cove's Edge and Miles Memorial Hospital.

LEGAL SECURITY: Bonds are secured by several, not joint, obligations of each loan participant pursuant to indvidual loan agreements and a
reserve fund, which holds a moral obligation of the state (general obligation bonds rated Aa2 with stable outiook) to replenish any deficiency in
those reserves. Each participant in a particular bond series enters into a loan agreement to repay their portion of the annual debt service
obligation and share in funding the debt service reserve fund. in addition to the security of the Reserve Fund pursuant to the Reserve Fund
Resolution, individual bond series are typically secured by mortgages and gross revenues of the participants inthat series.



STRENGTHS

*The establishment of the Reserve Fund Resolution, which obligates the state morally, though not legally, on MHHEFAbonds to make up any
deficiency that may occur in the reserve fund through annual appropriations

*Legal provisions under the resolution, which requires the funding of a reserve fund at maximum annual debt service of the bonds, providing an
adequate level of reserves along with the availability of additional operating funds at the Authority, a portion of which are pledged to bondholders

*Intercept provisions established under the MHHEFA Act, which empowers the state treasurer to intercept funds within the state's custody
(including Medicaid funds or state appropriations for a public higher education institution) due to a pool borrower and redirect these funds for
debt service, even if there is only a potential for default

*Adequate credit quality and essentiality of the largest borrowers in the program, although as discussed below the economy and financial
market volatility have affected the credit quality of the top ten borrowers

*Strict state certificate of need regulations for healthcare providers to construct facilities, which limits new competition and moderates capital
programs and debt issuances

*Strong oversight and administration of the program and demonstrated effectiveness in other programs administered by the Authority

CHALLENGES
*State general fiscal and Medicaid funding pressures have affected healthcare borrowers in the pool

*Concentration of loans in the top five borrowers at approximately 39% of the pool
*Bonds are secured by several, not joint, obligations of each loan participant pursuant to individual loan agreements and reserve fund

*Concentration of pool participants among healthcare organizations (which increased last year following the withdrawal of Bowdoin Coliege as
a participant), which generally experience variability in financial performance and more recently have been challenged by the effects of the
economy, including higher charity care and softer volumes

LEGAL PROVISIONS AND DEBT STRUCTURE VERY STRONG

The Reserve Fund Resolution, adopted in 1991, was established to secure the payment of bonds designated by the Authority and issued to
assist participating health care providers, higher education institutions, and other eligible facilities obtain capital. Bonds issued under this
resolution enjoy the security of the reserve fund, which is funded with bond proceeds and must equal at least maximum annual debt service on
the bonds outstanding under this program. The Reserve Fund Resolution, which established the program, obligates the state morally, though
not legally, to make up any deficiency that may occur in this fund through annual appropriations. Funds in excess of the reserve requirements
(derived mainly from investment eamings) are heid in the General Fund and are also pledged to debt service. In addition, the Authority may use
its operating fund to support debt service, although not legally obligated to do so. The Authority’s accumulated operating cash and investments
and special discretionary reserve fund (which is pledged to bondholders) is a substantial $43 million.

Added security is derived from intercept provisions established under the Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority Act. Under
this act, the state treasurer is empowered to intercept funds within the state's custody due to a borrower and redirect these funds for debt
service, if the Authority believes the borrower may defauit on its debt obligation and notifies the State Treasurer. This provision can be
particularly effective given that the borrowers with the higher risk profile, such as nursing homes and human service providers, derive a
substantial percentage of their revenues from Medicaid and other state contracts. Currently approximately 20% of the portfolio (by number of
participants) is comprised of nursing homes, residential care facilities and other human service providers. This is another mechanism by which
the Authority can ensure debt payments will be made before payments are due to bondholders.

DEMONSTRATED OVERSIGHT OF PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION AND MONITORING PROCEDURES VIEWED VERY STRONGLY

Moody's believes additional security is provided through the Authority's well-established administration, monitoring procedures, and payment
collection mechanisms, which have been tested in other programs administered by the Authority. The Authority, pending review of the
borrower’s finances and relevant statistical information, approves loans to individual borrowers. The Authority continues to monitor finances of
all active borrowers based upon quarterly statements and annual audits to ensure the borrowers' continued ability to meet their debt obligations.
The Authority also has additional indebtedness tests that limit a borrower's ability to incur debt outside of the program. For construction projects,
the Authority requires signed bids before bonds are issued to limit construction cost overruns and a feasibility study for new services.

Monthly loan payments are due on the 20th of every month except in June and December when payments are due on the 15th and are placed in
a sinking fund account until semiannual payments are due on January 1st and July 1st. Monthly payment requirements enable the Authority to
identify borrowers early who are experiencing financial difficulties. If two monthly payments are missed, the Authority will become actively
involved and initiate corrective measures.

Altthough a payment has not intentionally been missed under this program, payments have been missed in another program administered by
the Authority. In these situations, the Authority has sold facilities, using proceeds to repay debt obligations, and/or has taken over operations
resulting in improved financial performance. In every case, the Authority has taken steps to ensure that no borrower has missed its debt service
payment in the three programs administered by the Authority. Moody's views these past experiences of acting by the Authority to the benefit of

bondholders very positively.

ESSENTIALITY OF LARGEST BORROWERS PROVIDES SOME UNDERLYING STRENGTH, ALTHOUGH HEALTH CARE EXPOSURE AND
CONCENTRATIONAMONG TOP 5 BORROWERS IS HIGH

Moody's believes the credit strength of the largest borrowers in the program and essentiality of services provided by these borrowers provide
adequate security to bondholders although health care exposure and concentration among the top five borrowers is high.

The portfolio of borrowers currently includes 74 participants, with the top ten borrowers (by amount of debt outstanding under the program)



comprising approximately 60% of the total debt. Maine Health System (including subsidiaries) represents the largest borrower in the pool with
approximately 14% of outstanding debt. Hospitals represent about 60% of the debt outstanding, colieges and universities 27%, and the
remainder is diversified among continuing care retrement communities, residential care facilties, community mental health and long term care
facilities. These institutions are vital to the state's provision of health care and higher education, representing the majority of health care
providers and private higher education institutions in the state.

None of the borrowers have underlying ratings from Moody's, given that their sole debt offerings are through the MHHEFA. Moody's has
completed an intemal assessment of the portfolio’s credit quality. Based on our analysis, Moody’s believes that the debt weighted average credit
quality of the pool is in the Baa-range. The pool does have a degree of concentration, with the top 5 borrowers accounting for 39% of

outstanding loans.

Healthcare borrowers have been affected by fiscal pressures at the state level and by a weaker economy. Challenges include higher bad debt
and charity care and softer or declining volumes. Healthcare providers do benefit from the state's fairly stringent and broad Certificate of Need
regulations, which limits competition and the ability of hospitals to issue debt. The regulations limit annual approvals to only $250 million in total.
As aresult, despite on average lower operating performance and liquidity for many Maine hospitals and health systems, many of the health
systems in the top ten borrower group still have adequate debt measures because they carry relatively low debt loads.

Many of the smaller hospitals and nursing homes are affiliated or controlled by larger systems (which in some cases guarantee their obligations
or may be motivated to support them in the event of financial difficulty) and some of the hospitals are Critical Access Hospitals, which provides

additional Medicare reimbursement.

STATE MORAL OBLIGATION PLEDGE IS A1

The A1 moral obligation rating incorporates the timing, mechanics, and nofification related to the State of Maine's moral obligation pledge to
appropriate amounts needed to make up for a deficiency in the debt service reserve fund if it is drawn upon, after other sources are exhausted
to cover debt service on the bonds. The authorization to pledge the state’s moral obligation commitment to replenish the capital reserve fund is'
included in state statute. The debt service reserve fund requirement is the maximum annual debt service.

Debt service payments for the authority's bonds are due January 1 and July 1. Pursuant to statute, in the event of a shortfall in the debt service
reserve fund, the authority will certify to the governor on or before December 1 each year the amount needed to restore the fund to the required
level. According to the statute, the amount must be appropriated to restore the fund. Appropriation risk is one factor in the rating level of two
notches below the state's general obligation bond rating. There is potential timing risk in the event that notification occurs on December 1 for
debt service reserve fund replenishment by the following January 1, one month later. However, this would occur in the unlikely situation in which
the debt service reserve was tapped for both the prior January 1 and July 1 debt service payments and notification was delayed until December
1. Given the authority's overall strong management characteristics, we believe early nofification of a reserve fund draw would occur promptly,
providing sufficient time for a replenishment appropriation. The likelihood of a late or insufficient appropriation appears slim given the existing
statute regarding the state’s moral obligation and the substantial amount of debt (approximately $4.2 billion including other state authorities)
supported by the state's moral obligation pledge. In addition, the state's various moral obligation-backed debt obligations have strong track
records. The state published a study of its moral obligation debt in July 2009. Over more than two decades the state has not been called upon
to honor the moral obligation pledge, highlighting the management strength of the different programs as well as the performance of the pledged

revenues.

Maine's general obligation bonds are rated Aa2 with a stable outiook. The state's overall management strength is underscored by efforts to
rebuild reserves following the last recession and to control costs while stepping up state spending on K-12 education as mandated by a
citizens' initiative approved in 2004. Maine has recorded modest employment gains over the past year , and the state's unemployment rate
(7.3% in November 2010) remains well below the national level (9.3% in November 2010). Maine's financial operations are narrow, with slim
cash balances and rainy day funds depleted at the end of fiscal year 2009. Revenue underperformance due to the recession has challenged the
state to resolve sizeable budget gaps in recent years. A supplemental budget was adopted to close a shortfall in the 2010-2011 biennial budget,
using a combination of spending cuts as well as one-time resources. Ligquidity remains tight although Maine has used interfund borrowing to ’
avoid short term borrowing for cash flow in the past several years. in recent months, state revenues have tracked on target with forecast and
the state currently projects a surplus of approximately $111 million for fiscal year end 2011.

Outlook

The stable outlook reflects no anticipated changes to the legal structure or management of the pool program and our belief that the overall credit
quality of the pool is stable; additionally, the state's general obligation rating camies a stable outiook

What could change the rating--UP

-An upgrade of the state's general obligation rating

-improvement in the credit strength and loan diversity of the underlying pool of borrowers
What could change the rating-DOWN

-Downgrade of the state's general obligation rating

-Overali deterioration of credit quality of pool participants

KEY FACTS:

Pre-sale Debt Outstanding under the Reserve Fund Resolution; $1,361 million

Number of borrowers: 74

Percent of loans to top five borrowers: 38%

Percent of borrowers consisting of less than 1% of pool: 66%



CONTACTS
Issuer: Robert Lenna, Executive Director, Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority, (207) 622-1958

Mchael Goodwin, Program Officer, Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority, (207) 622-1958

Underwriter: Jan Blazewski, Raymond James, 215-640-3154

The last rating action with respect to the Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority was on October 28, 2010 when the Aa3 rating
was placed on Watchlist for potential downgrade.

The principal methodology used in this rating was U.S. Municipal Poof Program Debt published in August 2010.
REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

Information sources used to prepare the credit rating are the following: parties involved in the ratings, public information.
Moody's investors Service considers the quality of information available on the credit satisfactory for the purposes of assigning a credit rating.

Moody's adopts all necessary measures so that the information it uses in assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources
Moody's considers to be reliable inciuding, when appropriate, independent third-party sources. However, Moody's is not an auditor and cannot in
every instance independently verify or validate information received in the rating process.

Please see ratings tab on the issuer/entity page on Moodys.com for the last rating action and the rating history.

The date on which some Credit Ratings were first released goes back to a time before Moody's Investors Service's Credit Ratings were fully
digitized and accurate data may not be available. Consequently, Moody’s Investors Service provides a date that it believes is the most reliable
and accurate based on the information that is available to it. Please see the ratings disclosure page on our website www.moodys.com for

further information.

Please see the Credit Policy page on Moodys.com for the methodologies used in determining ratings, further information on the meaning of
each rating category and the definition of default and recovery.
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© 2010 Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and/or its licensors and affiliates (collectively, "MOODY'S"). All rights reserved.

CREDIT RATINGS ARE MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE, INC.’S ("MIS") CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE
RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE
SECURITIES. MIS DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY MA’ NOT MEET ITS
CONTRACTUAL, FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS
IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT. CREDIT RATINGS DO NOT ADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT
NOT LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY RISK, MARKET VALUE RISK, OR PRICE VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS ARE
NOT STATEMENTS OF CURRENT OR HISTORICAL FACT. CREDIT RATINGS DO NOT CONSTITUTE
INVESTMENT OR FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND CREDIT RATINGS ARE NOT RECOMMENDATIONS TO
PURCHASE, SELL, OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES. CREDIT RATINGS DO NOT COMMENT ON THE



SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT FOR ANY PARTICULAR INVESTOR. MIS ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS
WITH THE EXPECTATION AND UNDERSTANDING THAT EACH INVESTOR WILL MAKE ITS OWN STUDY
AND EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS UNDER CONSIDERATION FOR PURCHASE, HOLDING, OR

SALE.

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMTED TO,
COPYRIGHT LAW, AND NONE OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED,
REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED, REDISTRIBUTED OR RESOLD,
OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE FOR ANY SUCH PURPOSE, INWHOLE OR IN PART, INANY FORMOR
MANNER OR BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY PERSON WITHOUT MOODY'S PRIOR WRITTEN
CONSENT. All information contained herein is obtained by MOODY'S from sources believed by it to be accurate and
reliable. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error as well as other factors, however, all information
contained herein is provided "AS IS” without warranty of any kind. MOODY'S adopts all necessary measures so that
the information it uses in assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources Moody's considers to be
reliable, including, when appropriate, independent third-party sources. However, MOODY'S is not an auditor and
cannot in every instance independently verify or validate information received in the rating process. Under no
circumstances shall MOODY'S have any liability to any person or entity for (a) any loss or damage in whole or in part
caused by, resulting from, or relating to, any error (negligent or otherwise) or other circumstance or contingency within
or outside the control of MOODY'S or any of its directors, officers, employees or agents in connection with the
procurement, collection, compilation, analysis, interpretation, communication, publication or delivery of any such
information, or (b) any direct, indirect, special, consequential, compensatory or incidental damages whatsoever
(including without limitation, lost profits), even if MOODY'S is advised in advance of the possibility of such damages,
resulting from the use of or inability to use, any such information. The ratings, financial reporting analysis, projections,
and other observations, if any, constituting part of the information contained herein are, and must be construed solely
as, statements of opinion and not statements of fact or recommendations to purchase, sell or hold any securities.
Each user of the information contained herein must make its own study and evaluation of each security it may
consider purchasing, holding or selling. NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY,
TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY
SUCH RATING OR OTHER OPINION OR INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY'S INANY FORMOR

MANNER WHATSOEVER.

MIS, a wholiy-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Corporation ("MCO"), hereby discloses that most
issuers of debt securities (including corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and
preferred stock rated by MIS have, prior to assignment of any rating, agreed to pay to MiS for appraisal and rating
services rendered by it fees ranging from $1,500 to approximately $2,500,000. MCO and MIS also maintain policies
and procedures to address the independence of MS's ratings and rating processes. Information regarding certain
affiliations that may exist between directors of MCO and rated entities, and between entities who hold ratings from MIS
and have also publicly reported to the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of more than 5%, is posted annually at
under the heading "Shareholder Relations — Corporate Governance — Director and Shareholder

Affiliation Policy.”

Any publication into Australia of this document is by MOODY'S affiliate, Moody's Investors Service Pty Limited ABN 61
003 399 657, which holds Australian Financial Services License no. 336969. This document is intended to be provided
only to "wholesale clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. By continuing to access
this document from within Australia, you represent to MOODY'S that you are, or are accessing the documentas a
representative of, a "wholesale client” and that neither you nor the entity you represent wiil directly or indirectly
disseminate this document or its contents to “retail clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations

Act 2001.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, credit ratings assigned on and after October 1, 2010 by Moody's Japan K.K. (“MIKK™)
are MJKK's current opinions of the relative future credit risk of entities, credit commitments, or debt or debt-like
securities. In such a case, “MIS" in the foregoing statements shall be deemed to be replaced with “MJKK”. MKK is a
wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Group Japan G.K., which is wholly owned by Moody's
Overseas Holdings Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of MCO.

This credit rating is an opinion as to the creditworthiness or a debt obligation of the issuer, not on the equity secunties
of the issuer or any form of security that is available to retail investors. it would be dangerous for retail investors to
make any investment decision based on this credit rating. If in doubt you should contact your financial or other

professional adviser.



FitchRatings

FITCH RATES MAINE HEALTH & HIGHER EDUCATIONAL
FACILITIES AUTHORITY'S $41.6MM REVS 'AA'

Fitch Ratings-Chicago-10 June 2011: Fitch Ratings assigns an 'AA’ rating to the following Maine
Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority (the authority) revenue bonds:

--$37.9 million revenue bonds, series 2011A;
--$3.7 million revenue bonds, series 2011B (Federally Taxable).

The bonds are expected to price via negotiation during the week of June 20, 2011, subject to market
conditions. Proceeds of the series 2011A and 2011B bonds will be used to refund certain

outstanding bonds for debt service savings.

In addition, Fitch affirms the following rating:

--$1.4 billion in outstanding authority revenue bonds at 'AA’,
The Rating Outlook is Stable.

RATING RATIONALE:
--The authority's loan portfolio reflects strong loan security from borrowers and moderate single

borrower concentration.

--In addition to loan repayments, the pool is secured by a debt service reserve funded at maximum
annual debt service (MADS) and backed by the state's moral obligation.

--A state-aid intercept mechanism to assure loan repayments and a supplemental operating fund that
can be utilized so any potential delinquent loan payments do not cause a draw on the debt service
reserve provides additional bondholder security.

KEY RATING DRIVERS:
--Credit quality of the bonds is linked to repayment performance on the program's loan portfolio.
--The programs' strong reserves, which offset potential deterioration of underlying health or higher

education loan credit quality, are important to preserving credit rating.

SECURITY:
The series 2011A and 2011B bonds and outstanding bonds are secured by loan repayments and

reserve funds.

CREDIT SUMMARY:
The authority's loan pool consists of 66 borrowers, with moderate single-borrower concentration;

the largest, the Maine Health System, represents 14% of the total outstanding portfolio, and the top
10 borrowers account for approximately 64% of the outstanding loan balance. Approximately 59%
of the outstanding loan balances are to hospitals, 26% to higher education institutions, and the
remaining 15% spread among mental health facilities, nursing homes, community care retirement
communities and social service organizations. Most of the state's eligible health care and higher
education institutions use the authority as their primary borrowing vehicle because it offers
participants the lowest cost of capital.

Borrowers in the pool generally do not have public ratings. Fitch estimates that the largest nine
borrowers are of investment grade quality. Program loan security is strong with a senior lien on
gross revenues and a mortgage on most property and/or financed projects.

A debt service reserve for all parity debt is funded by bond proceeds at 100% of MADS. The debt
service reserve totals $147 million, or 11% of total bond principal outstanding. The debt service
reserve is backed by a state moral obligation make-up provision if it falls below MADS. Neither the



Revenue-Supported Rating Criteria
http://www.fitchratings.com/creditdesk/reports/report _frame.cfm?rpt_id=564565
State Revolving Fund and Municipal Loan Pool Rating Guidelines
http://www.fitchratings.com/creditdesk/reports/report_frame.cfm?rpt_id=384150

ALL FITCH CREDIT RATINGS ARE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN LIMITATIONS AND
DISCLAIMERS. PLEASE READ THESE LIMITATIONS AND DISCLAIMERS BY
FOLLOWING THIS LINK:
HTTP://FITCHRATINGS.COM/UNDERSTANDINGCREDITRATINGS. IN  ADDITION,
RATING DEFINITIONS AND THE TERMS OF USE OF SUCH RATINGS ARE AVAILABLE
ON THE AGENCY'S PUBLIC WEBSITE '"WWW.FITCHRATINGS.COM'. PUBLISHED
RATINGS, CRITERIA AND METHODOLOGIES ARE AVAILABLE FROM THIS SITE AT
ALL TIMES. FITCH'S CODE OF CONDUCT, CONFIDENTIALITY, CONFLICTS OF
INTEREST, AFFILIATE FIREWALL, COMPLIANCE AND OTHER RELEVANT POLICIES
AND PROCEDURES ARE ALSO AVAILABLE FROM THE 'CODE OF CONDUCT' SECTION

OF THIS SITE.



intercept nor the reserve replenishment has ever been utilized. During fiscal 2010, the authority
transferred $24.2 million of cash and investments from its operating fund to a newly established
supplemental reserve fund pledged to bondholders. With this transfer, pledged debt service reserves
increased to $147 million from $127.5 million. The reserves are invested in highly rated tax-exempt
municipal bonds, money market accounts and investment agreements.

Approximately $17.8 million remains in the operating fund and, while not pledged, may be used
instead of the debt service reserve in the event of loan delinquencies. The operating fund, which is
primarily invested in U.S. treasury or agency securities, has grown steadily from administrative fees
collected from borrowers. Combined, debt service reserves and operating fund balances will total
$165 million, or approximately 12% of bond principal outstanding.

Fitch analyzes the default tolerance of the authority's portfolio using a stress test that considers loan
credit quality, single-risk concentration, debt service reserves and operating funds and loan
payments. Fitch discounts in its analysis approximately $3 million of reserves that are held in
non-collateralized investment agreements with a provider rated below 'AA'. However, the
authority's reserves and operating funds are sufficient to pay bondholders if scheduled loan
repayments fall short by as much as 37.8% for four consecutive years, even if the lower quality
investment agreements fail to perform and no action is taken by the state to replenish the reserve

fund.

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) requires that the senior elected official in the state of Maine
approve the sale of any tax exempt bonds in accordance with the Tax Equity and Fiscal
Responsibility Act of 1982 (TEFRA). Fitch was recently made aware that the Governor reportedly
will not sign any TEFRA approval letters for proposed tax exempt bond sales which utilize the
Moral Obligation Reserve Fund Program. This decision by the Governor means that the authority
can only issue refunding bonds for the foreseeable future. While this decision does not materially
impact the credit quality of the program bonds in the near term, Fitch will continue to monitor the
credit quality of the program if no new money bonds are issued in the future,

Contact:

Primary Analsyt
Adrienne M. Booker
Senior Director
+1-312-368-5471
Fitch, Inc.

70 West Madison St.

Secondary Analyst
Major Parkhurst

Director
+1-512-215-3724

Committee Chairperson
Jose Acosta

Senior Director
+1-512-215-3726

Media Relations: Cindy Stoller, New York, Tel: +1 212 908 0526, Email:
cindy.stoller@fitchratings.com.

Additional information is available at 'www.fitchratings.com'.

Applicable Criteria and Related Research:
--'Revenue-Supported Rating Criteria' (Oct. 8, 2010);
--'State Revolving Fund and Municipal Loan Pool Rating Guidelines' (April 28, 2008).

Applicable Criteria and Related Research:
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Acadia Hospital

Aroostook Medical Center, The
Bates College

Birch Bay Retirement Village
Birch Grove Nursing Care Center
Blue Hill Memorial Hospital
Bowdoin College

Bridgton Hospital

Calais Regional Hospital
Camden Health Care Center
Catholic Charities Of Maine
Cedar Ridge

Cedars Nursing Care Center
Central Maine Medical Center
Colby College

College Of The Atlantic
Community Living Association
Community Partners, Inc.
Country Manor Nrsing Home Inc
Cove's Edge Facility

Dolly Farm Assisted Living
Downeast Community Hospital
Eastern Maine Medical Center
Fallbrook Woods

Falmouth By The Sea

Families United

Farmington Home For The Aged
Franklin Memorial Hospital
Freeport Nursing

Goodall Hospital

Goodwill Industries Of Maine
Harbor Hill

Hawthorne House - Freeport
HealthReach Network (KVRHA)
High View Manor

Home for Aged-The Park Danforth

Houlton Regional Hospital
Husson University
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Inland Hospital

Jackson Laboratory

JHA Properties, Inc

John F. Murphy Homes

Kennebec Mental Health Assoc
Kno-Wal-Lin Home Health Care Inc.
Knox Housing d/b/a Bartlett House
Lakewood dba Lakewood Cont Care
Lincoln Home, The

Maine Coast Memorial Hospital
Maine College Of Art

Maine Community College System
Maine Gen Rehab & Nursing Care
Maine Gen Retirement Community
Maine General Medical Center
Maine Maritime Academy

Maine Medical Center

Marshwood Nursing Care Center
Martin's Point Health Care

Medical Care Development

Mercy Hospital

Merrill Memorial

Mid Coast Geriatric Serv Corp
Mid-Coast Hospital

Miles Memorial Hospital
Millinocket Regional Hospital
Morrison Developmental Center
Mount Desert Island Hospital
Mount St. Joseph Nursing Home
Oak Grove Nursing Care Center
Parkview Adventist Medical Center
Parkview Nursing Home
Penobscot Bay Medical Center
Penobscot Valley Hospital
Phillips-Strickland House

Pine Point Nursing Care Center
Piper Shores

Pleasant Hill Health Care

Portland Center For Assisted Living
Redding Homes Inc
Redington-Fairview General Hospital
River Ridge Nursing Care Center
Robinson Health Care

Rumford Community Home
Rumford Community Hospital
Russell Park

Sandy River Nursing Care Center
Sebasticook Valley Health Care
Sebasticook Valley Hospital
Sedgewood Commons

Seventy Five State Street
Southern Maine Medical Center
Spring Harbor

Springbrook Nursing Care Center
Spurwink School, The

St Andrews Hospital

St Joseph Hospital

St Joseph's College

St. Marguerite d'Youville Pavilion
St. Mary's General Hospital
Stephens Memorial Hospital
Sweetser

Tallpines Health Care Facility
Thomas College

Tri-County Mental Health

Unity College

University Of New England
Varney Crossing NCC

VHA Of New England

Viking Nursing Facility

Waldo County General Hospital
Western Maine Health Care
Willows Nursing Care Center
Windward Gardens

York Hospital

Youth Alternatives, Inc.
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Mental Health

Millinocket Regional Hospital

Aroastook Mental Health Services, Inc.

Mobius, Inc.,

Bangor Theological Seminary

Morrison Developmental Center

Bates College

Mount St. Joseph

Bowdaoin College

Northeast Health

Bucksport Regional Health Center

Northern Maine Community College

Cary Medical Center

Northern Maine General Hospital

Catholic Charities Maine

Oxford County Mental Health

Cedars Nursing Care Center, Inc.

Parkview Memorial Hospital

Central Maine Community College

Penobscot Community Health Center

Central Maine Hith - Bridgton Hospital

Penobscot Valley Hospital

Hospital

Phillips-Strickland House

Central Maine Hith - Rumford Community Hospital

Piper Shores

Central Maine Hith- Central Maine Medical Center

Portland Center for Assisted Living

Colby College

Rangeley Region Health Center, Inc.

College of the Atlantic

Regional Medical Center at Lubec

Community Health & Counseling Services

Saint Joseph's Manor

Counseling Services Inc.

Sebasticook Valley Hospital (EMH)

Danforth Habilitation Assoc.

Sheepscol Valley Regional Health Center

Downeaslt Horizons

Southern Maine Community College

Eastern Agency on Aging

Southern Maine Medical Center

Spectrum Generations (Central Maine Area Agency on Aging)

L_gstarn Maine Communlty College
Eastport Health Care, Inc.

Spring Harbor Hospital

Facilities, Inc.

Spurwink School

Families United

St. Josephs College

Franklin Memorial Hospital

Stella Maris Housing Development Corp,

Goodwill Industries

Sweetser

Group Home Foundation

The Iris Network

Group Main Stream, Inc.

Thomas College

Harrington Family Health Care

Treats Falls House, Inc.

Houlton Regional Hospital

Tri County Mental Health Services

Husson College

Unity College

Independence Association, Inc.

University of Maine

Inland Hospital (EMH)

University of Maine at Augusta

Island Nursing Home

University of Maine at Farmington

Jackson Laboratory

University of Maine at Forl Kent

John F. Murphy Homes, Inc.

University of Maine at Machias

Ken-a-Set Assoc for the Retarded, Inc.

University of Maine at Presque |sle

Kennebec Valley Community College

University of Maine System

Kennebec Valley Mental Health Center

University of Maine-Hutchinson Center- Belfast

Lakewood Manor (EMH)

University of New England

Maine Bond Bank & Maine Health & Higher Ed

University of Southern Maine

Maine Coast Memorial Hospital (EMH)

Uplift, Inc.

Maine College of Art

Waldo County General Hospital

Maine General Health & HealthReach Netwark

Wardwell Home for the Aging

Maine Maritime Academy

Washington County Community College

Maine Medical Center

Yesterday's Children, Inc.

Maine Mental Health Connections, Inc.

York County Community College

Medical Care Development

York Hospital

Mercy Hospital

Youth Alternatives Ingraham, Inc.

Mid Coast Hospital

Total=101
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TO: INTERESTED PARTIES
FROM: Robert O. Lenna, Executive Director

RE: 2010 Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority Annual Report

Thisisthe annual report for the Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority for the 2010 fiscal
year, running from July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2010. As of June 30, 2010, the Authority has $148,720,000
outstanding under its general tax exempt conduit resolution, $1,403,010,000 outstanding under its tax exempt
reserve fund resolution, and $3,280,000 outstanding under its taxable reserve fund resol ution.

During fiscal year 2010 the Authority issued $298,050,000 of bonds under its tax-exempt reserve fund
resolution. These sales were accomplished in four series for sixteen hospitals, seven colleges, two community
mental health care facilities, and six residential care facilities.

Started in December of 1991, the Authority’s unique health and higher education program, using a state moral
obligation reserve fund make-up provision and the ability to intercept funds of borrowers prior to any failure to
pay, provides unusual strength to adiversified and dispersed portfolio of loans to health care and higher
educational facilities throughout Maine. By making use of out ability to aggregate issues, share costs for bond
sales among multiple borrowers and provide the State’s moral obligation credit enhancement to eligible
ingtitutions, we provide all of Maine' s health and higher educational facilities, from the largest to the smallest,
with the lowest cost available for the money they borrow to meet their capital needs.

If there is further information you might like or questions you may have concerning the Authority, please feel
free to give us a call at (207) 622-1958. Additional information about the Authority is available at out website:
www.mhhefa.com
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BAKER NEWMAN NOYES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Members of
Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority

We have audited the accompanying financial statements which include the Consolidated Operating Fund,
Reserve Fund and Taxable Financing Reserve Fund, which collectively comprise the basic financial
statements of Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority, which is an instrumentality of the
State of Maine and is required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 14 and 39 to
be shown as a component unit of the State of Maine (for accounting purposes only), as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2010, as listed on the accompanying table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority, as well as the individual fund
groups referred to above, as of June 30, 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 28, 2010
on our consideration of Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 — 7 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements, but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC



To the Members of
Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that comprise the
Authority’s basic financial statements. The additional information included in Schedule 1 is presented for
the purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
additional information has been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements, and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

é’abﬂw » /,yw
Portland, Maine Limited Liability Company
October 28, 2010



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIESAUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2010

As financial management of the Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority™),
we offer readers of these financial statements this narrative, overview and analysis of the financial activities
of the Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. This discussion and analysis is designed to assist
the reader in focusing on the significant financial issues and activities of the Authority and to identify any
significant changes in financial position. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with the basic financial statements as a whole.

Financial Highlights

e  On September 30, 2009, the Authority sold the net assets of Portland Center for Assisted Living
(the Center), its formerly wholly-owned subsidiary, and recognized a gain on sale of $892,194.
Operating results of the Center for the period July 1, 2009 through September 30, 2009, and the
gain on sale have been reported as discontinued operations on the 2010 statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in net assets in the accompanying financial statements. Refer to note 10 of
the financial statements for a summary of the transaction.

e  Operating income for the Authority's Operating Fund before transfers and discontinued operations
was $2,264,514 for fiscal year 2010, a decrease of $1,804,765 or 44% from fiscal year 2009. This
decrease was primarily due to two factors. There was a decrease in income from investments of
approximately $575,000 due to the board adopting a resolution establishing a supplemental reserve
fund within the Authority’s reserve fund resolution, resulting in a transfer of $24,221,739 of cash
and investments from the operating resolution to the reserve fund resolution. Secondly, the board
approved a decrease in Authority fees charged to the institutions, effective January 1, 2010, which
was the primary factor in a total reduction in administrative and other fee revenue of
approximately $1,122,900 from 20009.

e Total revenues of $62,039,692 for fiscal year 2010 were a decrease of $4,529,433 or 7% from
fiscal year 2009. The decrease was due to a decrease in income from investments, a scheduled
reduction in interest received from institutions and a board approved decrease in Authority fees.

e  The Authority's loans receivable from institutions at June 30, 2010 of $1,278,873,763 represents a
net increase of $76,761,885 or 6% from the balance at June 30, 2009. This increase is the net
result of the bond issuances described below, and repayment of loans by institutions during fiscal
year 2010.

e  The Authority’s gross bonds outstanding at June 30, 2010 of $1,406,290,000 represent a net
increase of $81,275,000 or 6% from the balance at June 30, 2009. This increase is due to the net
impact of the issuance of $92,780,000 in 2009A reserve fund bonds, $97,240,000 in 2010A reserve
fund bonds and $108,030,000 in 2010BC reserve funds bonds, a portion of which refunded
$162,585,000 of outstanding maturities within the 1993D, 1995A, 1998A, 1998B, 1998C, 1999A,
2000C, 2001A, 2001C and 2001D bond series, less scheduled bond principal payments (refer to
notes 4 and 8 of the audited financial statements). The Authority’s bonds are a combination of
fixed and variable interest rate and tax-exempt and taxable bonds, although a majority of the bonds
are fixed interest rate and tax-exempt.

Overview of the Authority

The Authority was created in 1972 by an Act of the Maine Legislature, is a public body corporate and politic
and is constituted as an instrumentality exercising public and essential governmental functions of the State.
The Authority was established to issue bonds for the purpose, among other things, of assisting Maine health
care institutions and institutions of higher education in the undertaking of projects involving the acquisition,
construction, improvement, reconstruction and equipping of health care and educational facilities and the
refinancing of existing indebtedness. The Authority, pursuant to the Sudent Loan Corporations Act of 1983,
also has the power to finance student loan programs of institutions for higher education.
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As the result of the Authority issuing tax-exempt debt, the Authority is required to prepare arbitrage rebate
calculations for each series of bonds outstanding and remit payment to the Internal Revenue Service every
five years. The Authority’s policy is to prepare and review the calculations every six months for financial
statement purposes.

For financial statement reporting purposes, the Authority is considered a component unit of the State of
Maine. However, the Authority does not receive any State appropriations for its operations and is funded
from fees charged to participating borrowers and interest earnings on investments.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s financial statements,
which are comprised of the basic financial statements and the notes to the financial statements.

Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The balance sheet presents information on all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Net Assets increases when revenues exceed expenses. Increases to
assets without a corresponding increase to liabilities result in increased net assets, which may indicate an
improved financial position.

The statement of revenues and expenses and changes in net assets presents information showing how the
Authority’s net assets changed during the fiscal year. Substantially all changes in net assets are reported as
soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless of timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods.

The statement of cash flows is presented using the direct method of reporting which reflects cash flows from
operating, financing and investing activities. Cash collections and payments are reflected in this statement to
arrive at the net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the fiscal year.

Notesto the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the basic financial statements.

Financial Analysis
Net assets may serve, over time, as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the

Authority, assets exceeded liabilities by $48,254,705 at June 30, 2010. This represents an increase of
$4,530,192 or 10.4% over the previous fiscal year, which is the Authority’s 2010 operating income.



The Authority’s financial position and operations for the past two years are summarized below based on
information included in the audited financial statements. We have broken out the 2009 Portland Center total
assets, liabilities and net assets on the balance sheet below to facilitate comparison with 2010. We have also
reclassified 2009 operating results of Portland Center on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in
net assets below to facilitate comparison with 2010.

Balance Sheet
2010 2009 % Change
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,190,323 $ 11,401,459 (1.9%
Investments held by trustee, at fair value 30,870,224 34,473,356 (10.5)
Board-designated cash and investments 7,122,830 25,122,442 (71.6)
Accrued investment income 599,698 256,621 133.7
Loans receivable from institutions 42,791,340 49,362,675 (13.3)
Loan receivable from operating fund - 660,000 (100.0)
Interest and other receivables from institutions 2,795,064 2,289,438 22.1
Fees and other amounts due from other funds 1,261,877 2,378,251 (46.9)
Total current assets 96,631,356 125,944,242 (23.3)
Noncurrent assets:
Investments held by trustee, at fair value 128,735,865 120,845,109 6.5
Board-designated cash and investments 24,324,395 - -
Loans receivable from institutions 1,236,082,423 1,152,749,203 7.2
Loan receivable from operating fund - 1,398,013  (100.0)

Notes, advances and other receivables from
institutions, net of allowance of $617,900

in 2010 and $732,000 in 2009 216,100 131,744 64.0
Total noncurrent assets 1,389,358,783 1,275,124,069 9.0
Total Portland Center assets - 5,561,404 (100.0)
Total assets $.1,485,990,139 $ 1,406,629,715 5.6%
Current liabilities:
Bonds payable $ 43,020,000 $ 50,235,000 (14.49)%
Interest payable 24,986,302 26,652,666 (6.3)
Fees and other amounts due to operating fund 1,261,877 2,378,251 (46.9)
Accounts payable 397,696 358,918 10.8
Rebate payable to Internal Revenue Service 851,204 56,529 1405.8
Deferred revenue 3,163,980 2,845,334 11.2
Other liabilities - 284,000 (100.0)
Total current liabilities 73,681,059 82,810,698 (11.0)
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable 1,363,270,000 1,274,780,000 6.9
Rebate payable to Internal Revenue Service 784,375 1,476,193 (46.9)
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,364,054,375 1,276,256,193 6.9
Total Portland Center liabilities - 3,838,311  (100.0)
Total liabilities 1,437,735,434 1,362,905,202 55
Net assets:
Unrestricted net assets 48,254,705 42,001,420 14.9
Total Portland Center net assets - 1,723,093 (100.0)
Total net assets 48,254,705 43,724,513 10.4
Total liabilities and net assets $.1,485,990,139 $.1,406,629,715 5.6%



Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changesin Net Assets

2010 2009 % Change
Operating revenues:
Interest and other amounts from institutions $ 49815285 $ 55481,214 (10.2)%
Interest on loans receivable from operating fund 36,500 214,155 (83.0)
Administrative and other fees 2,186,902 3,309,779 (33.9)
Income from investments 5,551,780 6,475,237 (14.3)
Net increase in the fair value of investments 1,118,720 120,453  828.8
Interest income from advances and notes receivable
from institutions 33,910 35,778 (5.2)
Other income 3,296,595 932,509 2535
Total operating revenues 62,039,692 66,569,125 (6.8)
Operating expenses:
Bond issuance costs 3,193,945 788,440 305.1
Interest expense 54,844,081 60,748,835 9.7)
Operating expenses 746,763 685,497 8.9
Bad debt provision (398,260) - -
Other expenses 307,708 1,117,474 (72.5)
Total operating expenses 58,694,237 63,340,246 (7.3)
Operating income from continuing operations 3,345,455 3,228,879 3.6
Discontinued operations:
Operating income from discontinued operations 292,543 817,593 (64.2)
Gain on sale of Portland Center 892,194 - -
Operating income 4,530,192 4,046,472 12.0
Net assets, beginning of year 43,724,513 39,678,041 10.2
Net assets, end of year $_ 48254705 $ 43,724,513 10.4%

Accrued investment income at June 30, 2010 increased $343,077 or 133.7% from fiscal year 2009 due to an
increase in the amount invested in long term municipal bonds. These municipal bonds replaced some of the
long term guaranteed investment contracts that had been downgraded, subsequently liquidated and invested
in low yielding cash and cash equivalents in 2009 (see note 3).

Interest and other receivables from institutions at June 30, 2010 increased $505,626 from prior year or 22.1%
from balances at June 30, 2009 primarily due to the timing of transfers from capitalized interest accounts
held by the trustee.

Loans receivable from operating fund decreased 100% from fiscal year 2009 due to the sale of Portland
Center and corresponding payoff of the remaining taxable financing reserve fund loan (see note 10 for
details).

Fees and other amounts due from other funds and related fees and other amounts due to the operating fund
decreased $1,116,374 or 46.9% over fiscal year 2009 due to a Board authorized decrease in Authority fees
charged to institutions, which was effective as of January 1, 2010.

Deferred revenue increased $318,646 or 11.2% in fiscal year 2010 over fiscal year 2009. The increase is a
result of deferring monthly debt service installment payments received from institutions that subsequently
refunded with the 2010BC reserve issue. The funds will be used against future debt service payments.



Rebate payable to the Internal Revenue Service at June 30, 2010 increased $102,857 or 6.7% from June 30,
2009. This increase is the result of the net difference between additional accrued liability for fiscal year 2010
and rebate payments to the Internal Revenue Service during fiscal year 2010.

The change in the fair value of investments in 2010 was a net increase of $1,118,720 versus a net increase of
$120,453 in 2009. The increases experienced during fiscal 2010 are the result of fluctuations in the interest
rate environment which resulted in an increase of the fair value of investments that were purchased in prior
periods when interest rates were higher. The Authority’s investment portfolio is comprised of cash and cash
equivalents, U.S. Government obligations (including treasury bills, notes, and bonds), U.S. Government-
sponsored enterprises, municipal bonds and guaranteed investment contracts. Investments are carried at fair
value, and unrealized gains and losses (primarily due to fluctuations in market interest rates) are recognized
in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. The maturities of investments in the debt
service reserve funds are scheduled to match debt service payments and are normally held to maturity.

Interest on loans receivable from operating fund decreased $177,655 or 83% from fiscal year 2009 due to the
sale of Portland Center and the corresponding payoff of the remaining taxable financing reserve fund loan.

Income from investments for fiscal year 2010 decreased $923,457 or 14.3% from fiscal year 2009. This
decrease is the result of low short term interest rates throughout fiscal 2010 and the full year impact of
replacing downgraded GICs in prior year with lower yielding alternatives.

Administrative and other fees decreased $1,122,877 or 33.9% from fiscal year 2009 due to a Board approved
decrease in Authority fees charged to the institutions effective January 1, 2010.

Other revenue for fiscal year 2010 increased $2,364,086 or 253.5% from fiscal year 2009. This increase is
primarily the result of new bonds being issued during fiscal year 2010, which resulted in additional revenue
received from borrowers to pay related costs of issuance. The bond issuance costs for fiscal year 2010 have
also increased.

Operating income from discontinued operations is less than 2009 due to there being only three months of
operations in 2010.

The Authority shares office space and staff with the Maine Municipal Bond Bank. The Authority reimburses
the Maine Municipal Bond Bank for its proportionate share of personnel services, employee benefits, office
space, equipment rental and other miscellaneous costs.

Requestsfor Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s financial statements for all
those with an interest in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
request for additional information should be addressed to the Executive Director, Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority, P.O. Box 2268, Augusta, ME 04338-2268.



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIESAUTHORITY

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (note 2)

Investments held by trustee, at fair
value (note 3)

Board-designated cash and
investments, at fair value (note 3)

Accrued investment income

Loans receivable from institutions
(note 9)

Interest and other receivables from
institutions

Fees and other amounts due from
other funds

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Investments held by trustee, at fair
value (notes 3 and 6)

Board-designated cash and investments,

at fair value (notes 1 and 3)

Loans receivable from institutions
(note 9)

Notes, advances and other receivables
from institutions, net of allowance
of $617,900 (note 9)

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2010

ASSETS
Consolidated Taxable
Operating Financing
Fund Reserve Reserve
(Note 10) _Fund Fund Total
$11,190,323 $ - - $ 11,190,323
- 30,658,381 211,843 30,870,224
7,122,830 - - 7,122,830
11,349 587,438 911 599,698
- 42,186,340 605,000 42,791,340
- 2,793,298 1,766 2,795,064
1,261,877 - - 1,261,877
19,586,379 76,225,457 819,520 96,631,356
- 127,792,742 943,123 128,735,865
- 24,324,395 - 24,324,395
- 1,234,350,546 1,731,877  1,236,082,423
216,100 - - 216,100
216,100 1,386,467,683 2,675,000 1,389,358,783
$19,802,479  $1,462,693,140 $3,494,520 $1,485,990,139



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:

Bonds payable (note 4)

Interest payable

Fees and other amounts due to
operating fund

Accounts payable

Rebate payable to Internal Revenue
Service

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable (notes 4 and 8)
Rebate payable to Internal Revenue
Service
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted net assets

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes.

Consolidated Taxable
Operating Financing
Fund Reserve Reserve
(Note 10) Fund Fund Total
$ - $ 42,415,000 $ 605,000 $ 43,020,000
- 24,976,619 9,683 24,986,302
- 1,085,348 176,529 1,261,877
93,064 303,137 1,495 397,696
- 851,204 - 851,204
- 3,161,421 2,559 3,163,980
93,064 72,792,729 795,266 73,681,059
- 1,360,595,000 2,675,000 1,363,270,000
- 784,375 - 784,375
- 1,361,379,375 2,675,000 1,364,054,375
93,064 1,434,172,104 3,470,266  1,437,735,434
19,709,415 28,521,036 24.254 48,254,705
19,709,415 28,521,036 24,254 48,254,705
$19,802,479  $1,462,693,140 $3,494,520 $1,485,990,139



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIESAUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating revenues:

Interest and other amounts from
institutions

Interest on loans receivable from
operating fund

Administrative and other fees

Income from investments

Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of
investments

Interest income from advances and
notes receivable from institutions

Other income

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:

Bond issuance costs
Interest expense
Operating expenses (note 7)
Bad debt provision
Other expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss) from continuing
operations before operating transfers

Operating transfers (note 1)

Operating income (loss) from
continuing operations

Discounted operations:
Operating income from discontinued
operations (note 10)
Gain on sale of Portland Center
assets (note 10)
Operating income (loss)
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Taxable
Operating Financing
Fund Reserve Reserve
(Note 10) Fund Fund Total
$ - $49,604,680 $210,605 $49,815,285
- - 36,500 36,500
2,186,902 - - 2,186,902
501,742 4,983,201 66,837 5,551,780
(152,187) 1,270,907 - 1,118,720
33,910 - - 33,910
102,650 3,193,945 - 3,296,595
2,673,017 59,052,733 313,942 62,039,692
- 3,193,945 - 3,193,945
- 54,554,681 289,400 54,844,081
746,763 - - 746,763
(398,260) - - (398,260)
60,000 221,570 26,138 307,708
408,503 57,970,196 315,538 58,694,237
2,264,514 1,082,537 (1,596) 3,345,455
(24,221,739) 24,221,739 - -
(21,957,225) 25,304,276 (1,596) 3,345,455
292,543 - - 292,543
892,194 - - 892,194
(20,772,488) 25,304,276 (1,596) 4,530,192
40,481,903 3,216,760 25,850 43,724,513
$.19,709,415 $28,521,036 $ 24,254 $48,254,705




MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIESAUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating activities:
Cash received from institutions
Cash received from operating fund
Cash payments to institutions
Cash received from other income
Cash payments for operating expenses
Cash received from (paid to) other funds

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities

Noncapital financing activities:
Proceeds from bonds payable
Other proceeds from institutions in conjunction
with bond issuance
Principal paid on bonds payable
Interest paid on bonds payable
Paid to refunding escrows
Bond and other proceeds passed-on to borrowers
Issuance costs paid

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Investing activities:

Purchase of investment securities

Proceeds from sale and maturities of
investment securities

Income received from investments and advances

Interest rebate paid to U.S. Government

Net decrease in notes, advances and other
receivable from institutions

Net cash (used) provided by investing activities

Cash flows of discontinued operations — operating

Cash flows of discontinued operations — noncapital
financing

Cash flows of discontinued operations — investing

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Consolidated Taxable
Operating Financing
Fund Reserve Reserve
(Note 10) Fund Fund Total
$ 2,186,902 $ 98,584,157 $ 1,604,736 $ 102,375,795
- - 2,094,513 2,094,513
- (137,988,554) - (137,988,554)
102,650 - - 102,650
(756,378) (224,548) (34,767) (1,015,693)
1,116,374 (936,227) (180,147) -
2,649,548 (40,565,172) 3,484,335 (34,431,289)
- 306,495,421 - 306,495,421
- 18,946,878 - 18,946,878
- (49,390,000) (4,800,000) (54,190,000)
- (53,532,008) (303,601) (53,835,609)
- (168,629,662) - (168,629,662)
- (10,162,447) - (10,162,447
- (3,193,945) - (3,193,945)
- 40,534,237 (5,103,601) 35,430,636
(20,326,953) (468,378,152) (8,354,901) (497,060,006)
13,952,639 463,709,164 9,904,516 487,566,319
575,896 4,744,519 69,651 5,390,066
- (44,596) - (44,596)
29,904 - - 29,904
(5,768,514) 30,935 1,619,266 (4,118,313)
255,788 - - 255,788
(2,094,513) - - (2,094,513)
3,443,262 - - 3,443,262
1,604,537 - - 1,604,537
(1,514,429) - - (1,514,429)
12,704,752 - - 12,704,752
$ 11,190,323 $ — - $ 11,190,323
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIESAUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Consolidated Taxable
Operating Financing
Fund Reserve Reserve
(Note 10) Fund Fund Total

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash (used) provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (20,772,488) $ 25304276 $ (1,596) $ 4,530,192
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash (used) provided by
operating activities:

Income from discontinued operations (292,543) - - (292,543)
Gain on sale of discontinued operations (892,194) - - (892,194)
Investment and interest income (535,652) (4,983,201) (66,837) (5,585,690)
Net (increase) decrease in the fair

value of investments 152,187 (1,270,907) - (1,118,720)
Transfer of investments to supplemental

reserve 24,221,739 (24,221,739) - -
Bad debt provision (398,260) - (398,260)

Interest expense on bonds payable 54,554,681 289,400 54,844,081

Change in assets and liabilities:
Loans receivable from institutions - (88,810,879) 1,382,913 (87,427,966)

Loan receivable from operating fund - 2,058,013 2,058,013
Accrued interest and other

receivables from institutions - (514,285) 8,659 (505,626)
Due to/from other funds 1,116,374 (936,227) (180,147) -
Accounts payable and other

liabilities 50,385 (2,978) (8,629) 38,778
Deferred revenue - 316,087 2,559 318,646

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities $_ 2649548 $_ (40,565,172) $ 3,484,335 $_(34,431,289)

Summary of noncash transactions:

See accompanying notes.
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIESAUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

Organization

Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority (the Authority) is constituted as an
instrumentality and, for accounting purposes under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and No. 39, Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units, is considered a component unit of the State of Maine, organized
and existing under and pursuant to M.R.S.A., Title 22, Chapter 413, Sections 2051 to 2074, inclusive
and as amended by Chapter 584 of the Public Laws of 1991.

The purpose of the Authority, among others, is to assist Maine health care institutions and institutions
for higher education (the institutions) in the undertaking of projects involving the acquisition,
construction, improvement, reconstruction and equipping of health care and educational facilities and
the refinancing of existing indebtedness. The Authority, pursuant to the Student Loan Corporations Act
of 1983, also has the power to finance student loan programs of institutions for higher education.

Debt issued by the Authority is not debt of the State of Maine or any political subdivision within the
State and the State is not obligated for such debt, nor is the full faith and credit of the State pledged for
such debt. The Authority is exempt from federal and State of Maine income taxes.

Legislation enacted in 1991 permitted the Authority to establish a reserve fund which will benefit from
a “moral obligation” reserve fund replenishment mechanism from the State of Maine. Although the
legislation does not bind or obligate the State, it does permit the legislature to appropriate and pay the
Authority the amount necessary to restore the reserve fund to the required amount in the event the fund
goes below the statutorily established minimum balance of one year’s debt service on outstanding
bonds. The legislation also allows the Authority to implement a State funding intercept mechanism
which permits the Authority to cause the Treasurer of the State of Maine to withhold funds in the
Treasurer’s custody that otherwise would be paid to a borrower that has failed or may fail to make a
debt service payment and to direct the Treasurer to apply those funds as debt service to the applicable
bonds or notes. The State funding intercept is applicable to all future borrowings as well as currently
outstanding bond issues, whether or not secured by the “moral obligation” reserve fund replenishment
mechanism.

Operating Fund

The Authority’s operating fund records the revenues and expenses generated from its daily operations,
and also included the operations of Portland Center for Assisted Living f/k/a Woodford Park Nursing
Care Center, Inc. (the Center), from July 1, 2009 through September 30, 2009, at which time all assets
of the Center were sold (see note 10). The Authority has a management agreement with Maine
Municipal Bond Bank (the Bond Bank) resulting in an allocation of general overhead expenses from the
operations of the Bond Bank to the Authority and payment of direct operating expenses by the
Authority.

In fiscal 2010, the Authority’s Board of Directors adopted a resolution establishing a supplemental
reserve fund within the Authority’s reserve fund resolution. As part of this resolution, $24,221,739 of
cash and investments were transferred from the operating fund resolution to the reserve fund resolution,
which at the discretion of the Authority, shall serve as additional security for one or more series of
bonds. At any time that the reserve fund investments exceed the reserve fund requirement (see note 6),
the Authority may transfer any amounts held under the supplemental reserve back to the Authority’s
operating fund. The balance in the supplemental reserve of $24,324,395 at June 30, 2010, is presented
as Board-designated cash and investments on the balance sheet.
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIESAUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

Organization (Continued)

Presently, the Authority operates pursuant to three bond resolutions as follows:
Reserve Fund

These funds and accounts are established under the Authority’s Resolution establishing the Maine
Health Facilities’ Reserve Fund adopted December 6, 1991. Under this resolution, the Authority issues
Bonds exempt from federal and State of Maine income taxes for the purpose of providing financing for
Maine health and higher educational facilities. Bonds issued under this resolution are secured by all of
the reserve funds within the resolution and benefit from the moral obligation reserve fund replenishment
mechanism from the State of Maine. Loans to institutions made with proceeds of bonds issued under
this resolution are generally written for the net amount of bond proceeds less debt service reserve funds
retained by the Authority.

Taxable Financing Reserve Fund

These funds and accounts are established under the Authority’s Resolution establishing the Maine
Health Facilities” Taxable Financing Reserve Fund Resolution adopted December 15, 1992. Under this
resolution, the Authority issues Bonds exempt from State of Maine income taxes. Bonds issued under
this resolution are secured by all of the reserve funds within the resolution and benefit from the moral
obligation reserve fund replenishment mechanism from the State of Maine. Loans to institutions made
with proceeds of bonds issued under this resolution are generally written for the net amount of bond
proceeds less debt service reserve funds retained by the Authority.

General Resolution

These funds consist of funds and accounts established under the Authority’s General Bond Resolution
adopted June 5, 1973. Under this resolution, the Authority issues bonds exempt from federal and State
of Maine income taxes and assists in financing health care institutions and institutions for higher
education. Bonds issued under this resolution may be issued under the original Bond Resolution or
under an individual Bond Indenture between the Authority and an institution. Loans to institutions
made with proceeds of general resolution bonds are written for the entire amount of the bonds
(including debt service reserve funds). Security for these bonds is limited to debt service reserve funds
of and the loans to the specific institution for which the bond was issued. Therefore, these bonds are
considered conduit debt and are not reflected on the accompanying balance sheet. (See note 5).

Significant Accounting Policies

Proprietary Fund Accounting

The Authority’s operations are, for the most part, financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprise, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing goods and
services is financed through user charges. Therefore, it meets the criteria for an enterprise fund and is
accounted for under the accrual basis of accounting.
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIESAUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Authority complies with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting. This
Statement requires that the Authority apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as the
following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting
Research Bulletins (ARB’s). As permitted by GASB No. 20, the Authority has elected not to comply
with the FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with GASB Statements No. 34, Basic Financial
Satements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for Sate and Local Governments, No. 37,
Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for Sate and Local
Governments:. Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 21 and No. 34 and No. 38, Certain
Financial Statement Note Disclosures (the Statements).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Authority considers all checking and savings deposits and highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The cash and cash equivalents of the
Authority’s operating fund at June 30, 2010 consist of approximately $500,000 insured and $1,068,866
noninsured deposits with banks, and $4,616,365 of money market funds held by a custodian and
secured by short-term U.S. Treasury obligations.

The Authority invests monies with the State of Maine. The State of Maine sponsors an internal
investment pool (the Treasurer’s Cash Pool). The Authority’s participation is voluntary. The State of
Maine Treasurer’s Cash Pool is primarily comprised of investment vehicles with short maturities and
management of the Authority characterizes the investments within the pool as low risk. The State of
Maine’s Treasurer’s Cash Pool is not rated by external rating agencies. The Authority’s management
considers this investment vehicle a money market instrument and generally carries the amounts in the
pool at cost. At June 30, 2010, the Authority had approximately $5,005,000 invested in the Treasurer’s
Cash Pool.

I nvestments

Investments are carried at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded as net increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. The cost of
guaranteed investment contracts approximates fair value as the Authority can withdraw funds at par
during the contract periods.

Bond Discounts, Premiums and | ssuance Costs

Costs associated with issuing debt, which are generally paid by means of fees collected from institutions
(borrowers), are expensed in the year incurred. To the extent they are used to pay bond issuance costs,
premiums remitted to the Authority are recorded as other income. Other premiums and discounts are
passed on to the borrowers, and are, therefore, not recorded.
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIESAUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Interfund Transactions

Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenses initially made from it that are
properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions
of expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions are reported as operating transfers.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated operating fund reflects the accounts of the Authority and its formerly wholly-owned
subsidiary, the Center. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in
consolidation.

The net assets of the Center were sold in 2010 (see note 10). The income from operations of the Center
through the date of sale and the related gain on sale are presented as discontinued operations on the
accompanying statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management of the Authority to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Total Columns
The “total” columns contain the totals of the similar accounts of the various funds. The combination of

the accounts, including assets therein, is for convenience only and does not indicate that the combined
assets are available in any manner other than that provided for in the separate funds.

| nvestments Held by Trustee and Board-Designated Cash and | nvestments

The Authority is authorized, under Maine statutes, to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises and certain state and local governments, as well as certain
investment contracts and collateralized repurchase agreements. The trustees/custodians invest available
cash in accordance with Maine statutes, applicable Series Resolutions and Tax Regulatory Agreements.
At June 30, 2010, investments are categorized as follows:

Fair Value
Consolidated Operating Fund
Board-designated investments:
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises
bonds and notes $_ 7,122,830
$_ 7,122,830
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3.

MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIESAUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

I nvestments Held by Trustee and Boar d-Designated Cash and | nvestments (Continued)

Fair Value
Reserve Fund
Investments held by trustee:

U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises
bonds and notes $ 7,468,976
Guaranteed investment contracts 69,304,055
Municipal bonds 40,469,490
Cash and cash equivalents 41,208,602

$158,451,123

Board Designated Cash and Investments:
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises

bonds and notes $ 9,649,473
Cash and cash equivalents 14,674,922
$.24,324,395

Taxable Financing Reserve Fund
Investments held by trustee:

Guaranteed investment contracts $ 625,975
Cash and cash equivalents 528,991
$_ 1,154,966

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Authority’s
investment policy provides that investment maturities be closely matched with future bond principal and
interest requirements, which are the primary use of invested assets. Further, guaranteed investment
contracts, which maturities are also closely matched with future bond principal and interest
requirements, contain provisions that allow the Authority to terminate individual contracts at par. The
Authority’s general practice has been to hold all debt securities to their maturity, at which point the
funds are needed to make required bond principal and interest payments for the respective resolutions.
The following table provides information on future maturities of the Authority’s investments in
guaranteed investment contracts, U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises and municipal bonds as of
June 30, 2010:

Fair Less than One to Six to More than
Value One Year Five Years Ten Years Ten Years
Authority’s Operating Fund
U.S. Government-sponsored
enterprises bonds and notes
(FHLB, FNMA, etc.) $_ 7,122,830 $5,100,950 $2,021,880 $ - 3 -
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3.

MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIESAUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

I nvestments Held by Trustee and Boar d-Designated Cash and | nvestments (Continued)

Fair Less than One to Six to More than
Value One Year Five Years Ten Years Ten Years
Reserve Fund
U.S. Government-sponsored
enterprises bonds and notes
(FHLB, FNMA, etc.) $ 17,118,449 $2,979,469 $6,670,004 $2,562,225 $ 4,906,751
Guaranteed investment
contracts 69,304,055 - - - 69,304,055
Municipal bonds 40,469,490 - - - 40,469,490

$126,891,994 $2,979,469 $6,670,004 $2,562,225 $ 114,680,296

Taxable Financing Reserve Fund
Guaranteed investment
contracts $ 625975 $ — $ 625975 $ - 3 -

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The Authority’s investments are primarily held by U.S. Bank and
Bangor Savings Bank. Management of the Authority is not aware of any issues with respect to
custodial credit risk at either U.S. Bank or Bangor Savings Bank at June 30, 2010.

For an investment, credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligations to the Authority. The Authority’s investment policy limits its investments to those
with high credit quality such as U.S. Treasury Obligations, U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises and
municipal bonds, as rated by rating agencies such as Moody’s Investor Service or Standard and Poor’s,
or guaranteed investment contracts backed by high credit quality banks and insurance companies (AA-
rated or better).

The Authority limits its credit risk by investing in guaranteed investment contracts backed by high
credit quality banks and insurance companies. Investments in guaranteed investment contract issuers
that represent 5% or more of total guaranteed investment contracts within each respective resolution at
June 30, 2010, with their credit quality ratings as issued by Standard & Poor’s as of the date of this
report, are as follows:

Rating
Reserve Fund
Guaranteed Investment Contracts Provided By:
FSA Capital Management Services, LLC AAA $50,101,881
Transamerica Life Insurance Company AA- 11,438,906
GE Funding Capital Market Service AA+ 3,479,154
Total $65,019,941
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIESAUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

I nvestments Held by Trustee and Boar d-Designated Cash and | nvestments (Continued)

Rating
Taxable Financing Reserve Fund
Guaranteed Investment Contracts Provided By:
Transamerica Life Insurance Company AA- $ 238,375
Protective Life Insurance Company AA- 387,600
Total $_ 625,975

During prior years, certain guaranteed investment contract providers experienced credit downgrades.
As a result, the Authority exercised provisions in the various contracts and received a return of par.
Upon liquidation, monies were invested in cash and cash equivalents and municipal bonds.
Management of the Authority continues to search for additional investment opportunities to move
remaining monies out of cash and cash equivalents into higher yielding investments.

All municipal bonds within the reserve fund are Standard & Poor’s AA- rated or better as of June 30,
2010.

Trustee held cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2010 consist primarily of short-term money market

funds invested exclusively in U.S. Treasury obligations.

Bonds Payable

Total Reserve Fund bonds payable consist of the following at June 30, 2010

Amount
Original Original Outstanding
Maturity Amount Issued June 30, 2010
Reserve Fund:

Series 1992B, 3.0% — 5.875%),

dated September 15, 1992 1993-2022 $ 44,850,000 $ 990,000
Series 1994A, 3.3% — 6.0%,

dated March 1, 1994 1994 — 2024 18,380,000 7,340,000
Series 1995C, 3.875% — 6.2%,

dated August 1, 1995 1996 - 2025 13,745,000 505,000
Series 1996A, 3.75% — 5.625%,

dated August 15, 1996 1997 - 2026 28,515,000 140,000
Series 1996B, 4.5% — 5.75%,

dated October 15, 1996 1997 — 2026 41,855,000 1,270,000
Series 1997A, 4.3% —5.7%,

dated June 1, 1997 2000 — 2027 8,310,000 6,560,000
Series 1997B, 4.25% — 5.0%,

dated December 1, 1997 1998 - 2018 52,640,000 26,370,000
Series 1998A, 4.0% — 5.28%,

dated March 18, 1998 1999 - 2028 76,800,000 10,035,000
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIESAUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

4. Bonds Payable (Continued)

20

Amount
Original Original Outstanding
Maturity Amount Issued June 30, 2010
Reserve Fund (continued):

Series 1998B, 3.7% — 5.0%,

dated June 1, 1998 1999 -2028 $ 100,540,000 $ 11,145,000
Series 1998C, 2.95% — 5.1%,

dated November 1, 1998 1999 - 2029 30,585,000 17,570,000
Series 1999A, 3.5% — 5.25%,

dated April 15, 1999 1999 - 2030 98,385,000 27,290,000
Series 1999B, 4.0% — 6.0%,

dated December 1, 1999 2000 - 2029 41,505,000 2,515,000
Series 2000C, 4.375% — 5.75%,

dated July 15, 2000 2001 — 2030 51,540,000 1,470,000
Series 2001A, 3.45% — 5.25%,

dated February 15, 2001 2002 — 2031 66,585,000 31,090,000
Series 2001B, 3.25% — 5.20%,

dated May 15, 2001 2002 - 2022 10,615,000 7,580,000
Series 2001D, 3.0% — 5.0%,

dated November 1, 2001 2002 — 2031 50,700,000 32,310,000
Series 2002A, 3.0% — 5.125%,

dated July 1, 2002 2003 - 2032 56,040,000 41,130,000
Series 2002B, 3.0% — 5.125%,

dated July 1, 2002 2003 — 2032 8,175,000 7,425,000
Series 2003A, 2.25% — 5.0%,

dated January 15, 2003 2004 — 2032 63,080,000 55,125,000
Series 2003B, 2.0% — 5.0%,

dated July 1, 2003 2004 - 2033 59,245,000 18,155,000
Series 2003C, 2.0% — 4.6%,

dated July 1, 2003 2004 — 2033 7,050,000 5,895,000
Series 2003D, 2.0% — 5.0%,

dated September 1, 2003 2004 - 2023 35,880,000 25,325,000
Series 2004A, 2.0% — 5.375%,

dated June 3, 2004 2004 — 2025 72,315,000 55,465,000
Series 2004B, 3.00% — 5.00%,

dated December 9, 2004 2006 — 2034 42,265,000 37,525,000
Series 2005A, 3.0% — 5.0%,

dated August 17, 2005 2006 — 2035 48,325,000 17,720,000
Series 2005B, 3.5% — 5.0%,

dated December 29, 2005 2006 — 2030 28,325,000 24,020,000
Series 2006A, 3.5% — 5.0%,

dated February 2, 2006 2006 — 2035 51,855,000 44,225,000
Series 2006B, 3.5% — 5.0%,

dated April 6, 2006 2007 — 2036 56,795,000 46,190,000



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIESAUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

4. Bonds Payable (Continued)

Amount
Original Original Outstanding
Maturity Amount Issued June 30, 2010
Reserve Fund (continued):
Series 2006F, 4.0% — 5.0%,
dated September 7, 2006 2007-2036 $ 89,125,000 $ 86,000,000
Series 2006G, variable rate,
dated September 7, 2006 2008 — 2036 14,200,000 13,850,000
Series 2006H, variable rate,
dated December 20, 2006 2012 — 2036 68,400,000 68,400,000
Series 2007A, 4.0% — 5.0%,
dated July 18, 2007 2008 — 2030 96,495,000 89,615,000
Series 2007B, 4.0% — 5.0%,
dated November 1, 2007 2008 — 2037 70,470,000 68,660,000
Series 2008A, variable rate,
dated May 22, 2008 2008 — 2036 107,180,000 104,535,000
Series 2008B, variable rate,
dated June 19, 2008 2008 — 2014 25,985,000 22,025,000
Series 2008C, 3.0% — 5.0%,
dated June 19, 2008 2009 — 2038 49,540,000 48,505,000
Series 2008D, 3.0% — 5.75%,
dated December 3, 2008 2009 — 2038 41,735,000 40,990,000
Series 2009A, 2.0% — 5.125%,
dated December 10, 2009 2010 - 2039 92,780,000 92,780,000
Series 2010A, 2.5% — 5.25%
dated April 22, 2010 2011 - 2040 97,240,000 97,240,000
Series 2010B, 2.5% — 5.25%
dated June 24, 2010 2011 -2031 96,755,000 96,755,000
Series 2010C, 2.5% — 4.0%
dated June 24, 2010 2011 -2023 11,275,000 11,275,000
$2,126,080,000 1,403,010,000
Current portion 42,415,000
Noncurrent portion $1,360,595,000
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Bonds Payable (Continued)

The outstanding Reserve Fund bonds payable will mature in each of the following years with interest

payable semiannually:

Year Ending Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 42,415,000 $ 53,003,784 $ 95,418,784
2012 54,860,000 54,563,132 109,423,132
2013 59,485,000 52,634,059 112,119,059
2014 60,135,000 50,564,926 110,699,926
2015 61,750,000 48,387,257 110,137,257

2016 — 2020 294,125,000 206,335,763 500,460,763

2021 - 2025 285,375,000 143,725,960 429,100,960

2026 — 2030 251,775,000 86,349,755 338,124,755

2031 - 2035 185,455,000 39,047,379 224,502,379

2036 — 2040 104,160,000 9,600,548 113,760,548
2041 3,475,000 86,875 3,561,875
Total $1,403,010,000 $744,299,438 $2,147,309,438

Taxable Financing Reserve fund bonds payable consist of the following at June 30, 2010:

Original Original Outstanding
Maturity Amount Issued  June 30, 2010
Taxable Financing Reserve Fund:
Series 1993A, variable interest rate,
dated January 1, 1993 1993-2012  $57,125,000 $ 615,000
Series 1993B, variable interest rate,
dated October 27, 1993 1994 - 2013 25,060,000 970,000
Series 1996A, variable interest
rate, dated February 22, 1996 1996 - 2016 16,440,000 1,695,000
$98,625,000 3,280,000
Current portion 605,000
Noncurrent portion $2,675,000

The outstanding Taxable Financing Reserve Fund bonds payable will mature in each of the following

years with interest payable semiannually:

Year Ending Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 605,000 $211,068 $ 816,068
2012 655,000 166,124 821,124
2013 700,000 117,791 817,791
2014 495,000 75,410 570,410
2015 255,000 49,034 304,034

2016 — 2017 570,000 40,774 610,774

$3,280,000 $660,201 $3,940,201




MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIESAUTHORITY
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June 30, 2010

Bonds Payable (Continued)

The following summarizes bonds payable activity for the Authority for the year ended June 30, 2010:

Taxable

Reserve Financing

Fund Reserve Fund

Balance, beginning of year $1,316,935,000 $8,080,000

Issuances, at par 298,050,000 -
Redemptions:

Principal payments 49,390,000 4,800,000
Bonds refunded (note 8) 162,585,000 —

Balance, end of year $1,403,010,000 $3,280,000

Certain outstanding bonds within the Reserve Fund and Taxable Financing Reserve Fund carry variable
interest rates. Within the Reserve Fund, variable interest rates are reset to market every 7 days; interest
rates range from .22% to .42% at June 30, 2010. Within the Taxable Financing Reserve Funds, variable
interest rates are set at LIBOR + .40%, which approximates .75% at June 30, 2010.

Conduit Debt

Conduit debt of the Authority consists of bonds outstanding within the general resolution. The
following is a summary of outstanding conduit debt at June 30, 2010:

Amount
Original Original Outstanding
Maturity Amount Issued  June 30, 2010

General Resolution:
Southern Maine Medical Center, Series 1989,
5.9% — 7.3%, dated November 1, 1989 1990 -2014 $ 11,885,000 $ 875,000
Mt. Desert Island Hospital, Series 1992, variable
interest rate equal to 80% of the prime rate of

Bank of America, dated July 15, 1992 1993 - 2012 1,300,000 290,000
Mid Coast Geriatrics, Series 2002, 4.5% — 5.4%,

dated July 1, 2002 2006 — 2043 8,830,000 8,355,000
Bowdoin College, Series 2008, variable rate,

dated March 24, 2008 2032 — 2037 20,700,000 20,700,000
Bowdoin College, Series 2009A, 5% — 5.125%,

dated May 14, 2009 2035 - 2039 98,750,000 98,750,000
Bowdoin College, Series 2009B, 6.667%,

dated May 14, 2009 2035 - 2039 19,750,000 19,750,000

$161,215,000  $148,720,000
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Conduit Debt (Continued)

The following is a summary of conduit debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2010:

Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2009 $149,080,000
Less: Redemptions during fiscal 2010 360,000
Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2010 $148,720,000

At June 30, 2010, there were approximately $13,485,000 of defeased bonds remaining outstanding with
respect to advance refunded conduit debt of bond issues of the general resolution.

Reserve Funds

Each of the following resolutions require the Authority to set up reserve funds (maintain assets) as
follows:

Reserve Fund

The Authority is required to maintain debt service reserve assets which are equal to the maximum
amount of principal installments and interest maturing and becoming due in any succeeding calendar
year on all loan obligations then outstanding as of such date of calculation. At June 30, 2010, the
required debt service reserve was approximately $113,141,000 and the fair value of the debt service
reserve assets totaled approximately $127,793,000.

In addition, the Authority maintains a supplemental reserve as described in note 1. The fair value of
these assets at June 30, 2010 is approximately $24,324,000.

Taxable Financing Reserve Fund

The Authority is required to maintain debt service reserve assets which are equal to the maximum
amount of principal installments and interest maturing and becoming due in any succeeding calendar
year on all loan obligations then outstanding as of such date of calculation. At June 30, 2010, the
required debt service reserve was approximately $844,500 and the fair value of the debt service reserve
assets totaled approximately $943,000.

Operating Expenses

The Authority has a management agreement with the Bond Bank which allocates a portion of Bond
Bank expenses to the Authority. The allocation is based on expenses specifically incurred on behalf of
the Authority and the Authority’s estimated portion of general overhead. The Authority recognized
approximately $464,000 of expense under this agreement in 2010.
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Refunded | ssues

In periods of declining interest rates, the Authority has refunded various bond obligations. The
proceeds of any advance refunding bonds are primarily used to purchase U.S. Treasury obligations, the
principal and interest on which will be sufficient to pay the principal and interest, when due, of the
defeased bonds. Neither the U.S. Treasury obligations nor the defeased bonds are reflected on the
accompanying financial statements. The U.S. Treasury obligations are placed in irrevocable trust
accounts with the trustees of the defeased bonds. The gains, losses and economic benefits of these
transactions inure to the respective Institution and not the Authority, although the Authority may receive
an administrative fee.

On April 22, 2010, the Authority issued $97,240,000 in 2010A reserve fund resolution revenue bonds
with an average interest rate of 4.84%, a portion of which was used ($41,125,000) to in-substance
defease $44,160,000 of outstanding maturities within the 1998B and 1999A bond series. The net
proceeds of approximately $45,349,000, including other sources of funds and after payment of
underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance costs, were used to purchase U.S. Government
securities which will provide for all future debt service payments on defeased bonds.

On June 24, 2010, the Authority issued $108,030,000 in 2010B and C reserve fund resolution revenue
bonds with an average interest rate of 4.36%, all of which was used to in-substance defease
$118,425,000 of certain outstanding maturities within the 1993D, 1995A, 1998A, 1998B, 1998C,
1999A, 2000C, 2001A, 2001C and 2001D bond series. The net proceeds of approximately
$123,281,000, including other sources of funds and after payment of underwriting fees, insurance and
other issuance costs, were used to purchase U.S. Government securities which will provide for all future
debt service payments on defeased bonds.

At June 30, 2010, there were approximately $247,610,000 of in-substance defeased bonds remaining
outstanding with respect to all advance-refunding issues within the reserve fund resolution.

Nursing Home L oans and Advances

In 1994, the Maine Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) substantially revised the
eligibility criteria for Medicaid coverage of nursing facility services, causing a decline in occupancy in
nursing facilities. The occupancy decline has not affected each nursing facility equally. In some
instances, particularly in proprietary nursing homes borrowing under the taxable financing reserve fund
resolution, which consists primarily of loans to nursing homes, these declines in occupancy created cash
flow problems.

The Authority has advanced approximately $116,000 from its operating fund to an institution with
outstanding loans owed to the Authority of approximately $394,000 within the taxable financing reserve
fund resolution, and has loaned from its operating fund approximately $331,000 to an institution with
outstanding loans owed to the Authority of approximately $8,800,000 within the reserve fund resolution
at June 30, 2010. These advances and loans, upon which interest income is recognized only to the
extent that cash payments are received, were primarily made to assist these institutions in meeting debt
service requirements in years prior to fiscal 2010. The Authority also has approximately $387,000 of
other receivables outstanding within the operating fund at June 30, 2010, primarily related to amounts
due from institutions to reimburse the Authority for arbitrage and other payments made on their behalf.

At June 30, 2010, the Authority has established a $617,900 reserve in the operating fund related to the
above loans, advances and other receivables outstanding.
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10. Discontinued Operations

On September 30, 2009, the Authority sold the net assets of Portland Center for Assisted Living to
PCAL Devonshire Associates, LLC and recognized a gain on sale of $892,194. The following is a
summary of cash consideration received and uses of funds upon sale:

Cash consideration:

Sales price $7,405,000
Other miscellaneous proceeds 34,239
Less debt service reserve fund deposit on hand (886,000)
6,553,239
Cash used:

Settlement with Department of Health and Human Services,
including depreciation recapture 2,337,999
Pay-off of loan to Taxable Financing Reserve Fund Resolution 1,398,013
3,736,012
Net proceeds paid to the Authority’s Operating Fund Group $2,817,227

The following represents the Center’s balance sheet at time of sale and reconciliation of the gain
recognized on sale:

September 30, 2009

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,873,460
Resident accounts receivable 128,226
Assets whose use is limited 504,745
Net property, plant and equipment 2,666,961
Deferred financing costs 67,054
Other assets 45,405
7,285,851
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities 86,560
Deferred revenue 12,666
Resident funds held in trust 36,487
Estimated third-party payor settlement 1,181,877
Deposit liability 2,645,215
Loans payable to Authority’s taxable financing reserve fund 1,398,013
Advances and accrued interest due to the Authority’s operating fund 9,350,256
14,711,074
Net deficit $(7,425,223)
The net proceeds paid to the Authority were applied as follows:
Advances and accrued interest due to the Authority’s operating fund $ 9,350,256
Net deficit (7,425,223)
1,925,033
Net proceeds paid to the Authority’s operating fund group 2,817,227
Recognized gain on sale $_ 892,194
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10. Discontinued Oper ations (Continued)

Amounts included in the consolidated operating fund statement of revenues, expenses and changes in
net assets with respect to the discontinued operations of the Center are as follows:

Gross resident service revenue $ 2,255,912
Contractual adjustments under third-party reimbursement programs (933,568)
Net resident service revenue 1,322,344
Other income 10,993
Resident service and other operating expenses (1,004,294)
Income from operations 329,043
Interest expense to taxable financing reserve fund (36,500)
Net income $_ 292,543

Amounts above do not include interest on loans to the Authority’s operating fund.
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Robert O. Lenna, Executive Director
Tel 207-622-1958

MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER

EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORTTY Fax 207-623-5359
TO: INTERESTED PARTIES

FROM: Robert O. Lenna, Executive Director

RE: 2009 Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Annual Report

This is the annual report for the Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority for the 2009 fiscal
year, running from July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2009. As of June 30, 2009, the Authority has $149,080,000
outstanding under its general tax exempt conduit resolution, $1,316,935,000 outstanding under its tax exempt
reserve fund resolution, and $8,080,000 outstanding under it’s taxable reserve fund resolution.

During fiscal year 2009 the Authority issued $41,735,000 of bonds under its tax-exempt reserve fund resolution
and $118,500,000 under its general tax exempt conduit resolution. These sales were accomplished in three
series for two colleges and four hospitals.

Started in December of 1991, the Authonty s unique health and higher education program, using a state moral
obligation reserve fund make-up provision and the ability to intercept funds of borrowers prior to any failure to
pay, provides unusual strength to a diversified and dispersed portfolio of loans to health care and higher
educational facilities throughout Maine. By making use of out ability to aggregate issues, share costs for bond
sales among multiple borrowers and provide the State’s moral obligation credit enhancement to eligible
institutions, we provide all of Maine’s health and higher educational facilities, from the largest to the smallest,
with the lowest cost available for the money they borrow to meet their capital needs.

If there is further information you might like or questions you may have concerning the Authority, please feel
free to give us a call at (207) 622-1958. Additional information about the Authonty is available at out website:

www.mhhefa.com
€ 1 %A ‘_\

127 Community Drive » P.O.Box 2268 * Augusta, Maine ¢ 04338-2268 ¢ www.mhhefa.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority

We have audited the accompanying financial statements which include the Consolidated Operating Fund,
Reserve Fund and Taxable Financing Reserve Fund, which collectively comprise the basic financial
statements of Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority, which is an instrumentality of the
State of Maine and is required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 14 and 39 to be
shown as a component unit of the State of Maine (for accounting purposes only), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2009, as listed on the accompanying table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority, as well as the individual fund
groups referred to above, as of June 30, 2009, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 6, 2009
on our consideration of Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 — 7 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements, but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.



' To the Members of
Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that comprise the
Authority’s basic financial statements. The supplementary schedules listed in the table of contents are
presented for the purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such supplementary information has been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements, and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

B e g

Portland, Maine Limited Liability Company
November 6, 2009



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2009

As financial management of the Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”),
we offer readers of these financial statements this narrative, overview and analysis of the financial activities
of the Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This discussion and analysis is designed to assist the
reader in focusing on the significant financial issues and activities of the Authority and to identify any
significant changes in financial position. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with the basic financial statements as a whole.

Financial Highlights

¢  Operating income for the Authority’s Consolidated Operating Fund was $4,644,893 for fiscal year 2009,
an increase of $114,014 or 2.5% over fiscal year 2008. This increase in consolidated operating income
was primarily due to a decrease in operating expenses and a slight increase in net resident service
revenues from Portland Center.

e  Total revenues of $71,905,022 for fiscal year 2009 were a decrease of $6,956,285 or 8.8% from fiscal
year 2008. The decrease was due to a decrease in income from investments, a scheduled reduction in
interest received from institutions and a decrease in premium and other revenues received from new
bond issuances (which is the result of fewer bonds being issued in fiscal year 2009).

e  The Authority's loans receivable from institutions at June 30, 2009 of $1,202,111,878 represents a net
decrease of $117,180,453 or 8.9% from the balance at June 30, 2008. This decrease is the net result of
the bond refundings and issuances described below, and repayment of loans by institutions during fiscal
year 2009.

e  The Authority’s gross bonds outstanding at June 30, 2009 of $1,325,015,000 represents a net decrease of
$127,180,000 or 8.8% from the balance at June 30, 2008. This decrease is primarily due to the refunding
of $111,610,000 of reserve fund bonds with 2009AB general resolution bonds and the issuance of
$41,735,000 in Series 2008D reserve fund bonds, less scheduled bond principal payments and certain
other refundings that occurred in 2009 (refer to notes 4 and 8 of the audited financial statements). The
Authority’s bonds are a combination of fixed and variable interest rate and tax-exempt and taxable
bonds, although a majority of the bonds are fixed interest rate and tax-exempt.

Overview of the Authority

The Authority was created in 1972 by an Act of the Maine Legislature, is a public body corporate and politic
and is constituted as an instrumentality exercising public and essential governmental functions of the State.
The Authority was established to issue bonds for the purpose, among other things, of assisting Maine health
care institutions and institutions of higher education in the undertaking of projects involving the acquisition,
construction, improvement, reconstruction and equipping of health care and educational facilities and the
refinancing of existing indebtedness. The Authority, pursuant to the Student Loan Corporations Act of 1983,
also has the power to finance student loan programs of institutions for higher education.

As the result of the Authority issuing tax-exempt debt, the Authority is required to prepare arbitrage rebate
calculations for each series of bonds outstanding and remit payment to the Internal Revenue Service every
five years. The Authority’s policy is to prepare and review the calculations every six months for financial
statement purposes.

For financial statement reporting purposes, the Authority is considered a component unit of the State of
Maine. However, the Authority does not receive any State appropriations for its operations and is funded
from fees charged to participating borrowers and interest earnings on investments.



Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s financial statements,
which are comprised of the basic financial statements and the notes to the financial statements.

Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The balance sheet presents information on all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Net assets increases when revenues exceed expenses. Increases to
assets without a corresponding increase to liabilities result in increased net assets, which may indicate an
improved financial position.

The statement of revenues and expenses and changes in net assets presents information showing how the
Authority’s net assets changed during the fiscal year. Substantially all changes in net assets are reported as
soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless of timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods.

The statement of cash flows is presented using the direct method of reporting which reflects cash flows from
operating, financing and investing activities. Cash collections and payments are reflected in this statement to
arrive at the net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the fiscal year.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the basic financial statements.

Financial Analysis
Net assets may serve, over time, as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the

Authority, assets exceeded liabilities by $43,724,513 at June 30, 2009. This represents in increase of
$4,046,472 or 10.2% over the previous fiscal year, which is the Authority’s 2009 operating income.
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The Authority’s financial position and operations for the past two years are summarized below based on

information included in the audited financial statements.
Balance Sheet

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments held by trustee, at fair value
Board-designated cash and investments
Accrued investment income
Loans receivable from institutions
Loan receivable from operating fund
Interest and other receivables from institutions
Fees and other amounts due from other funds
Resident accounts receivable, net of allowance
of $16,000
Other assets
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Investments held by trustee, at fair value
Loans receivable from institutions
Loan receivable from operating fund
Notes, advances and other receivables from
institutions, net of allowance of $732,000
Assets whose use is limited
Fixed assets, net
Deferred financing costs, net
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Current liabilities:
Bonds payable
Loan payable to taxable financing reserve fund
Interest payable
Fees and other amounts due to operating fund
Accounts payable
Estimated 3rd party payor settlements
Rebate payable to Internal Revenue Service
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable
Loan payable to taxable financing reserve fund
Rebate payable to Internal Revenue Service
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets:
Unrestricted net assets

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

009 008 % Change

$ 12,704,752 $ 11,452,198  10.9%
34,473,356 39,572,218  (12.9)
25,122,442 22,391,725 122
256,621 531,823  (51.7)
49,362,675 39,935,000  23.6
660,000 610,000 8.2
2,289,438 1,445446 584
2,378,251 1,929,593 233
426,880 431,789  (L.1)
50,097 53,611 _(6.6)
127,724,512 118,353,403 7.9
120,845,109 126,461,125  (4.4)
1,152,749,203  1279,357,331  (9.9)
1,398,013 2,058,013  (32.1)
131,744 110369  19.4
966,366 881,713 9.6
2,742,693 3,036,029  (9.7)
72,075 92,160  (21.8)
1.278.905.203 1411996740 _(9.4)

$.1,406,629,715  $_1,530,350,143 8.1)%
$ 50235000 $ 40,955,000  22.7%
660,000 610,000 8.2
26,652,666 21,571917  (34)
2,378,251 1,929,593 233
537,391 1,128229  (52.4)
1,418,356 1,447,933  (2.0)
56,529 295,954  (80.9)
2,858,628 1,060,190  169.6
454,175 368961 _23.1
85,250,996 75,373,777 13.1
1,274,780,000  1,411,240,000  (9.7)
1,398,013 2,058,013  (32.1)
1,476,193 2,000312  (262)
1277.654.206 1415298325 _(9.7)
1,362,905,202  1,490,672,102  (8.6)
43,724,513 39,678,041 102
43,724,513 39.678.041  10.2

$.1,406629.715 $.1,530,350,143  _(8.1)%



2009 2008 % Change
Operating revenues:
Interest and other amounts from institutions $55,481,214  $58,000,829 (4.3)%
Interest on loans receivable from operating fund 214,155 254,587 (15.9)
Net resident service revenue 5,333,997 5,120,857 42
Administrative and other fees 3,309,779 3,229,985 2.5
Income from investments 6,475,237 8,795,360 (26.4)
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments 120,453 (154,048) 178.2
Interest income from advances and notes receivable
from institutions 35,778 45,882 (22.0)
Other income 934.409 3,567,855 (73.8)
Total operating revenues 71,905,022 78,861,307 (8.8)
Operating expenses:
Bond issuance costs 788,440 3,434,810 (77.0)
Interest expense 60,748,835 63,971,899 (5.0)
Interest expense to taxable financing reserve funds 214,155 254,587 (15.9)
Operating expenses 685,497 720,161 4.8)
Resident service and other operating expenses 4,304,149 4,430,502 2.9)
Other expenses 1,117,474 857.662 30.3
Total operating expenses 67.858.550 73,669,621 (7.9)
Operating income 4,046,472 5,191,686 (22.1)
Net assets, beginning of year 39.678.041  34.486.355 15.1
Net assets, end of year $43,724,513  $39,678.041 10.2%

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2009 increased $1,252,554 or 10.9% from balances at June 30, 2008.
This increase was the result of investing fewer funds into long-term investments.

Accrued investment income at June 30, 2009 decreased $275,202 or 51.7% from fiscal year 2008 due to a
decrease in the amount invested in long-term guaranteed investment contracts and a decrease in short-term
interest rates in 2009.

Interest and other receivables from institutions at June 30, 2009 increased $843,992 or 58.4% from balances
at June 30, 2008 primarily due to the timing of transfers from capital interest accounts held by the trustee.
Amounts were transferred on July 1, 2009 for the semi annual debt service payment.

Fees and other amounts due from other funds increased $448,658 or 23.3% over fiscal year 2008 due to an
increase in arbitrage payments made from the operating fund that will be reimbursed in future years from debt
service earnings accounts in the reserve resolution.

Accounts payable at June 30, 2009 decreased $590,838 or 52.4% from June 30, 2008. The decrease was the
result of the disbursement of balances to borrowers during fiscal year 2009 that had been accrued in prior
years.

Deferred revenue increased $1,798,438 or 169.6% in fiscal year 2009 over fiscal year 2008. The increase is a
result of deferring funds received from estimated debt service installments for variable rate bonds. Funds
were collected using an estimated rate based on the current market at the time of debt service letters. Funds
will be used for future debt service payments.



Rebate payable to the Internal Revenue Service at June 30, 2009 decreased $763,544 or 33.3% from June 30,
2008. This decrease is the result of the net difference between additional accrued rebate payable for fiscal
year 2009 and rebate payment to the Internal Revenue Service during fiscal year 2009. This decrease is also
due to the downgrading of long-term guaranteed investment contracts providers and the subsequent
conversions of the guaranteed investment contracts to short-term money market funds, thus reducing the
investment yield.

The net change in the fair value of investments in 2009 was an increase of $120,453 versus a decrease of
$154,048 in 2008. The increases experienced during fiscal 2009 are the result of fluctuations in the interest
rate environment which resulted in a marginal increase of the market value of investments that were
purchased in prior periods when interest rates were higher. The Authority’s investment portfolio is comprised
of cash and cash equivalents, U.S. Government obligations (including treasury bills, notes, and bonds), U.S.
Government-sponsored enterprises, guaranteed investment contracts and municipal bonds. All investments
are carried at fair value, and unrealized gains and losses (primarily due to fluctuations in market values) are
recognized in the statements of operations and changes in unrestricted net assets. The maturities of
investments in the debt service reserve funds are scheduled to match debt service payments and are normally
held to maturity.

Income from investments for fiscal year 2009 decreased $2,320,123 or 26.4% from fiscal year 2008. This
decrease is the result of short term interest rates declining for fiscal year 2009 and also the downgrading of
long term guaranteed investment contracts providers and the subsequent conversions of the guaranteed
investment contracts to short term money market funds at much lower interest rates.

Other revenue for fiscal year 2009 decreased $2,633,446 or 73.8% from fiscal year 2008. This decrease is the
result of fewer new bonds being issued during fiscal year 2009 and therefore less revenue received to pay for
costs of issuance. Similarly, the bond issuance costs for fiscal year 2009 have also decreased.

The Authority shares office space and staff with the Maine Municipal Bond Bank. The Authority reimburses
the Maine Municipal Bond Bank for its proportionate share of personnel services, employee benefits, office
space, equipment rental and other miscellaneous costs.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s financial statements for all
those with an interest in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
request for additional information should be addressed to the Executive Director, Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority, P.O. Box 2268, Augusta, ME 04338-2268.



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (note 2)

Investments held by trustee, at fair
value (note 3)

Board-designated cash and
investments, at fair value (note 3)

Accrued investment income

Loans receivable from institutions
(note 9)

Loan receivable from operating fund
(note 10)

Interest and other receivables from
institutions

Fees and other amounts due from
other funds

Resident accounts receivable, net of
allowance of $16,000

Other assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Investments held by trustee, at fair
value (notes 3 and 6)

Loans receivable from institutions
(note 9)

Loan receivable from operating fund
(note 10)

Notes, advances and other receivables
from institutions, net of allowance
of $732,000 (note 9)

Assets whose use is limited (note 10)

Fixed assets, net (note 10)

Deferred financing costs, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2009

ASSETS
Consolidated Taxable
Operating Financing
Fund Reserve Reserve
(Note 10) Fund Fund Total
$12,704,752 $ - $ - $ 12,704,752
- 34,070,972 402,384 34,473,356
25,122,442 — — 25,122,442
51,593 201,303 3,725 256,621
- 48,502,675 860,000 49,362,675
— - 660,000 660,000
— 2,279,013 10,425 2,289,438
2,378,251 — - 2,378,251
426,880 - — 426,880
50,097 - - 50,097
40,734,015 85,053,963 1,936,534 127,724,512
- 118,542,912 2,302,197 120,845,109
- 1,149,889.413 2,859,790 1,152,749,203
- — 1,398,013 1,398,013
131,744 - - 131,744
966,366 — — 966,366
2,742,693 — - 2,742,693
72,075 - — 72,075
3.912,878 1,268.432,325 6.560,000 1,278,905,203
$44,646,893  $1,353,486,288 $8.496,534 $1,406,629,715



Current liabilities:

Bonds payable (note 4)

Loan payable to taxable financing
reserve fund (note 10)

Interest payable

Fees and other amounts due to
operating fund

Accounts payable

Estimated third-party payor
settlements (note 10)

Rebate payable to Internal Revenue

Service
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable (notes 4 and 8)
Loan payable to taxable financing
reserve fund (note 10)

Rebate payable to Internal Revenue

Service
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted net assets

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes.

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Consolidated Taxable
Operating Financing
Fund Reserve Reserve
(Note 10) Fund Fund Total
$ — $ 48,715,000 $1,520,000 $ 50,235,000
660,000 - — 660,000
— 26,628,782 23,884 26,652,666
- 2,021,575 356,676 2,378,251
221,152 306,115 10,124 537,391
1,418,356 - — 1,418,356
— 56,529 - 56,529
13,294 2,845,334 - 2,858,628
454,175 — - 454,175
2,766,977 80,573,335 1,910,684 85,250,996
— 1,268,220,000 6,560,000 1,274,780,000
1,398,013 - - 1,398,013
— 1,476,193 — 1.476.193
1,398.013 1,269.696.193 6.560.000 1,277.654.206
4,164,990 1,350,269,528 8,470,684 1,362,905,202
40,481,903 3,216,760 25.850 43,724,513
40,481,903 3,216,760 25,850 43,724,513
$44,646,893  $1,353,486,288 $8,496,534 $1,406,629,715



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Operating revenues:

Interest and other amounts from
institutions

Interest on loans receivable from
operating fund

Net resident service revenue (note 10)

Administrative and other fees

Income from investments

Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of

investments
Interest income from advances and
notes receivable from institutions
Other income

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:

Bond issuance costs

Interest expense

Interest expense to taxable financing
reserve fund

Operating expenses (note 7)

Resident service and other operating
expenses (note 10)

Other expenses
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss) before operating
transfers

Operating transfers
Operating income (loss)
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes.

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Consolidated Taxable
Operating Financing
Fund Reserve Reserve

(Note 10) Fund Fund Total
$ — $55,218,898 $262,316 $55,481,214
— — 214,155 214,155
5,333,997 — - 5,333,997
3,309,779 — — 3,309,779
1,076,747 5,266,960 131,530 6,475,237
188,403 (67,950) - 120,453
35,778 — — 35,778
145,969 788,440 — 934.409
10,090,673 61,206,348 608,001 71 ,905,022
- 788,440 - 788,440
- 60,164,598 584,237 60,748,835
214,155 - - 214,155
685,497 - - 685,497
4,304,149 - - 4,304,149
— 1,090,999 26,475 1,117.474
5,203,801 62,044.037 610,712  67.858.550
4,886,872 (837,689) (2,711) 4,046,472

(241.979) 241,034 945 —

4,644,893 (596,655) (1,766) 4,046,472
35.837.010 3,813.415 27.616 39.678.041

$40,481,903
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Consolidated Taxable
Operating Financing
Fund Reserve Reserve
_(Note 10) _Fund _Fund Total
Operating activities:
Cash received from institutions $ 3,309,779 $ 94,690,012 $ 1,075,230 $ 99,075,021
Cash received from operating fund - - 824,155 824,155
Cash payments to institutions - (23,764,042) - (23,764,042)
Cash received from patients 5,311,309 - - 5,311,309
Cash received from other income 145,969 - - 145,969
Cash payments for operating expenses (4,540,524) (1,683,099) (122,914) (6,346,537)
Cash (paid to) received from other funds (690,637) 609,689 80,948 -
Cash received from other assets and liabilities 87514 — - 87514
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,623,410 69,852,560 1,857,419 75,333,389
Noncapital financing activities:
Proceeds from bonds payable - 42,523,440 - 42,523,440
Other proceeds from institutions - 141,107 - 141,107
Principal paid on bonds payable - (39,790,000)  (1,420,000) (41,210,000)
Interest paid on bonds payable - (60,952,974) (721,112) (61,674,086)
Paid to refunding escrows - (16,236,107) - (16,236,107)
Transfers to General Resolution - (9,997,067) - (9,997,067)
Principal paid on loans payable to taxable
financing reserve fund (610,000) - - (610,000)
Interest paid on loan payable to taxable
financing reserve fund (214,155) - - (214,155)
Issuance costs paid - (788,440) - (788.440)
Net cash used by noncapital financing activities: (824,155) (85,100,041) (2,141,112) (88,065,308)
Investing activities:
Purchase of investment securities (16,757,274)  (653,926,083) (5,987,647) (676,671,004)
Proceeds from sale and maturities of
investment securities 14,214,960 664,421,964 6,138,694 684,775,618
Income received from investments and advances 1,138,427 5,354,309 132,646 6,625,382
Interest rebate paid to U.S. Government - (602,709) - (602,709)
Additions to equipment (35,270) - - (35,270)
Change in assets whose use is limited (86,169) - - (86,169)
Net decrease in notes, advances and other
receivable from institutions (21,375) - - (21,375)
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities (1,546,701) 15,247.481 283,693 13,984,473
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,252,554 - - 1,252,554
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 11,452,198 - = 11,452,198
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 12704752 $ - 3 - $_12704752
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Consolidated Taxable
Operating Financing
Fund Reserve Reserve
{Note 10) Fund Fund Total
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 4644803 $  (596,655) $ (1,766) $ 4,046,472
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Investment and interest income (1,112,525) (5,266,960) (131,530) (6,511,015)
Net (increase) decrease in the fair
value of investments (188,403) 67,950 - (120,453)
Depreciation and amortization 348,585 - - 348,585
Loss on disposal of equipment 106 - - 106
Interest expense on bonds payable - 60,164,598 584,237 60,748,835
Interest expense on loan payable to v
taxable financing reserve fund 214,155 - - 214,155
Change in assets and liabilities: ,
Loans receivable from institutions - 14,757,520 810,000 15,567,520
Loan receivable from operating fund - - 610,000 610,000
Net resident accounts receivable 4,909 - - 4,909
Accrued interest and other
receivables from institutions - (846,906) 2914 (843,992)
Due to/from other funds (448,658) 368,655 80,003 -
Other assets 3514 - - 3514
Estimated third-party payor
settlements (29,577) - - (29,577)
Accounts payable and other
liabilities 184.431 (592,100) (96,439) (504,108)
Deferred revenue 1,980 1,796,458 = 1,798.438
Net cash provided by operating activities $.3623410 $_69.852.560 $_1.857.419 $_175.333.389

Summary of noncash transactions:

Loans receivable from institutions and bonds payable in the reserve fund resolution were reduced by $101,612,933
and $111,610,000, respectively, as part of a 2009 general resolution refunding.

See accompanying notes.
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

Organization

Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority (the Authority) is constituted as an
instrumentality and, for accounting purposes under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and No.39, Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units, is considered a component unit of the State of Maine, organized
and existing under and pursuant to M.R.S.A., Title 22, Chapter 413, Sections 2051 to 2074, inclusive
and as amended by Chapter 584 of the Public Laws of 1991.

The purpose of the Authority, among others, is to assist Maine health care institutions and institutions for
higher education (the institutions) in the undertaking of projects involving the acquisition, construction,
improvement, reconstruction and equipping of health care and educational facilities and the refinancing
of existing indebtedness. The Authority, pursuant to the Student Loan Corporations Act of 1983, also
has the power to finance student loan programs of institutions for higher education.

Debt issued by the Authority is not debt of the State of Maine or any political subdivision within the
State and the State is not obligated for such debt, nor is the full faith and credit of the State pledged for
such debt. The Authority is exempt from federal and State of Maine income taxes.

Legislation enacted in 1991 permitted the Authority to establish a reserve fund which will benefit from a
“moral obligation” reserve fund replenishment mechanism from the State of Maine. Although the
legislation does not bind or obligate the State, it does permit the legislature to appropriate and pay the
Authority the amount necessary to restore the reserve fund to the required amount in the event the fund
goes below the statutorily established minimum balance of one year’s debt service on outstanding bonds.
The legislation also allows the Authority to implement a State funding intercept mechanism which
permits the Authority to cause the Treasurer of the State of Maine to withhold funds in the Treasurer’s
custody that otherwise would be paid to a borrower that has failed or may fail to make a debt service
payment and to direct the Treasurer to apply those funds as debt service to the applicable bonds or notes.
The State funding intercept is applicable to all future borrowings as well as currently outstanding bond
issues, whether or not secured by the “moral obligation” reserve fund replenishment mechanism.

Operating Fund

The Authority’s operating fund records the revenues and expenses generated from its daily operations,
and also includes the operations of Portland Center for Assisted Living f/k/a Woodford Park Nursing
Care Center, Inc. (the  Center), which was acquired by the Authority in 1998 (see note 10). The
Authority has a management agreement with Maine Municipal Bond Bank (the Bond Bank) resulting in
an allocation of general overhead expenses from the operations of the Bond Bank to the Authority and
payment of direct operating expenses by the Authority.
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

Organization (Continued)

Presently, the Authority operates pursuant to three bond resolutions as follows:
Reserve Fund

These funds and accounts are established under the Authority’s Resolution establishing the Maine Health
Facilities’ Reserve Fund adopted December 6, 1991. Under this resolution, the Authority issues Bonds
exempt from federal and State of Maine income taxes for the purpose of providing financing for Maine
health and higher educational facilities. Bonds issued under this resolution are secured by all of the
reserve funds within the resolution and benefit from the moral obligation reserve fund replenishment
mechanism from the State of Maine. Loans to institutions made with proceeds of bonds issued under
this resolution are generally written for the net amount of bond proceeds less debt service reserve funds
retained by the Authority.

Taxable Financing Reserve Fund

These funds and accounts are established under the Authority’s Resolution establishing the Maine Health
Facilities’ Taxable Financing Reserve Fund Resolution adopted December 15, 1992. Under this
resolution, the Authority issues Bonds exempt from State of Maine income taxes. Bonds issued under
this resolution are secured by all of the reserve funds within the resolution and benefit from the moral
obligation reserve fund replenishment mechanism from the State of Maine. Loans to institutions made
with proceeds of bonds issued under this resolution are generally written for the net amount of bond
proceeds less debt service reserve funds retained by the Authority.

General Resolution

These funds consist of funds and accounts established under the Authority’s General Bond Resolution
adopted June 5, 1973. Under this resolution, the Authority issues bonds exempt from federal and State
of Maine income taxes and assists in financing health care institutions and institutions for higher
education. Bonds issued under this resolution may be issued under the original Bond Resolution or
under an individual Bond Indenture between the Authority and an institution. Loans to institutions made
with proceeds of general resolution bonds are written for the entire amount of the bonds (including debt
service reserve funds). Security for these bonds is limited to debt service reserve funds of and the loans
to the specific institution for which the bond was issued. Therefore, these bonds are considered conduit
debt. (See note 5).

Significant Accounting Policies

Proprietary Fund Accounting

The Authority’s operations are, for the most part, financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprise, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing goods and
services is financed through user charges. Therefore, it meets the criteria for an enterprise fund and is
accounted for under the accrual basis of accounting.
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Authority complies with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting. This
Statement requires that the Authority apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as the
following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulletins (ARB’s). As permitted by GASB No. 20, the Authority has elected not to comply with the
FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with GASB Statements No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, No. 37,
Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 21 and No. 34 and No. 38, Certain
Financial Statement Note Disclosures (the Statements).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Authority considers all checking and savings deposits and highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The consolidated cash and cash equivalents of
the Authority’s operating fund at June 30, 2009 consist of approximately $540,500 insured and $949,100
noninsured deposits with banks, and $11,215,200 of money market funds held by a custodian and
secured by short-term U.S. Treasury obligations.

Investments

Investments are carried at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded as net increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. The cost of
the guaranteed investment contracts approximates fair value as the Authority can withdraw funds at par

during the contract periods.

Bond Discounts, Premiums and Issuance Costs

Costs associated with issuing debt, which are generally paid by means of fees collected from institutions
(borrowers), are expensed in the year incurred. To the extent they are used to pay bond issuance costs,
premiums are remitted to the Authority and are recorded as other income. Other premiums and
discounts are passed on to the borrowers, and are, therefore, not recorded.

Interfund Transactions

Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenses initially made from it that are
properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions
of expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions are reported as operating transfers.
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation expense has been computed using the straight-
line method at rates intended to amortize the cost of the related assets over their estimated useful lives.

Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements

Estimated third-party payor settlements with respect to the Center represent estimates of final settlements
under cost-reimbursed programs.

Amounts due under the cost reimbursement programs will become determinable and final only upon
completion of cost reporting and subsequent audit as required under the terms of agreements with
respective third-party reimbursing agencies.

Revenue Recognition and Resident Accounts Receivable

Net resident service revenue of the Center is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from
patients, third-party reimbursing agencies, and others for services rendered, including estimated
retroactive adjustments under reimbursement formulas with third-party reimbursing agencies.
Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered
and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined.

Resident accounts receivable of the Center are carried net of an allowance for bad debts, if any is
considered necessary by management after considering the nature and circumstances of past due
accounts. Accounts are charged off when deemed uncollectible.

Amortization

Deferred financing costs of the Center are amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the
respective loans.

Income Taxes

The Center has been granted tax-exempt status under Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Code Section
501(c)(3) and, as such, is not subject to federal or state income taxes.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated operating fund reflects the accounts of the Authority and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
the Center. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

Significant Accounﬁng Policies (Continued)

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Total Columns

The “total” columns contain the totals of the similar accounts of the various funds. The combination of
the accounts, including assets therein, is for convenience only and does not indicate that the combined
assets are available in any manner other than that provided for in the separate funds.

Investments Held by Trustee and Board-Designated Investments

The Authority is authorized, under Maine statutes, to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises and certain state and local governments, as well as certain
investment contracts and collateralized repurchase agreements. The trustees/custodians invest available
cash in accordance with Maine statutes, applicable Series Resolutions and Tax Regulatory Agreements.
At June 30, 2009, investments are categorized as follows:

Fair Value
Consolidated Operating Fund
Board-designated investments:
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises
bonds and notes $.25.122.442
$ 25,122,442
Reserve Fund
Investments held by trustee:
Guaranteed investment contracts $ 70,390,452
Municipal bonds 7,880,345
Cash and cash equivalents 74,343,087

$152,613,884
Taxable Financing Reserve Fund
Investments held by trustee:

Guaranteed investment contracts $ 1,985,049
Cash and cash equivalents 719,532
$_ 2,704,581
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

Investments Held by Trustee (Continued)

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Authority’s
investment policy provides that investment maturities be closely matched with future bond principal and
interest requirements, which are the primary use of invested assets. Further, guaranteed investment
contracts, which maturities are also closely matched with future bond principal and interest
requirements, contain provisions that allow the Authority to terminate individual contracts at par. The
Authority’s general practice has been to hold all debt securities to their maturity, at which point the
funds are needed to make required bond principal and interest payments for the respective resolutions.
The following table provides information on future maturities of the Authority’s investments in
guaranteed investment contracts, U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises and municipal bonds as of
June 30, 2009:

Fair Less than One to Six to More than
Value One Year Five Years Ten Years Ten Years

Authority’s Operating Fund

U.S. Government-sponsored
enterprises bonds and notes

(FHLB, FNMA, etc.) $25,122.442 $10,275,425 $14,847,017 $_— $ =
Reserve Fund
Guaranteed investment
contracts $70,390,452 $ - 3 - $ - $70,390,452
Municipal bonds 7,880,345 - - - 7.880.345
$78,270,797 $ - $ — $ - $78,270,797

Taxable Financing Reserve Fund

Guaranteed investment

contracts $1985049 $__ -  $_1,985049 $ - $ —

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The Authority’s investments are primarily held by U.S. Bank and Bangor
Savings Bank. Management of the Authority is not aware of any issues with respect to custodial credit
risk at either U.S. Bank or Bangor Savings Bank at June 30, 2009.

For an investment, credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligations to the Authority. The Authority’s investment policy limits its investments to those
with high credit quality such as U.S. Treasury Obligations, U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises and
municipal bonds, as rated by rating agencies such as Moody’s Investor Service or Standard and Poor’s,
or guaranteed investment contracts backed by high credit quality banks and insurance companies (AA-
rated or better).
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

Investments Held by Trustee (Continued)

The Authority limits its credit risk by investing in guaranteed investment contracts backed by high credit
quality banks and insurance companies. Investments in guaranteed investment contract issuers that
represent 5% or more of total guaranteed investment contracts within each respective resolution at
June 30, 2009, with their credit quality ratings as issued by Standard & Poor’s as of the date of this
report, are as follows:

Rating
Reserve Fund:
Guaranteed Investment Contracts Provided By:
FSA Capital Management Services, LLC AAA $50,101,881
Transamerica Life Insurance Company AA- 11,438,906
Morgan Stanley Flexible Agreements AA 3,840.288
Total $65,381,075
Taxable Financing Reserve Fund:
Guaranteed Investment Contracts Provided By:
Transamerica Life Insurance Company AA- $ 1,547,449
Protective Life Insurance Company AA- 437,600
Total $_1,985,049

During 2009, certain guaranteed investment contract providers experienced credit downgrades. As a
result, the Authority exercised provisions in the various contracts and received a return of par as follows:
$9,567,800 from AIG; $14,705,700 from MBIA; $15,334,000 from AMBAC; and $7,498,600 from
Transamerica. Upon liquidation, monies were invested in cash and cash equivalents and municipal
bonds. Management of the Authority continues to search for additional investment opportunities to
move remaining monies out of cash and cash equivalents into higher yielding investments.

All municipal bonds within the reserve fund are Standard & Poor’s AA rated as of June 30, 2009.

Trustee held cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2009 consist primarily of short-term money market
funds invested exclusively in U.S. Treasury obligations.

Bonds Payable

Total Reserve Fund bonds payable consist of the following at June 30, 2009:

Amount
Original Original Outstanding
Maturity Amount Issued June 30, 2009
Reserve Fund:
Series 1992B, 3.0% — 5.875%,
dated September 15, 1992 1993 -2022 § 44,850,000 § 1,040,000
Series 1993D, 2.6% —5.7%,
dated December I, 1993 1994 — 2023 93,540,000 1,760,000
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4. Bonds Payable (Continued)

Reserve Fund (continued):

Series 1994A, 3.3% — 6.0%,
dated March 1, 1994

Series 1995A, 4.4% — 5.878%,
dated April 1, 1995

Series 1995C, 3.875% — 6.2%,
dated August 1, 1995

Series 1996A, 3.75% — 5.625%,
dated August 15, 1996

Series 1996B, 4.5% — 5.75%,
dated October 15, 1996

Series 1997A, 4.3% — 5.7%,
dated June 1, 1997

Series 1997B, 4.25% — 5.0%,
dated December 1, 1997

Series 1998A, 4.0% — 5.28%,
dated March 18, 1998

Series 1998B, 3.7% — 5.0%,
dated June 1, 1998

Series 1998C, 2.95% — 5.1%,
dated November 1, 1998

Series 1999A, 3.5% — 5.25%,
dated April 15, 1999

Series 1999B, 4.0% — 6.0%,
dated December 1, 1999

Series 2000C, 4.375% — 5.75%,
dated July 15, 2000

Series 2001A, 3.45% — 5.25%,
dated February 15, 2001

Series 2001B, 3.25% - 5.20%,
dated May 15, 2001

Series 2001C, 3.25% — 5.125%,
dated May 15, 2001

Series 2001D, 3.0% — 5.0%,
dated November 1, 2001

Series 2002A, 3.0% — 5.125%,
dated July 1, 2002

Series 2002B, 3.0% — 5.125%,
dated July 1, 2002

Series 2003A, 2.25% — 5.0%,
dated January 15, 2003

Series 2003B, 2.0% — 5.0%,
dated July 1, 2003
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Amount

Original Original Outstanding

Maturity Amount Issued  June 30, 2009
1994 -2024 $§ 18,380,000 7,670,000
1996 — 2025 33,285,000 690,000
1996 — 2025 13,745,000 680,000
1997 - 2026 28,515,000 170,000
1997 —2026 41,855,000 1,415,000
2000 —2027 8,310,000 6,775,000
1998 — 2018 52,640,000 29,090,000
1999 — 2028 76,800,000 35,495,000
1999 — 2028 100,540,000 68,665,000
1999 - 2029 30,585,000 19,570,000
1999 - 2030 98,385,000 71,090,000
2000 —2029 41,505,000 2,990,000
2001 -2030 51,540,000 8,890,000
2002 - 2031 66,585,000 53,650,000
2002 — 2022 10,615,000 8,020,000
2002 - 2031 27,565,000 8,210,000
2002 - 2031 50,700,000 39,205,000
2003 —2032 56,040,000 43,155,000
2003 —2032 8,175,000 7,545,000
2004 — 2032 63,080,000 56,535,000
2004 - 2033 59,245,000 18,900,000
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4. Bonds Payable (Continued)

Current portion

Noncurrent portion

Amount
Original Original Outstanding
Maturity Amount Issued June 30, 2009
Reserve Fund (continued):
Series 2003C, 2.0% — 4.6%,
dated July 1, 2003 2004 -2033 $ 7,050,000 $ 6,135,000
Series 2003D, 2.0% — 5.0%,
dated September 1, 2003 2004 — 2023 35,880,000 27,245,000
Series 2004A, 2.0% — 5.375%,
dated June 3, 2004 2004 — 2025 72,315,000 58,800,000
Series 2004B, 3.00% — 5.00%,
dated December 9, 2004 2006 — 2034 42,265,000 38,760,000
Series 2005A, 3.0% — 5.0%,
dated August 17, 2005 2006 — 2035 48,325,000 17,880,000
Series 2005B, 3.5% — 5.0%,
dated December 29, 2005 2006 —2030 28,325,000 25,275,000
Series 2006A, 3.5% — 5.0%,
dated February 2, 2006 2006 — 2035 51,855,000 46,845,000
Series 2006B, 3.5% — 5.0%,
dated April 6, 2006 2007 — 2036 56,795,000 47,090,000
Series 2006F, 4.0% — 5.0%,
dated September 7, 2006 2007 - 2036 89,125,000 87,960,000
Series 2006G, variable rate,
dated September 7, 2006 2008 — 2036 14,200,000 14,025,000
Series 2006H, variable rate,
dated December 20, 2006 2012 —2036 68,400,000 68,400,000
Series 2007A, 4.0% — 5.0%,
dated July 18, 2007 2008 — 2030 96,495,000 93,015,000
Series 2007B, 4.0% — 5.0%,
dated November 1, 2007 2008 — 2037 70,470,000 69,970,000
Series 2008A, variable rate,
dated May 22, 2008 2008 — 2036 107,180,000 107,075,000
Series 2008B, variable rate,
dated June 19, 2008 2008 - 2014 25,985,000 25,975,000
Series 2008C, 3.0% — 5.0%,
dated June 19, 2008 2009 - 2038 49,540,000 49,540,000
Series 2008D, 3.0% — 5.75%,
dated December 3, 2008 2009 - 2038 41,735,000 41,735,000
$1,982.420,000 1,316,935,000

48,715,000

$1,268,220,000



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

Bonds Payable (Continued)

The outstanding Reserve Fund bonds payable will mature in each of the following years with interest
payable semiannually:

Year Ending Principal Interest Total
2010 48,715,000 $ 52,953,103 $ 101,668,103
2011 51,185,000 51,004,562 102,189,562
2012 53,855,000 49,062,185 102,917,185
2013 57,215,000 46,980,298 104,195,298
2014 57,805,000 44,798,630 102,603,630

2015 -2019 286,860,000 188,977,663 475,837,663

2020 — 2024 272,955,000 127,923,218 400,878,218

2025 - 2029 230,445,000 73,190,302 303,635,302

2030 —2034 170,640,000 29,634,011 200,274,011

2035 -2039 87.260,000 6,002,418 93.262.418
Total $1,316,935,000 $.670,526,390 $1,987.461,390

On July 10, 2008, the Authority converted the 2006H revenue bonds from a variable rate, seven day
auction to a weekly rate determined by Wachovia Bank, the remarketing agent. The balance of the
bonds outstanding at July 10, 2008 was $68,400,000.

On July 16, 2008, the Authority converted the 2006G revenue bonds from a variable rate bond to a fixed
rate issue with an average rate of 4.87%. The balance of bonds outstanding at July 16, 2008 was
$14,025,000.

Taxable Financing Reserve fund bonds payable consist of the following at June 30, 2009:

Original Original Outstanding
Maturity Amount Issued  June 30, 2009

Taxable Financing Reserve Fund:
Series 1993A, variable interest rate,
dated January 1, 1993
Series 1993B, variable interest rate,
dated October 27, 1993 1994 — 2013 25,060,000 1,175,000
Series 1996A, variable interest
rate, dated February 22, 1996

1993 —2012 $57,125,000 $5,030,000

1996 — 2016 16,440,000 1,875,000

$98.625.000 8,080,000
Current portion 1,520,000
Noncurrent portion $6,560,000
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Bonds Payable (Continued)

The outstanding Taxable Financing Reserve Fund bonds payable will mature in each of the following
years with interest payable semiannually:

Year Ending Principal Interest Total
2010 $1,520,000 $ 528,983 $2,048,983
2011 1,625,000 414,663 2,039,663
2012 1,745,000 292,177 2,037,177
2013 1,870,000 160,789 2,030,789
2014 495,000 75,410 570,410

2015-2017 825,000 89,808 914,808

$8,080,000 $1,561.830 $9,641,830

The following summarizes bonds payable activity for the Authority for the year ended June 30, 2009:

Taxable

Reserve Financing

Fund Reserve Fund

Balance, beginning of year $1,442,695,000 $9,500,000

Issuances, at par 41,735,000 -
Redemptions:

Principal payments 39,790,000 1,420,000
Bonds refunded (note 8) 127,705,000 —

Balance, end of year $1,316,935,000 $8,080,000

Certain outstanding bonds within the Reserve Fund and Taxable Financing Reserve Fund carry variable
interest rates. Within the Reserve Fund, variable interest rates are reset to market every 7 days; interest
rates range from .37% to .45% at June 30, 2009. Within the Taxable Financing Reserve Funds, variable
interest rates are set at LIBOR + .40%, which approximates .72% at June 30, 2009.
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Conduit Debt

Conduit debt of the Authority consists of bonds outstanding within the general resolution. The following
is a summary of outstanding conduit debt at June 30, 2009:

Amount
Original Original Outstanding
Maturity Amount Issued  June 30, 2009

General Resolution:
Southern Maine Medical Center, Series 1989,
5.9% — 7.3%, dated November 1, 1989 1990 -2014 $ 11,885,000 $ 1,060,000
Mt. Desert Island Hospital, Series 1992, variable
interest rate equal to 80% of the prime rate of

Bank of America, dated July 15, 1992 1993 - 2012 1,300,000 380,000
Spurwink School, Series 1997, 6.5%,

dated December 23, 1997 1998 — 2012 315,000 5,000
Mid Coast Geriatrics, Series 2002, 4.5% — 5.4%,

dated July 1, 2002 2006 — 2043 8,830,000 8,435,000
Bowdoin College, Series 2008, variable rate,

dated March 24, 2008 2032 -2037  -20,700,000 20,700,000
Bowdoin College, Series 2009A, 5% — 5.125%,

dated May 14, 2009 2035-2039 98,750,000 98,750,000
Bowdoin College, Series 2009B, 6.667%,

dated May 14, 2009 2035 -2039 19,750,000 19,750,000

$161,530,000  $149,080,000

The following is a summary of conduit debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2009:

Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2008 $ 49,879,950
Plus: Bonds issued during fiscal 2009
(see also note 8) 118,500,000
Less: Redemptions during fiscal 2009 19,299,950
Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2009 $149.080,000

At June 30, 2009, there were approximately $13,645,000 of defeased bonds remaining outstanding with
respect to advance refunded bond issues of the general resolution.
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Reserve Funds

Each of the following resolutions require the Authority to set up reserve funds (maintain assets) as
follows:

Reserve Fund

The Authority is required to maintain debt service reserve assets which are equal to the maximum
amount of principal installments and interest maturing and becoming due in any succeeding calendar
year on all loan obligations then outstanding as of such date of calculation. At June 30, 2009, the
required debt service reserve was approximately $105,272,000 and the fair value of the debt service
reserve assets totaled approximately $118,543,000.

Taxable Financing Reserve Fund

The Authority is required to maintain debt service reserve assets which are equal to the maximum
amount of principal installments and interest maturing and becoming due in any succeeding calendar
year on all loan obligations then outstanding as of such date of calculation. At June 30, 2009, the
required debt service reserve was approximately $2,101,000 and the fair value of the debt service reserve
assets totaled approximately $2,302,000.

Operating Expenses

The Authority has a management agreement with the Bond Bank which allocates a portion of Bond
Bank expenses to the Authority. The allocation is based on expenses specifically incurred on behalf of
the Authority and the Authority’s estimated portion of general overhead. The Authority recognized
approximately $479,000 of expense under this agreement in 2009.

Refunded Issues

In periods of declining interest rates, the Authority has refunded various bond obligations. The proceeds
of any advance refunding bonds are primarily used to purchase U.S. Treasury obligations, the principal
and interest on which will be sufficient to pay the principal and interest, when due, of the defeased
bonds. Neither the U.S. Treasury obligations nor the defeased bonds are reflected on the accompanying
financial statements. The U.S. Treasury obligations are placed in irrevocable trust accounts with the
trustees of the defeased bonds. The gains, losses and economic benefits of these transactions inure to the
respective Institution and not the Authority, although the Authority may receive an administrative fee.

On December 3, 2008, the authority issued $41,735,000 in 2008D reserve fund resolution revenue bonds
with an average interest rate of 5.38%, a portion of which (par of $15,895,000) was used to in-substance
defease $16,095,000 of outstanding resolution maturities within the 2000A and 2000B bond series. The
net proceeds of approximately $16,236,000, including other sources of funds and after payment of
underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance cost were used to purchase U.S. Government securities
which will provide for all future debt service payments on the defeased bonds.
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Refunded Issues (Continued)

On May 14, 2009, the Authority issued Series 2009A general resolution tax-exempt bonds in the amount
of $98,750,000 and Series 2009B general resolution taxable bonds in the amount of $19,750,000, with a
combined average interest rate of 5.29%. A portion of the bonds were used to in-substance defease
$111,610,000 of outstanding reserve fund resolution maturities within the 1995B, 1998A, 1998C,
2001C, 2003B, 2005A and 2006B reserve bond series. The net proceeds of approximately
$123,647,000, including other sources of funds (including $9,997,067 paid from the reserve fund
resolution) and after payments of underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance costs, were used to
purchase U.S. Government securities which will provide for all future debt service payments on the
defeased bonds.

At June 30, 2009, there were approximately $113,990,000 of in-substance defeased bonds remaining
outstanding with respect to all advance-refunded issues within the reserve fund resolution.

Nursing Home L.oans and Advances

In 1994, the Maine Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) substantially revised the
eligibility criteria for Medicaid coverage of nursing facility services, causing a decline in occupancy in
nursing facilities. The occupancy decline has not affected each nursing facility equally. In some
instances, particularly in proprietary nursing homes borrowing under the taxable financing reserve fund
resolution, which consists primarily of loans to nursing homes, these declines in occupancy created cash
flow problems.

The Authority has advanced approximately $116,000 from its operating fund to an institution with
outstanding loans owed to the Authority of approximately $530,000 within the taxable financing reserve
fund resolution, and has loaned from its operating fund approximately $426,000 to an institution with
outstanding loans owed to the Authority of approximately $9,132,000 within the reserve fund resolution
at June 30, 2009. These advances and loans, upon which interest income is recognized only to the extent
that cash payments are received, were primarily made to assist these institutions in meeting debt service
requirements in years prior to fiscal 2009. The Authority also has approximately $322,000 of other
receivables outstanding within the operating fund at June 30, 2009, primarily related to amounts due
from institutions to reimburse the Authority for arbitrage and other payments made on their behalf.

At June 30, 2009, the Authority has established a $732,000 reserve in the operating fund related to the
above loans, advances and other receivables outstanding.

Portland Center for Assisted Living f/k/a Woodford Park Nursing Care Center, Inc. (the Center)

Effective January 5, 1998, the Authority elected to purchase 100% of the issued and outstanding shares
of common stock of the Center. No amounts were paid or are payable to former owners of the Center
with respect to this transaction. The Center, as purchased, was a 126-bed facility which provided long-
term nursing care to the elderly. The Center was subsequently converted to a 125-bed assisted living
facility, which is eligible for reimbursements under MaineCare, the State of Maine Medicaid program.
During fiscal 1998, the Authority recorded a loss of approximately $3.5 million, representing the excess
of the Center’s liabilities over the estimated fair value of its assets. In May 2006, the Center added an
Alzheimer’s wing with additional beds which brought the total number of beds to 152.
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10. Portland Center for Assisted Living f/k/a Woodford Park Nursing Care Center, Inc. (the Center)
(Continued)

In 2000, management completed the process of restructuring the Center so that it now qualifies as a
nonprofit entity under IRS Code Section 501(c)(3).

Relevant disclosures for the Center are summarized as follows:

Assets Whose Use is Limited

Assets whose use is limited consist of resident funds held in trust and funds required by the terms of the
Authority’s Revenue Bonds Series 1993A and are invested in cash and money market securities at
June 30, 2009. A summary follows:

Principal and interest debt service accounts, and replacement reserve fund $929,959
Resident funds 36.407
Total assets whose use is limited $966,366

The Center is required by the bond issue to make monthly principal and interest payments into debt
service accounts which are held by the bond trustee. The funds in these accounts are used to make the
semi-annual payments of interest and annual payments of principal to the bond holders.

Significant Concentration and Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements

Upon the conversion of the Center to an assisted living facility in December 1998, the Center is no
longer eligible for reimbursements under the Federal Medicare program. Approximately 97% of the
residents served in 2009 were beneficiaries of the MaineCare program. Under this program, the provider
is reimbursed for the care of qualified residents at specified interim contractual rates during the year.
Differences between these interim contractual rates and the “cost” of this care, as defined by the
Principles of Reimbursement governing the respective programs, are determined and settled on a
retroactive basis.

The Center’s financial statements reflect the estimated settlements under the MaineCare program.
Settlements do not become final until the cost reports are audited and approved by DHHS. Differences
between estimated and actual settlements are recorded as contractual adjustments in the year of final
determination.

The estimated settlements to the MaineCare program include amounts which DHHS has determined to
be owed based on audited cost reports for years 1995 through 1998 (WPNCC) and 2003 through 2007,
plus a filed settlement for 2008 and an estimate for 2009. Any change in the recorded estimated
settlements which may be generated by the resolution of disputed issues or subsequent audits will be
recorded as contractual adjustments in the year of final settlement.
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10. Portland Center for Assisted Living f/k/a Woodford Park Nursing Care Center, Inc. (the Center)
(Continued)

Following is a summary of net resident service revenue for the year ended June 30, 2009:

Gross resident service revenue $ 8,571,073
Contractual adjustments under third-party

reimbursement programs (3.237,076)
Net resident service revenue $_5,333,997

Due to the large concentration of residents who receive benefits from the MaineCare reimbursement
program, the Center is highly dependent upon regulatory authorities establishing reimbursement rates
that are adequate to sustain the Center’s operations.

The State of Maine enacted legislation establishing a PNMI Service Provider Tax (State tax). As a
result, the Center was subjected to and recorded approximately $248,000 of State tax in 2009. The
amount is included in resident service and other operating expenses on the statement of operations, while
the increase of MaineCare reimbursement is reflected as a decrease in the contractual adjustments.

Fixed Assets

A summary of fixed assets follows:

2008 Additions  Deductions 2009

Land $ 302291 $ - $ - $ 302,291
Building and improvements 7,381,330 13,253 - 7,394,583
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,189,185 22,017 (2,985) 1,208,217
Vehicles 4,790 - - 4,790

8,877,596 35,270 (2,985) 8,909,881
Less accumulated depreciation (5.841,567) (328.500) 2.879 (6,167,188)
Fixed assets, net $.3,036,029 $(293230) $_(106) $_2.742,693

Loan Payable to Taxable Financing Reserve Fund

Loan payable to the taxable financing reserve fund of $2,058,013 at June 30, 2009 consists of amounts
due under a portion of the Authority’s Revenue Bonds Series 1993A, which is payable in monthly
installments of principal and interest to the trustee sufficient to make semi-annual interest payments and
annual principal payments sufficient to retire the bonds when due.
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10. Portland Center for Assisted Living f/k/a Woodford Park Nursing Care Center, Inc. (the Center)
(Continued)

Approximate annual maturities on this loan for the next five years are as follows:

2010 $660,000
2011 705,000
2012 693,013
Management Agreement

First Atlantic Corp. provided all management and accounting services required by the Center throughout
2009. Based upon an executed management agreement, First Atlantic Corp. charges the Center an
annual amount equal to the greater of 5% of net patient service revenues or $150,000. Management and
accounting expenses incurred by the Center under this management agreement for the year ended
June 30, 2009 were approximately $266,800.

Employee Benefit Plan

The Center sponsors a discretionary contributory profit sharing plan and 401(k) plan which covers
substantially all employees. The Center may elect to match employee contributions of up to 5% of the
compensation of all eligible participants. The Center may also elect to make additional discretionary
contributions. The Center contributed approximately $4,500 to the plan for the year ended June 30,
20009.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Center has obtained malpractice and general liability coverage from a commercial insurance
company on a claims made basis. As of June 30, 2009, there were no known malpractice claims
outstanding which, in the opinion of management, will be settled for amounts in excess of insurance
coverage, nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents for which a loss accrual has not been made.
The Center intends to continue coverage on a claims made basis with a commercial carrier and
anticipates that such coverage will be available.

The Center is subject to complaints, claims and litigation which have arisen in the normal course of
business. In addition, the Center is subject to compliance with laws and regulations of various
government agencies. While no significant regulatory inquiries have been made at June 30, 2009,
compliance with these laws and regulations is subject to future government review, interpretation or
actions which are unknown and unasserted at this time.

Subsequent Sale

On September 30, 2009, the Authority sold all of the assets of Portland Center for Assisted Living to
PCAL Devonshire Associates, LLC. The transaction is in the process of being finalized as of the date of
this report. The Authority expects a gain in excess of $1 million to be recorded in 2010.
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CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET — OPERATING FUND

June 30, 2009
ASSETS
Portland 7
Authority’s Center For Consolidated
Operating Assisted Operating
Fund Living  Eliminations _Fund
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $11,401,459 $ 1,303,293 § - $12,704,752
Board-designated cash and investments,
at fair value 25,122,442 - - 25,122,442
Accrued investment income 51,593 - - 51,593
Fees and other amounts due from other funds 2,378,251 - - 2,378,251
Resident accounts receivable, net
of allowance of $16,000 - 426,880 - 426,880
Other assets — 50,097 - 50,097
Total current assets 38,953,745 1,780,270 - 40,734,015
Noncurrent assets:
Notes, advances and other receivables from
institutions, net of allowance of
$732,000 9,330,058 - (9,198,314) 131,744
Assets whose use is limited - 966,366 - 966,366
Fixed assets, net - 2,742,693 - 2,742,693
Deferred financing costs, net - 72,075 - 72,075
Total noncurrent assets 9,330,058 3,781,134 (9,198,314) 3,912,878
Total assets $48,283.803 $ 5,561,404 $(9,198314) $44.646,893
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Current liabilities:
Loan payable to taxable financing

reserve fund
Accounts payable

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Estimated third-party payor settlements -
Accrued payroll and other expenses -

Resident funds held in trust
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Loan payable to taxable financing reserve

fund

Advances and accrued interest due to

Authority’s operating fund
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Total net assets (deficit)

Total liabilities and net assets (deficit)

Common stock, no par value; authorized 10,000
shares, issued and outstanding 200 shares
Net assets (deficit)

Portland
Authority’s Center For Consolidated
Operating Assisted Operating
Fund Living Eliminations Fund

$ - $ 660,000 $ - $ 660,000
42,679 178,473 - 221,152
1,418,356 - 1,418,356

133,768 - 133,768

- 36,407 - 36,407
- 13,294 - 13,294
284,000 — - 284,000
326,679 2,440,298 - 2,766,977

- 1,398,013 - 1,398,013

- 9.198.314 (9.198.314) -

- 10,596,327 (9.198.314) 1,398,013
326,679 13,036,625 (9,198,314) 4,164,990

- 200 (200) -
47,957,124  (7.415.421) 200 40.481,903
47,957,124  (7.475.221) - 40,481,903
$48,283.803 $.5561,404 $(9,198314) $44.646,893
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS — OPERATING FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Operating revenues:

Net resident service revenue

Administrative and other fees

Investment income

Net increase in the fair value of investments

Interest income from advances and notes
receivable from institutions

Other income

Operating expenses:

Salaries
Employee benefits
Travel
Office expenses
" Accounting and auditing
Legal
Telephone
Building lease
Nursing services
Administrative services
PNMI Service Provider Tax
Dietary services
Depreciation and amortization
Plant operations and maintenance
Housekeeping services
Other services
Other expense
Loss on disposal of equipment
Interest expense

Operating income (loss) before operating

transfers

Operating transfers
Operating income (loss)
Net assets (deficit) at beginning of year

Net assets (deficit) at end of year

Portland

Authority’s Center Consolidated

Operating For Assisted Elimi- Operating

Fund Living nations Fund

$ - $5333997 § - $ 5,333,997
3,309,779 - - 3,309,779
1,076,747 - - 1,076,747
188,403 - - 188,403
921,704 - (885,926) 35,778
144,069 1,900 — 145,969
5,640,702 5,335,897 (885,926) 10,090,673
322,608 - - 322,608
92,246 - - 92,246
8,014 - - 8,014
96,703 - - 96,703
71,500 - - 71,500
42,083 - - 42,083
4,844 - - 4,844
47,499 - - 47,499

- 1,521,660 - 1,521,660

- 523,978 - 523,978

- 247,702 ~ 247,702

- 746,210 - 746,210

- 348,585 - 348,585

- 355,142 - 355,142

- 141,362 - 141,362

- 412,821 - 412,821

- 6,583 - 6,583

- 106 - 106

- 1,100,081 (885,926) 214,155
685.497 5,404,230 (885,926) _5.203.801
4,955,205 (68,333) - 4,886,872
(241.979) - - (241,979)
4,713,226 (68,333) - 4,644,893
43,243,898  (7.407.088) 200 35.837,010
$47,957.124 $(7.475421) $___ 200 $40.481,903
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2009
Net Revenue (Expense)
Program Revenues and Changes in net assets
Program Operating Capital
Charges for  Investment  Grants and Grants/
Expenses Services Income Contributions  Conftributions Total
Functions/Programs:
Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority $(67.858.550) $.65,163,363 $_5.330,540 $ - $ - $_ 2,635,353
Total $.(67,858,550) $.65,163,363 $_5.330,540 $ - $ = 2,635,353
General revenues:

Unrestricted interest and investment earnings 1,265,150

Non program specific grants, contributions and appropriations -
Miscellaneous income 145,969

Loss on assets held for sale -

Extraordinary item -
Total general revenues and extraordinary items 1,411,119
Changes in net assets 4,046,472
Net assets, beginning of year 39.678.041
Net assets, end of year $.43,724 513
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Robert O. Lenna, Executive Director
Tel 207-622-1958

MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER

EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY Fax 207-623-5359
TO: INTERESTED PARTIES

FROM: Robert O. Lenna, Executive Director

RE: 2008 Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Annual Report

This is the annual report for the Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority for the 2008 fiscal
year, running from July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2008. As of June 30, 2008, the Authority has $49,879,950
outstanding under its general tax exempt conduit resolution, $1,442,695,000 outstanding under its tax exempt
reserve fund resolution, and $9,500,000 outstanding under it’s taxable reserve fund resolution.

During fiscal year 2008 the Authority issued $349,670,000 of bonds under its tax-exempt reserve fund
resolution and $20,700,000 under its general tax exempt conduit resolution. These sales were accomplished in
six series for five colleges, eleven hospitals, two community mental health care facilities, one community health
care facility, two social services, two residential care facilities, and two nursing homes.

Started in December of 1991, the Authority’s unique health and higher education program, using a state moral
obligation reserve fund make-up provision and the ability to intercept funds of borrowers prior to any failure to
pay, provides unusual strength to a diversified and dispersed portfolio of loans to health care and higher
educational facilities throughout Maine. By making use of out ability to aggregate issues, share costs for bond
sales among multiple borrowers and provide the State’s moral obligation credit enhancement to eligible
institutions, we provide all of Maine’s health and higher educational facilities, from the largest to the smallest,
with the lowest cost available for the money they borrow to meet their capital needs.

If there is further information you might like or questions you may have concering the Authority, please feel
free to give us a call at (207) 622-1958. Additional information about the Authonty is available at out website:
www:.mhhefa.com :

3 University Drive * P.O.Box 2268 + Augusta, Maine » 04338-2268 + www.mhhefa.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements, which include the Consolidated Operating
Fund, Reserve Fund and Taxable Financing Reserve Fund of Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities
Authority, which is an instrumentality of the State of Maine and is required by Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statements No. 14 and 39 to be shown as a component unit of the State of Maine (for
accounting purposes only), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, as listed on the accompanying table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’s management. Qur responsibility
is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority, including the individual fund
groups referred to above, as of June 30, 2008, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report. dated November 12, 2008
on our consideration of Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 — 8 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements, but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.



To the Members of
Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that comprise the
Authority’s basic financial statements. The supplementary schedules listed in the table of contents are
presented for the purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such supplementary information has been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements, and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

Bt fimarer g
Portland, Maine Limited Liability Company
November 12, 2008



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2008

As financial management of the Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”),
we offer readers of these finarcial statements this narrative, overview and analysis of the financial activities
of the Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. This discussion and analysis is designed to assist the
reader in focusing on the significant financial issues and activities of the Authority and to identify any
significant changes in financial position. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with the basic financial statements as a whole.

Financial Highlights

e  Operating income for the Authority’s Consolidated Operating Fund was $4,530,879 for fiscal year
2008, an increase of $1,144,773 or 33.8% over fiscal year 2007. The increase was primarily
attributed to the Authority collecting all of the administrative fee revenue in 2008. In fiscal year
2007, the Authority’s Board of Commissioners voted to refund six months of the administrative
fees, but did not do so in fiscal year 2008.

e Total consolidated operating revenues were $78,861,307 for fiscal year 2008, an increase of
$4,085,380 or 5.5% over fiscal year 2007. The increase in consolidated operating revenue was
offset by an increase in total operating expenses of $3,151,288, which resulted in a net increase in
total operating income of $934,092 or 21.9% from fiscal 2007.

o  The Authority's loans receivable from institutions at June 30, 2008 of $1,319,292,331 represents a
net increase of $64,939,727 or 5.2% from the balance at June 30, 2007. This increase is the net
result of the bond issuances described below, for which various funds were used to refund
outstanding loans and the remaining funds were loaned out during fiscal 2008, and repayment of
loans by institutions during fiscal 2008.

o  The Authority’s gross bonds outstanding at June 30, 2008 of $1,452,195,000 represents a net
increase of $70,120,000 or 5.1% from the balance at June 30, 2007. This increase consists of the
issnance of $96,495,000 in Series 2007A reserve fund bonds, $70,470,000 in Series 2007B reserve
fund bonds, $107,180,000 in Series 2008A reserve fund bonds, $25,985,000 in Series 2008B
reserve bond funds and $49,540,000 in Series 2008C reserve fund bonds, less scheduled bond
principal payments and certain refundings that occurred in 2008 (refer to notes 4 and 8 of the
audited financial statements). The Authority’s bonds are a combination of fixed and variable
interest rate and tax-exempt and taxable bonds, although a majority of the bonds are fixed interest
rate and tax-exempt.

Overview of the Authority

The Authority was created in 1973 by an Act of the Maine Legislature, is a public body corporate and politic
and is constituted as an instrumentality exercising public and essential governmental functions of the State.
The Authority was established to issue bonds for the purpose, among other things, of assisting Maine health
care institutions and institutions of higher education in the undertaking of projects involving the acquisition,
construction, improvement, reconstruction and equipping of health care and educational facilities and the
refinancing of existing indebtedness. The Authority, pursuant to the Student Loan Corporations Act of 1983,
also has the power to finance student loan programs of institutions for higher education.

As the result of the Authority issuing tax-exempt debt, the Authority is required to prepare arbitrage rebate
calculations for each series of bonds outstanding and remit payment to the Internal Revenue Service every
five years. The Authority’s policy is to prepare and review the calculations every six months for financial
statement purposes.



For financial statement reporting purposes, the Authority is considered a component unit of the State of
Maine. However, the Authority does not receive any State appropriations for its operations and is funded
from fees charged to participating borrowers and interest earnings on investments.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s financial statements,
which are comprised of the basic financial statements and the notes to the financial statements.

Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The balance sheet presents information on all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Net assets increases when revenues exceed expenses. Increases to
assets without a corresponding increase to liabilities result in increased net assets, which may indicate an
improved financial position.

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets presents information showing how the
Authority’s net assets changed during the fiscal year. Substantially all changes in net assets are reported as
soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless of timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods.

The statement of cash flows is presented using the direct method of reporting which reflects cash flows from

operating, financing and investing activities. Cash collections and payments are reflected in this statement to
arrive at the net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the fiscal year.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the basic financial statements.

Financial Analysis
Net assets may serve, over time, as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the

Authority, assets exceeded liabilities by $39,678,041 at June 30, 2008. This represents an increase of
5,191,686 or 15.1% over the previous fiscal year, which is the Authority’s 2008 operating income.



The Authority’s financial position and operations for the past two years are summarized below based on
information included in the audited financial statements.

Balance Sheet

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments held by trustee, at fair value

Board-designated cash and investments, at fair value

Accrued investment income

Loans receivable from institutions

Loan receivable from operating fund

Interest and other receivables from institutions
Fees and other amounts due from other funds

Resident accounts receivable, net of allowance of

$11,000
Other assets
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Investment held by trustee, at fair value
Loans receivable from institutions
Loan receivable from operating fund
Notes, advances and other receivables from
institutions, net of allowance $864,488
Assets whose use is limited
Fixed assets, net
Deferred financing costs, net
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Current liabilities
Bonds payable
Loan payable to taxable financing reserve fund
Interest payable
Fees and other amounts due to operating fund
Accounts payable
Estimated 3rd party settlements
Rebate payable to Internal Revenue Service
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Bonds payable

Loan payable to taxable financing reserve fund

Rebate payable to Internal Revenue Service
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Unrestricted net assets
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2008 2007 % change _
$ 11,452,198 $ 14898453  (23.1)%
39,572,218 37,235,110 6.3
22,391,725 16,292,020 37.4

531,823 671,508  (20.8)
39,935,000 41,970,000 (4.8)
610,000 570,000 7.0
1,445,446 3,199,657  (54.8)
1,929,593 1,485,355 29.9
431,789 406,115 6.3
53,611 98262 (454
118,353,403 116,826,480 13
126,461,125 118,648,987 6.6
1279357331  1,212,382,604 5.5
2,058,013 2,668,013  (22.9)
110,369 60,181 83.4
881,713 786,656 12.1
3,036,029 3,262,151 (6.9)
92,160 112245  (17.9)
1,411,996,740 __ 1,337,920,837 5.5
$1,530,350,143  $ 1,454,747,317 5.2%
$ 40955000 $ 41,970,000 Q4%
610,000 570,000 7.0
27,577,917 27,387,417 0.7
1,929,593 1,485,355 299
1,128,229 2,066260  (45.4)
1,447,933 1,370,710 5.6
295,954 558,590  (47.0)
1,060,190 126,112 740.7
368,961 182,309  102.4
75,373,777 75,716,753 (0.5)
1,411,240,000  1,340,105,000 5.3
2,058,013 2,668,013  (22.9)
2,000,312 1,771,196 12.9
1,415208325  1,344,544,209 5.3
1,490,672,102  1,420,260,962 5.0
39,678,041 34,486,355 15.1
39,678,041 34,486,355 15.1
$1,530,350,143  § 1,454,747,317 5.2%




The Authority’s results of operations for the past two years are summarized below based on information
included in the audited financial statements.

2008 2007 % Change

Operating revenues:
Interest and other amounts received from

institutions $58,000,829 $55,661,855 4.2%
Interest on loans receivable from operating

fund 254,587 471,101 (46.0)
Net resident service revenue 5,120,857 5,307,589 (3.5
Administrative and other fees 3,229,985 1,748,395 84.7
Income from investments 8,795,360 8,353,633 5.3
Net (decrease) increase in the fair value of

investments (154,048) 136,060 (213.2)
Interest income from advances and notes

receivable from institutions 45,882 160,522 (71.4)
Other income 3,567,855 2,936,772 21.5

Total operating revenues 78,861,307 74,775,927 5.5%
Operating expenses:
Bond issuance costs 3,434,810 2,826,438 21.5
Interest expense 63,971,899 61,679,085 3.7
Interest expense to taxable financing

reserve fund 254,587 471,101 (46.0)
Operating expenses 720,161 654,013 10.1
Resident service and other operating

expenses 4,430,502 4,243 837 44
Other expenses 857,662 643,859 33.2

Total operating expenses 73,669,621 70,518,333 4.5
Operating income 5,191,686 4,257,594 21.9
Net assets, beginning of year 34,486,355 30,228,761 14.1
Net assets, end of year $39,678,041 $34,486,355 . 15.1%

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2008 decreased $3,446,255 or 23.1% from balances at June 30, 2007.
This decrease was primarily the result of investing excess funds into long-term investments and the refund of
2007 administrative fees collected of approximately $1,251,000.

Total short and long-term investments held by trustee at June 30, 2008 increased $10,149,246 or 6.5% over
the balance at June 30, 2007. This increase was primarily the result of investing additional excess revenues
over expenses and investing the bond proceeds for the debt service reserve funds of the 2007A, 2007B,
2008A, 2008B and 2008C bond issues. The Authority’s investment portfolio is comprised of U.S.
Government obligations (including treasury bills, notes and bonds) U.S. Government-sponsored enterprise
securities and guaranteed investment contracts. All investments are carried at fair value and unrealized gains
and losses (primarily due to fluctuations in market values) are recognized in the statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net assets.



Board-designated cash and investments increased $6,099,705 or 37.4% over the balance at June 30, 2007.
The increase was primarily the result of the Authority investing excess operating funds into longer term
investments.

Accrued investment income at June 30, 2008 decreased $139,685 or 20.8% from June 30, 2007. This
decrease was primarily the result of the timing of interest receipts on guaranteed investment contracts.

Loans receivable from institutions increased $64,939,727 or 5.2% from the balance at June 30, 2007. The
increase in loans receivable is consistent with the increase in bonds payable, which increased $70,120,000 or
5.1% at June 30, 2008 over June 30, 2007. This increase in the loans receivable and the bonds payable in
fiscal year 2008 consists of the issuance of $96,495,000 in Series 2007A reserve fund bonds, $70,470,000 in
Series 2007B reserve fund bonds, $107,180,000 in Series 2008A reserve fund bonds, $25,985,000 in Series
2008B reserve bond funds, and $49,540,000 in Series 2008C reserve fund bonds, less scheduled bond
principal payments and certain refundings that occurred in 2008. New loans receivable are written net of the
debt service reserve funds deposit, which are investments held by the Authority.

Interest and other receivables from institutions at June 30, 2008 decreased $1,754,211 or 54.8% from balances
at June 30, 2007 primarily due to fewer capitalized interest funds being available in FY08 than FY07. At
June 30, 2007, a significant amount of interest payments to be received from borrowers were actually
received subsequent to June 30, 2007 via payment from capitalized interest funds of the respective borrowers.

Notes, advances and other receivables from institutions at June 30, 2008 increased $50,188 or 83.4% from
balances at June 30, 2007. The net increase of $50,188 is primarily the result of a reduction of $200,000 in
the allowance for uncollectible accounts and borrower repayments totaling $149,812 in fiscal year 2008. In
addition, interest income from advances and notes receivable from institutions decreased $114,640 or 71.4%
in fiscal year 2008 from fiscal year 2007 due to a decrease in the average balance of outstanding notes
receivable (repayment of subordinate loans in 2007).

Fees and other amounts due from other funds and fees and other amounts due to operating fund increased
$444,238 or 29.9% over fiscal year 2007 due to an increase in arbitrage payments made from the consolidated
operating fund that will be reimbursed from other funds in future years.

Accounts payable at June 30, 2008 decreased $938,031 or 45.4% from June 30, 2007. The decrease was
primarily the result of the payment of the refund of administrative fees that the Board of Commissioners
approved in fiscal year 2007.

Deferred revenue increased $934,078 or 740.7% in fiscal year 2008 over fiscal year 2007. The increase is a
result of deferring funds that were received as a result of refunding bond issues during fiscal year 2008 that
will be applied towards the respective borrower’s debt service payments in future fiscal years.

Administrative and other fees increased $1,481,590 or 84.7% in fiscal year 2008 over fiscal year 2007. In
fiscal year 2007, the Authority’s Board voted to refund half of the annual administrative fee to the borrowers,
which reduced the revenue for fiscal year 2007. The Board did not refund administrative fees in fiscal year
2008.

The net decrease in the fair value of investments in 2008 was a net decrease of $290,108 or 213.2% over
June 30, 2007. The decreases experienced during fiscal 2008 are the result of fluctuations in the interest rate
environment which resulted in a marginal decrease of the market value of investments that were purchased in
prior periods when interest rates were lower. The Authority’s investment portfolio is comprised of cash and
cash equivalents, U.S. Government obligations (including treasury bills, notes, and bonds), U.S. Government-
sponsored enterprises and guaranteed investment contracts. All investments are carried at fair value, and
unrealized gains and losses (primarily due to fluctuations in market values) are recognized in the statements
of operations and changes in unrestricted net assets. The maturities of investments in the debt service reserve
funds are scheduled to match debt service payments and are normally held to maturity.



Total operating expenses increased $3,151,288 or 4.5% in fiscal year 2008 over fiscal year 2007. The
increase is primarily due to additional cost of issuance expenses due to high issuance volume and an increase
in interest expense.

The Authority shares office space and staff with the Maine Municipal Bond Bank. The Authority reimburses
the Maine Municipal Bond Bank for its proportionate share of personnel services, employee benefits, office
space, equipment rental and other miscellaneous costs.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s financial statements for all
those with an interest in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
request for additional information should be addressed to the Executive Director, Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority, P.O. Box 2268, Augusta, ME 04338-2268.



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2008

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2)
Investments held by trustee, at fair value (note 3)

Board-designated cash and investments, at fair value (note 3)

Accrued investment income

Loans receivable from institutions (note 9)

Loan receivable from operating fund (note 10)

Interest and other receivables from institutions

Fees and other amounts due from other funds

Resident accounts receivable, net of allowance of $11,000
Other assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Investments held by trustee, at fair value (note 3)
Loans receivable from institutions (note 9)
Loan receivable from operating fund (note 10)
Notes, advances and other receivables from institutions,
net of allowance of $864,488 (note 9)
Assets whose use is limited (note 10)
Fixed assets, net (note 10)
Deferred financing costs, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Consolidated
Operating
Fund Reserve
(Note 10) Fund
$ 11,452,198 $ -
- 39,018,787
22,391,725 -
77,495 449,487
- 39,125,000
- 1,432,107
1,929,593 -
431,789 -
53,611 -
36,336,411 80,025,381
- 124,158,928
- 1,275,637,541
110,369 -
881,713 -
3,036,029 -
92,160 -
4,120,271 1,399,796,469
$.40456,682 $_1.479,821,850



Taxable
Financing
Reserve
Fund

$ —
553,431

4,841
810,000
610,000

13,339

1,991,611

2,302,197
3,719,790
2,058,013

8,080,000

$.10,071,611

Total

$ 11,452,198
39,572,218
22,391,725

531,823
39,935,000
610,000
1,445,446
1,929,593
431,789
53.611

118,353,403

126,461,125
1,279,357,331
2,058,013

110,369
881,713
3,036,029
92,160

1,411,996,740

$.1,530,350,143



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2008
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:
Bonds payable (note 4)
Loan payable to taxable financing reserve fund (note 10)
Interest payable
Fees and other amounts due to operating fund
Accounts payable

Estimated third-party payor settlements (note 10)
Rebate payable to Internal Revenue Service
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable (notes 4 and 8)
Loan payable to taxable financing reserve fund (note 10)
Rebate payable to Internal Revenue Service
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted net assets

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated
Operating
Fund Reserve
(Note 10) Fund
$ . 39,535,000
610,000 -
_ 27,417,158
- 1,652,920
123,451 898,215
1,447,933 -
_ 295,954
11,314 1,048,876
368,961 -
2,561,659 70,848,123
- 1,403,160,000
2,058,013 -
: - 2,000,312
2058013  1.405.160,312
4,619,672  1,476,008,435
35,837,010 3,813,415
35,837,010 3.813.415
$.40,456,682 $.1,479.821.850



Taxable

Financing
Reserve
Fund Total

$ 1,420,000 40,955,000
- 610,000
160,759 27,571917
276,673 1,929,593
106,563 1,128,229
~ 1,447,933
- 295,954
~ 1,060,190
- 368,961
1,963,995 75,373,777
8,080,000 1,411,240,000
- 2,058,013
— 2.000.312
8,080,000 1,415,298,325
10,043,995 1,490,672,102
27.616 39,678,041
27,616 39,678,041
$ 10,071,611 $1,530.350,143

12



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Operating revenues:
Interest and other amounts from institutions
Interest on loans receivable from operating fund
Net resident service revenue (note 10)
Administrative and other fees
Income from investments
Net decrease in the fair value of investments
Interest income from advances and notes receivable

from institutions

Other income

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Bond issuance costs
Interest expense
Interest expense to taxable financing reserve fund
Operating expenses (note 7)
Resident service and other operating expenses (note 10)
Other expenses
Total operating expenses \
Operating income (loss)
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated
Operating
Fund Reserve
(Note 10) Fund
$ - $ 57,678,198
5,120,857 -
3,229,985 -
1,560,408 7,086,594
(154,048) -
45,882 —
133,045 3.434.810

9,936,129 68,199,602

- 3,434,810

- 63,274,779
254,587 -
720,161 .
4,430,502 -

- 819211

5,405,250 67,528.800

4,530,879 670,802

31,306,131 3.142.613

$.35.837,010 §_3.813415




Taxable
Financing
Reserve
Fund

$ 322,631
254,587

148,358

725,576

697,120

38451
735,571

(9,995)

37,611

$__27,616

Total

$ 58,000,829

254,587
5,120,857
3,229,985
8,795,360

(154,048)

45,882
3,567.855

78,861,307
3,434,810
63,971,899
254,587
720,161
4,430,502
857,662
_13.669.621
5,191,686

34,486,355

$.39,678,041

14



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATION FACILITIES AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Consolidated
Operating
Fund Reserve
(Note 10) Fund
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from institutions $ 3,224,699 $ 79,452,649
Cash received from operating fund - : -
Cash payments to institutions (1,251,003) (85,342,956)
Cash received from patients 5,177,250 -
Cash received from other income 133,045 -
Cash payments for operating expenses (4,803,522) (509,439)
Cash (paid to) received from other funds (444,238) 361,752
Cash received from other assets and liabilities 44.651 —
Net cash (used) provided by operating activities 2,080,882 (6,037,994)
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from bonds payable - 353,104,810
Other proceeds from institutions - 4,772,603
Principal paid on bonds payable - (40,540,000)
Interest paid on bonds payable - (62,923,636)
Paid to refunding escrows (note 8) - (241,737,603)
Principal paid on loans payable to taxable financing reserve fund (570,000) -
Interest paid on loan payable to taxable financing reserve fund (254,587) -
Issuance costs paid - (3.434.810)
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities (824,587) 9,241,364
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investment securities (23,956,200) (579,818,079)
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment securities 17,702,447 569,424,468
Proceeds from sale of equipment 2,500 -
Income received from investments and advances 1,607,239 7,772,676
Interest rebate paid to U.S. Government - (582,435)
Additions to equipment (108,093) -
Change in assets whose use is limited (100,255) -
Net decrease in notes, advances and other receivable
from institutions 149,812 —
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities (4,702,550) (3.203.370)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3,446,255) -
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 14.898.453 -
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $.11,452,198 § =
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Taxable

Financing
Reserve
Fund Total
$ 1,640,140 $ 84,317,488
824,587 824,587
- (86,593,959)
- 5,177,250
133,045
(38,742) (5,351,703)
82,486 -
— 44.651
2,508,471 (1,448,641)
- 353,104,810
- 4,772,603
(2,045,000) (42,585,000)
(857,763) (63,781,399)
- (241,737,603)
- (570,000)
- (254,587)
— (3.434.810)
(2,902,763) 5,514,014
(7,293323)  (611,067,602)
7,537,688 594,664,603
- 2,500
149,927 9,529,842
- (582,435)
- (108,093)
- (100,255)
— 149,812
394,292 (7,511.628)
- (3,446,255)
— 14,898 453
$ — $_ 11452198
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATION FACILITIES AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
(used) provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash (used) provided by operating activities:

Investment and interest income

Net decrease in the fair value of investments

Depreciation and amortization

Gain on sale of equipment

Interest expense on bonds payable

Interest expense on loan payable to taxable
financing reserve fund

Change in assets and liabilities:
Loans receivable from institutions
Loan receivable from operating fund
Net resident accounts receivable
Accrued interest and other receivables from institutions
Due to/from other funds
Other assets
Estimated third-party payor settlements
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Deferred revenue

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated
Operating
Fund Reserve
(Note 10) Fund
$ 4,530,879 $ 670,802
(1,606,290) (7,086,594)
154,048 -
353,732 -
(1,932) -
— 63,274,779
254,587 —
- (66,253,343)
(25,674) -
- 1,750,318
(444,238) 361,752
44,651 -
77,223 -
(1,255,662) 309,772
(442) 934,520
$_ 2,080,882 $_ (6,037,994)



Taxable

Financing
Reserve
Fund Total

$ 9,995) § 5,191,686
(148,358) (8,841,242)

- 154,048

— 353,732
— (1,932)

697,120 63,971,899

— 254,587
1,313,616 (64,939,727)

570,000 570,000
- (25,674)

3,893 1,754,211

82,486 -

- 44,651

- 77,223
(291) (946,181)

— 934.078
$_2.5084 $_(1,448.641)
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

Organization

Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority (the Authority) is constituted as an
instrumentality and, for accounting purposes under Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and No. 39, Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units, is considered a component unit of the State of Maine, organized
and existing under and pursuant to M.R.S.A., Title 22, Chapter 413, Sections 2051 to 2074, inclusive
and as amended by Chapter 584 of the Public Laws of 1991.

The purpose of the Authority, among others, is to assist Maine health care institutions and institutions for
higher education (the institutions) in the undertaking of projects involving the acquisition, construction,
improvement, reconstruction and equipping of health care and educational facilities and the refinancing
of existing indebtedness. The Authority, pursuant to the Student Loan Corporations Act of 1983, also
has the power to finance student loan programs of institutions for higher education.

Debt issued by the Authority is not debt of the State of Maine or any political subdivision within the
State and the State is not obligated for such debt, nor is the full faith and credit of the State pledged for
such debt. The Authority is exempt from federal and State of Maine income taxes.

Legislation enacted in 1991 permitted the Authority to establish a reserve fund which will benefit from a
“moral obligation” reserve fund replenishment mechanism from the State of Maine. Although the
legislation does not bind or obligate the State, it does permit the legislature to appropriate and pay the
Authority the amount necessary to restore the reserve fund to the required amount in the event the fund
goes below the statutorily established minimum balance of one year’s debt service on outstanding bonds.
The legislation also allows the Authority to implement a State funding intercept mechanism which
permits the Authority to cause the Treasurer of the State of Maine to withhold funds in the Treasurer’s
custody that otherwise would be paid to a borrower that has failed or may fail to make a debt service
payment and to direct the Treasurer to apply those funds as debt service to the applicable bonds or notes.
The State funding intercept is applicable to all future borrowings as well as currently outstanding bond
issues, whether or not secured by the “moral obligation” reserve fund replenishment mechanism.

Operating Fund

The Authority’s operating fund records the revenues and expenses generated from its daily operations,
and also includes the operations of Portland Center for Assisted Living f/k/a Woodford Park Nursing
Care Center, Inc. (the Center), which was acquired by the Authority in 1998 (see note 10). The
Authority has a management agreement with Maine Municipal Bond Bank (the Bond Bank) resulting in
an allocation of general overhead expenses from the operations of the Bond Bank to the Authority and
payment of direct operating expenses by the Authority.
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

Organization (Continued)

Presently, the Authority operates pursuant to four bond resolutions as follows:
Reserve Fund

These funds and accounts are established under the Authority’s Resolution establishing the Maine Health
Facilities’ Reserve Fund adopted December 6, 1991. Under this resolution, the Authority issues Bonds
exempt from federal and State of Maine income taxes for the purpose of providing financing for Maine
health and higher educational facilities. Bonds issued under this resolution are secured by all of the
reserve funds within the resolution and benefit from the moral obligation reserve fund replenishment
mechanism from the State of Maine. Loans to institutions made with proceeds of bonds issued under
this resolution are generally written for the net amount of bond proceeds less debt service reserve funds
retained by the Authority.

Taxable Financing Reserve Fund

These funds and accounts are established under the Authority’s Resolution establishing the Maine Health
Facilities’ Taxable Financing Reserve Fund Resolution adopted December 15, 1992. Under this
resolution, the Authority issues Bonds exempt from State of Maine income taxes. Bonds issued under
this resolution are secured by all of the reserve funds within the resolution and benefit from the moral
obligation reserve fund replenishment mechanism from the State of Maine. Loans to institutions made
with proceeds of bonds issued under this resolution are generally written for the net amount of bond
proceeds less debt service reserve funds retained by the Authority.

General Resolution

These funds consist of funds and accounts established under the Authority’s General Bond Resolution
adopted June 5, 1973. Under this resolution, the Authority issues bonds exempt from federal and State
of Maine income taxes and assists in financing health care institutions and institutions for higher
education. Bonds issued under this resolution may be issued under the original Bond Resolution or
under an individual Bond Indenture between the Authority and an institution. Loans to institutions made
with proceeds of general resolution bonds are written for the entire amount of the bonds (including debt
service reserve funds). Security for these bonds is limited to debt service reserve funds of and the loans
to the specific institution for which the bond was issued. Therefore, these bonds are considered conduit
debt. (See note 5). ’

Significant Accounting Policies

Proprietary Fund Accounting

The Authority’s operations are, for the most part, financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprise, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing goods and
services is financed through user charges. Therefore, it meets the criteria for an enterprise fund and is
accounted for under the accrual basis of accounting,
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Authority complies with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB) No. 20,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that use
Proprietary Fund Accounting. This Statement requires that the Authority apply all applicable GASB
pronouncements as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989,
unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions,
and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB’s). As permitted by GASB No. 20, the Authority has elected
not to comply with the FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statements No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State
and Local Governments, No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 21 and
No. 34 and No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures (the Statements).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Authority considers all checking and savings deposits and highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The consolidated cash and cash equivalents of
the Authority’s operating fund at June 30, 2008 consist of $240,500 insured and $766,598 noninsured
deposits with banks, $5,656,800 of money market funds held by a custodian and secured by short-term
U.S. Treasury obligations, and $4,788,300 of money market funds invested primarily in U.S.
Government-sponsored enterprise securities and commercial paper, held at MBIA.

Investments

Investments are carried at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded as net increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. The cost of
the guaranteed investment contracts approximates fair value as the Authority can withdraw funds at par
during the contract periods.

Bond Discounts, Premiums and Issuance Costs

Costs associated with issuing debt, which are generally paid by means of fees collected from institutions
(borrowers), are expensed in the year incurred. To the extent they are used to pay bond issuance costs,
premiums are remitted to the Authority and are recorded as other income. Other premiums and
discounts are passed on to the borrowers, and are, therefore, not recorded.

Interfund Transactions

Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenses initially made from it that are
properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions
of expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

Sienificant Accounting Policies (Continued

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation expense has been computed using the straight-
line method at rates intended to amortize the cost of the related assets over their estimated useful lives.

Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements

Estimated third-party payor settlements with respect to the Center represent estimates of final settlements
under cost-reimbursed programs.

Amounts due under the cost reimbursement programs will become determinable and final only upon
completion of cost reporting and subsequent audit as required under the terms of agreements with
respective third-party reimbursing agencies.

Revenue Recognition and Resident Accounts Receivable

Net resident service revenue of the Center is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from
patients, third-party reimbursing agencies, and others for services rendered, including estimated
retroactive adjustments under reimbursement formulas with third-party reimbursing agencies.
Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered
and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined.

Resident accounts receivable of the Center are carried net of an allowance for bad debts, if any is
considered necessary by management after considering the nature and circumstances of past due
accounts. Accounts are charged off when deemed uncollectible.

Amortization

Deferred financing costs of the Center are amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the
respective loans.

Income Taxes

The Center has been granted tax-exempt status under IRS Code Section 501(c)(3) and, as such, is not
subject to federal or state income taxes. '

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated operating fund reflects the accounts of the Authority and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
the Center. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Employers for Post-
Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, in June 2004. This statement establishes standards for the
measurement, recognition and display of other post-employment benefits (including post-employment
healthcare benefits). This statement is expected to be applicable to the Authority beginning in fiscal
2009.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from these estimates. '

Total Columns

The “total” columns contain the totals of the similar accounts of the various funds. The combination of
the accounts, including assets therein, is for convenience only and does not indicate that the combined
assets are available in any manner other than that provided for in the separate funds.

Investments Held by Trustee and Board-Designated Investments

The Authority is authorized, under Maine statutes, to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises and certain state and local governments, as well as certain
investment contracts and collateralized repurchase agreements. The trustees/custodians invest available
cash in accordance with Maine statutes, applicable Series Resolutions and Tax Regulatory Agreements.
At June 30, 2008, investments are categorized as follows:

) Fair Value
Consolidated Operating Fund
Board-designated investments:
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises - $_ 22,391,725
- $_22.391,725
Reserve Fund
Investments held by trustee:
Guaranteed investment contracts $ 124,089,862
U.S. Government obligations - 69,066
Cash and cash equivalents 39,018,787
, $.163,177,715
Taxable Financing Reserve Fund
-Investments held by trustee: ,
Guaranteed investment contracts $ 2,302,197
Cash and cash equivalents 553.431
$_ 2,855,628
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

Investments Held by Trustee (Continued)

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Authority’s
investment policy provides that investment maturities be closely matched with future bond principal and
interest requirements, which are the primary use of invested assets. Further, guaranteed investment
contracts, which maturities are also closely matched with future bond principal and interest
requirements, contain provisions that allow the Authority to terminate individual contracts at par. The
Authority’s general practice has been to hold all debt securities to their maturity, at which point the
funds are needed to make required bond principal and interest payments for the respective resolutions.
The following table provides information on future maturities of the Authority’s investments in
guaranteed investment contracts, U.S. Government obligations and U.S. Government-sponsored
enterprises as of June 30, 2008:

Fair Less than One to Six to More than
Value One Year Five Years Ten Years Ten Years
Authority’s Operating Fund
U.S. Government-sponsored
enterprises (FHLB,
FNMA, etc.) $_22391,725 $4,576,255 $_17.815470 $ - $ -
Reserve Fund
Guaranteed investment
contracts $ 124,089,862 §$ - $ - $ - $ 124,089,862
U.S. Government obligations 69,066 69,066 - — -
$.124,158928 $__ 69.066 $ = $ — $_124,089.862
Taxable Financing Reserve Fund
Guaranteed investment
contracts $__ 2302197 - $_1547449 $_754748 $ —

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
Authority will not be able to recover.the. value of its investments-or.cellateral securities-that are in.the
possession of an outside party. The Authority’s investments are primarily held by U.S. Bank and Bangor
Savings Bank. Management of the Authority is not aware of any issues with respect to custodial credit
risk at either U.S. Bank or Bangor Savings Bank at June 30, 2008.

For an investment, credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligations to the Authority. The Authority’s investment policy limits its investments to those
with high credit quality such as U.S. Treasury Obligations and U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises,
as rated by rating agencies such as Moody’s Investor Service or Standard and Poor’s, or guaranteed
investment contracts backed by high credit quality banks and insurance companies (AA rated or better).
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3.

MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

Investments Held by Trustee (Continued)

The Authority limits its credit risk by investing in guaranteed investment contracts backed by high credit
quality banks and insurance companies. Investments in guaranteed investment contract issuers that
represent 5% or more of total guaranteed investment contracts within each respective resolution at
June 30, 2008, with their credit quality ratings as issued by Standard & Poor’s as of the date of this
report, are as follows: -

Rating
Reserve Fund:
Guaranteed Investment Contracts Provided By: :
FSA Capital Management Services, LLC AAA $ 55,816,030
Transamerica Life Insurance Company AA 18,937,483
Ambac Assurance Corporation AA 15,971,165
MBIA, Inc. AA 14,705,714
American International Grouped Matched
Funding Corporation (AIG) AA- 9.567.784
Total : $_114,998,176
Taxable Financing Reserve Fund:
Guaranteed Investment Contracts Provided By:
Transamerica Life Insurance Company AA $ 1,547,449
MBIA, Inc. AA 317,148
Protective Life Insurance Company AA . 437.600
Total $_2,302,197

Due to credit rating downgrades of AIG and MBIA, the Authority exercised provisions in the respective
guaranteed investment contracts subsequent to June 30, 2008 and received return of par of $9,567,784
from AIG and $7,458,103 from MBIA. The monies were invested in short-term treasury notes.
Additionally, $7,247,611 of MBIA guaranteed investment confracts were collateralized at 103% of the
contract value.

Bonds Payable

Total Reserve Fund bonds payable consist of the following at June 30, 2008:
Amount
Original Original Outstanding
Maturity Amount [ssued June 30, 2008

Reserve Fund:
Series 1992B, 3.0% — 5.875%,

dated September 15, 1992 1993-2022 § 44,850,000 $ 1,090,000
Series 1993D, 2.6% — 5.7%,

dated December 1, 1993 1994 — 2023 93,540,000 2,235,000
Series 1994A, 3.3% — 6.0%, '

dated March 1, 1994 1994 — 2024 18,380,000 7,980,000
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bonds Payable (Continued)

Reserve Fund (continued):
Series 1995A, 4.4% — 5.878%,
dated April 1, 1995
Series 1995B, variable rate,
dated August 2, 1995
Series 1995C, 3.875% — 6.2%,
dated August 1, 1995

Series 1996A, 3.75% — 5.625%,

dated August 15, 1996
Series 1996B, 4.5% — 5.75%,
dated October 15, 1996

Series 1997A, 4.3% — 5.7%,
dated June 1, 1997

Series 1997B, 4.25% — 5.0%,
dated December 1, 1997

Series 1998A, 4.0% — 5.28%,
dated March 18, 1998

Series 1998B, 3.7% — 5.0%,
dated June 1, 1998

Series 1998C, 2.95% — 5.1%,
dated November 1, 1998

Series 1999A, 3.5% — 5.25%,
dated April 15, 1999

Series 1999B, 4.0% — 6.0%,
dated December 1, 1999

Series 2000A, variable rate,
dated January 27, 2000

Series 2000B, variable rate,
dated January 27, 2000

Series 2000C, 4.375% — 5.75%,

dated July 15, 2000
Series 2001A, 3.45% — 5.25%,
dated February 15, 2001
Series 2001B, 3.25% — 5.20%,
dated May 15, 2001

Series 2001C, 3.25% — 5.125%,

dated May 15, 2001

Series 2001D, 3.0% — 5.0%,
dated November 1, 2001

Series 2002A, 3.0% — 5.125%,
dated July 1, 2002

Series 2002B, 3.0% — 5.125%,
dated July 1, 2002

June 30, 2008
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Original
Maturity

1996 —2025 $

1998 — 2025
1996 — 2025
1997 —-2026
1997 - 2026
2000 —2027
1998 — 2018
1999 — 2028
1999 — 2028
1999 — 2029
1999 — 2030
2000 — 2029
2002 - 2022
2000-2019
2001 - 2030
2002 —-2031
2002 — 2022
2002 - 2031
2002 - 2031
2003 —2032

2003 — 2032

Amount
Original Outstanding
Amount Issued June 30, 2008
33,285,000 $ 715,000
17,535,000 12,635,000
13,745,000 840,000
28,515,000 200,000
41,855,000 1,555,000
8,310,000 6,980,000
52,640,000 31,870,000
76,800,000 51,320,000
100,540,000 71,825,000
30,585,000 25,110,000
98,385,000 74,260,000
41,505,000 3,085,000
11,755,000 9,400,000
12,685,000 7,945,000
51,540,000 9,100,000
66,585,000 55,745,000
10,615,000 8,450,000
27,565,000 18,425,000
50,700,000 41,115,000
56,040,000 45,100,000
8,175,000 7,660,000



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008
4. Bonds Payable (Continued)
' Amount
Original Original ‘Outstanding
Maturity Amount Issued June 30, 2008

Reserve Fund (continued):
Series 2003 A, 2.25% — 5.0%,

dated January 15, 2003 2004-2032 $ 63,080,000 $ 57,905,000

Series 2003B, 2.0% — 5.0%,

dated July 1, 2003 2004 — 2033 59,245,000 * 52,755,000
Series 2003C, 2.0% — 4.6%, ‘-
dated July 1, 2003 2004 —-2033 7,050,000 6,365,000
Series 2003D, 2.0% — 5.0%,
dated September 1, 2003 2004 —2023 35,880,000 29,130,000
Series 2004A, 2.0% — 5.375%,
dated June 3, 2004 2004 — 2025 72,315,000 62,155,000
Series 2004B, 3.00% — 5.00%,
dated December 9, 2004 2006 —2034 42,265,000 39,960,000
Series 20054, 3.0% — 5.0%,
dated August 17, 2005 2006 — 2035 48,325,000 46,200,000
Series 2005B, 3.5% —5.0%, ’ o : :
dated December 29, 2005 2006 — 2030 28,325,000 26,485,000
Series 2006A, 3.5% ~ 5.0%,
dated February 2, 2006 2006 — 2035 51,855,000 49,365,000
Series 2006B, 3.5% — 5.0%, ) . .
dated April 6, 2006 2007 — 2036 - 56,795,000 56,630,000
Series 2006F, 4.0% — 5.0%, .
dated September 7, 2006 2007 — 2036 89,125,000 88,845,000
Series 2006G, variable rate,
dated September 7, 2006 2008 - 2036 14,200,000 - ~ 14,200,000
Series 2006H, variable rate, ‘ :
dated December 20, 2006 2012 — 2036 68,400,000 68,400,000
* Series 2007A,4.0% ~ 5.0%,
K dated July 18, 2007 2008 — 2030 96,495,000 96,495,000
Series 2007B, 4.0% — 5.0%, .
"~ dated November 1, 2007 2008 — 2037 70,470,000 70,470,000
Series 2008A, variable rate,
dated May 22, 2008 2008 — 2036 107,180,000 107,180,000
Series 2008B, variable rate,
dated June 19, 2008 2008 —-2014 25,985,000 25,975,000
Series 2008C, 3.0% — 5.0%,
dated June 19, 2008 2009 — 2038 49,540,000 49,540,000
$_1,982,660,000 1,442,695,000
Current portion ) 39.535.000
Noncurrent portion $.1,403.160.000
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

Bonds Payable (Continued)

June 30, 2008

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The outstanding Reserve Fund bonds payable will mature in each of the following years with interest

payable semiannually:

Year Ending

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014 -2018
2019 -2023
© 2024 - 2028
2029 —2033
2034 — 2038
2039

Total

Taxable Financing Reserve fund bonds payable consist of the following at June 30, 2008:

Taxable Financing Reserve Fund:
Series 1993 A, variable interest rate,
dated January 1, 1993
Series 1993B, variable interest rate,
dated October 27, 1993
Series 1996A, variable interest
rate, dated February 22, 1996

Current portion

Noncurrent portion

Principal Interest Total
$ 39,535,000 $ 59,516,976 $ 99,051,976
49,160,000 58,763,847 107,923,847
51,300,000 56,858,670 108,158,670
55,965,000 54,768,910 110,733,910
60,320,000 52,484,884 112,804,884
304,660,000 224,727,356 529,387,356
301,885,000 157,492,411 459,377,411
264,780,000 93,366,117 358,146,117
204,575,000 40,496,081 245,071,081
107,750,000 9,129,360 116,879,360
2.765.000 62,213 2.827.213
$.1.442,695000 $_807,666,825 $2,250,361,825
Original Original Outstanding
Maturity Amount Issued  June 30, 2008
1993 — 2012 $ 57,125,000 $ 6,085,000
1994 — 2013 25,060,000 1,370,000
1996 — 2016 16,440,000 2,045,000
$_98,625,000 9,500,000
1,420,000
$__8.080,000
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL F ACILITIES AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

Bonds Payable (Continued)

The outstanding Taxable Financing Reserve Fund bonds payable will mature in each of the following

years with interest payable semiannually:

Year Ending Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 1,420,000 $ 635,848 $ 2,055,848
2010 1,520,000 528,983 2,048,983
2011 1,625,000 414,663 2,039,663
2012 1,745,000 - 292,177 2,037,177
2013 1,870,000 160,789 2,030,789

2014-2018 1.320.000 165,218 1,485,218

$_9.500000 $_2,197.678  $_11.697.678

The following summarizes bonds payable activity for the Authority for the year ended June 30, 2008:

Taxable
Reserve Financing
_Fund Reserve Fund
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,370,530,000 $ 11,545,000
- Issuances, at par 349,670,000 -
Redemptions:
Principal payments 40,540,000 2,045,000
Bonds refunded (note 8) 236.965.000 —
Balance, end of year $.1.442,695.000 $_ 9,500,000

Certain outstanding bonds within the Reserve Fund and Taxable Financing Reserve Fund carry variable
interest rates. Within the Reserve Fund, variable interest rates are reset to market every 7 days; interest
rates range from 1.15% to 7.0% at June 30, 2008. Within the Taxable Financing Reserve Funds,
variable interest rates are set at LIBOR + .40%, which approximates 2.85% at June 30, 2008.
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
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June 30, 2008

Conduit Debt

Conduit debt of the Authority consists of bonds outstanding within the general resolution. The following
is a summary of outstanding conduit debt at June 30, 2008:

Amount
Original Original Outstanding
Maturity Amount Issued June 30, 2008

General Resolution:
VHA of New England Capital Asset Financing
Program, 1985 Series A Through Series G,
variable rate beginning at 6%, dated

December 30, 1985 2025 $ 26,100,000 18,700,000
Southern Maine Medical Center, Series 1989,
5.9% — 7.3%, dated November 1, 1989 1990 - 2014 11,885,000 $ 1,230,000

Mt. Desert Island Hospital, Series 1992, variable
interest rate equal to 80% of the prime rate of

Bank of America, dated July 15, 1992 1993 — 2012 1,300,000 470,000
Spurwink School, Series 1997, 6.5%,

dated December 23, 1997 1998 — 2012 315,000 10,000
Mid Coast Hospital, 2001 lease purchase, 4.95%,

dated November 15, 2001 2002 — 2008 5,865,635 254,950
Mid Coast Geriatrics, Series 2002, 4.5% — 5.4%,

dated July 1, 2002 2006 — 2043 8,830,000 8,515,000
Bowdoin College, Series 2008, variable rate,

dated March 24, 2008 2032 - 2037 20,700.000 20,700,000

$74,995.635 $_49.879.950

The following is a summary of conduit debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2008:

Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2007 $ 50,993,840
Plus: Bonds issued during fiscal 2008 20,700,000
Less: Refundings during fiscal 2008 20,500,000
Less: Redemptions during fiscal 2008 1,313.890
Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2008 $_49.879.950

At June 30, 2008, there were approximately $38,330,000 of defeased bonds remaining outstanding with
respect to advance refunded bond issues of the general resolution.
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Reserve Funds

Each of the following resolutions require the Authority to set up reserve funds (maintain assets) as
follows:

Reserve Fund

The Authority is required to maintain debt service reserve assets which are equal to the maximum
amount of principal installments and interest maturing and becoming due in any succeeding calendar
year on all loan obligations then outstanding as of such date of calculation. At June 30, 2008, the
required debt service reserve was approximately $113,994,000 and the fair value of the debt service
reserve assets totaled approximately $127,932,000.

Taxable Financing Reserve Fund

The Authority is required to maintain debt service reserve assets which are equal to the maximum
amount of principal installments and interest maturing and becoming due in any succeeding calendar
year on all loan obligations then outstanding as of such date of calculation. At June 30, 2008, the
required debt service reserve was approximately $2,104,000 and the fair value of the debt service reserve
assets totaled approximately $2,302,200.

Operating Expenses

The Authority has a management agreement with Maine Municipal Bond Bank (the Bond Bank) which
allocates a portion of Bond Bank expenses to the Authority. The allocation is based on expenses
specifically incurred on behalf of the Authority and the Authority’s estimated portion of general
overhead. The Authority recognized approximately $518,000 of expense under this agreement in 2008.

Refunded Issues

In periods of declining interest rates, the Authority has refunded various bond obligations. The proceeds
of any advance refunding bonds are primarily used to purchase U.S. Treasury obligations, the principal
and interest on which will be sufficient to pay the principal and interest, when due, of the defeased
bonds. Neither the U.S. Treasury obligations nor the defeased bonds are reflected on the accompanying
financial statements. The U.S. Treasury obligations are placed in irrevocable trust accounts with the
trustees of the defeased bonds. The gains, losses and economic benefits of these transactions inure to the -
respective Institution and not the Authority, although the Authority may receive an administrative fee.

On July 18, 2007, the authority issued $96,495,000 in 2007A revenue bonds with an average interest rate
of 4.75%, which was used to in-substance defease certain reserve resolution maturities within the 1996A,
1996B, 1999B, and 2000C bond series. The total maturities defeased were approximately $94,415,000
with maturity dates from July 1, 2008 through July 1, 2030. The net proceeds of approximately
$97,330,300 including other sources of funds and after payment of underwriting fees, insurance and
other issuance cost were used to purchase U.S. Government securities which will provide for all future
debt service payments on the defeased bonds.
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Refunded Issues (Continued)

On May 22, 2008, the authority issued $107,180,000 in 2008A revenue bonds with a variable interest
rate, which was used to in-substance defease $105,525,000 of outstanding resolution maturities within
the 2006D and 2006E bond series. The net proceeds of approximately $106,726,500 including other
sources of funds and after payment of underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance cost were used to
purchase U.S. Government securities which will provide for all future debt service payments on the
defeased bonds.

On June 19, 2008, the authority issued $25,985,000 in 2008B revenue bonds with a variable interest rate,
which was used to in-substance defease $29,775,000 of outstanding resolution maturities within the
2006C bond series. The net proceeds of approximately $30,180,300 including other sources of funds
and after payment of underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance cost were used to purchase U.S.
Government securities which will provide for all future debt service payments on the defeased bonds.

On June 19, 2008, the authority issued $49,540,000 in 2008C revenue bonds with an average interest
rate of 4.38%, a portion of which was used to in-substance defease certain reserve resolution maturities
within the 1998A bond series. The total maturities defeased were approximately $7,250,000 with
maturity dates from July 1, 2008 through July 1, 2018. The net proceeds of approximately $7,500,500
including other sources of funds and after payment of underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance
costs were used to purchase U.S. Government securities which will provide for all future debt service
payments on the defeased bonds.

At June 30, 2008, there were approximately $97,030,000 of in-substance defeased bonds remaining
outstanding with respect to all advance-refunded issues within the reserve fund and taxable fund
resolutions. Approximately $159,805,000 of the total $236,965,000 reserve fund bonds refunded in
2008 were immediately called.

Nursing Home Loans and Advances

In 1994, the Maine Department of Human Services (DHS) substantially revised the eligibility criteria for

Medicaid coverage of nursing facility services, causing a decline in occupancy in nursing facilities. The

occupancy decline has not affected each nursing facility equally. In some instances, particularly in

proprietary nursing homes borrowing under the taxable financing reserve fund resolution, which consists
* primarily of loans to nursing homes, these declines in occupancy created cash flow problems.

The Authority has advanced approximately $107,000 from its operating fund to an institution with
outstanding loans owed to the Authority of approximately $660,000 within the taxable financing reserve
fund resolution, and has loaned from its operating fund approximately $506,000 to an institution with
outstanding loans owed to the Authority of approximately $9,428,000 within the reserve fund resolution
at June 30, 2008. These advances and loans, upon which interest income is recognized only to the extent
that cash payments are received, were primarily made to assist these institutions in meeting debt service
requirements in years prior to fiscal 2008. The Authority also has approximately $362,000 of other
receivables outstanding within the operating fund at June 30, 2008, primarily related to amounts due
from institutions to reimburse the Authority for arbitrage and other payments made on their behalf.
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Nursing Home I.oans and Advances (Continued)

The $506,000 loan referenced above also sets forth a Forbearance Period. The Authority agreed that it
would not commence foreclosure on or before April 30, 2009 unless or until an occurrence of a default
(event of default includes, among other events, lack of payment under either note). In the case of a
default during the Forbearance Period, the Authority has the option at its sole discretion to enforce its
rights under the reserve fund resolution and operating fund loan agreements. Under the operating fund
loan agreement, the institution has stipulated in advance-to a deed in lieu of foreclosure on the property,
bill of sale in lieu of foreclosure on equipment fixtures, and gross receipts, stipulated consent to
appointment of receiver, and stipulated consent to judgment of foreclosure and sale with waiver of right
of appeal and redemption. These agreements and stipulations have been signed and agreed to by the
institution, but not executed or enacted by the Authority; however, the Authority has the right to enact
these documents should an event of default occur under either the reserve fund or operating fund loan
agreements. If the Authority executed its rights, management believes that sufficient changes could be
made to the operations of the facility to allow it to service its reserve fund debt.

At June 30, 2008, the Authority has established an $864,488 reserve in the operating fund related to the
above loans, advances and other receivables outstanding.

Portland Center for Assisted Living f/k/a Woodford Park Nursing Care Center, Inc. (the Center)

Effective January 5, 1998, the Authority elected to purchase 100% of the issued and outstanding shares
of common stock of the Center. No amounts were paid or. are payable to former owners of the Center
with respect to this transaction. The Center, as purchased, was a 126-bed facility which provided long-
term nursing care to the elderly. The Center was subsequently converted to a 125-bed assisted living
facility, which is eligible for reimbursements under MaineCare, the State of Maine Medicaid program.
During fiscal 1998, the Authority recorded a loss of approximately $3.5 million, representing the excess
of the Center’s liabilities over the estimated fair value of its assets. In May 2006, the Center added an
Alzheimer’s wing with additional beds which brought the total number of beds to 152.

Ultimate realization of recorded amounts with respect to the Center’s assets is dependent upon continued
operations of the Center, which in turn is dependent upon the Center’s ability to meet its financing
requirements and the. success of its future operations. The Center is highly dependent upon regulatory
authorities establishing reimbursement rates that are adequate to sustain the Center’s operations. As
discussed more fully in the following paragraph, management believes that actions presently being taken
to revise the Center’s operating and financial requirements will allow the Center to continue as a going
concern and, following such revisions, management plans to sell the Center’s assets to an outside party.

In 2000, management completed the process of restructuring the Center so that it now qualifies as a
nonprofit entity under Internal Revenue Service code section 501(c)(3). As a result, management may,
at their discretion, refinance the existing Authority Revenue Bonds Series 1993A by issuing nontaxable
bonds at a lower rate of interest, potentially resulting in interest savings to the Center. Additionally,
management of the Authority has indicated their intent to provide resources needed to allow the Center
to continue operations through the next fiscal year.
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Portland Center for Assisted Living f/k/a Woodford Park Nursing Care Center, Inc. (the Center)
(Continued)

Relevant disclosures for the Center are summarized as follows:

Assets Whose Use is Limited

Assets whose use is limited consist of resident funds held in trust and funds required By the terms of the
Authority’s Revenue Bonds Series 1993A and are invested in cash and money market securities at
June 30, 2008. A summary follows:

Principal and interest debt service accounts, and replace reserve fund $843,790
Resident funds 37.923
Total assets whose use is limited $881,713

The Center is required by the bond issue to make monthly principal and interest payments into debt
service accounts which are held by the bond trustee. The funds in these accounts are used to make the
semi-annual payments of interest and annual payments of principal to the bond holders.

Significant Concentration and Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements

Upon the conversion of the Center to an assisted living facility in December 1998, the Center is no
longer eligible for reimbursements under the Federal Medicare program. Approximately 98% of the
residents served in 2008 were beneficiaries of the MaineCare program. Under this program, the provider
is reimbursed for the care of qualified residents at specified interim contractual rates during the year.
Differences between these interim contractual rates and the “cost” of this care, as defined by the
Principles of Reimbursement governing the respective programs, are determined and settled on a
retroactive basis.

The Center’s financial statements reflect the estimated settlements under the MaineCare program.
Settlements do not become final until the cost reports are audited and approved by the Maine
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS). Differences between estimated and actual
settlements are recorded as contractual adjustments in the year of final determination.

The estimated settlements to the MaineCare program include. amounts which DHHShas determined to
be owed based on audited cost reports for years 1995 through 1998 (WPNCC) and 2003 through 2006,
plus an estimated settlement for 2007 and 2008. Any change in the recorded estimated settlements
which may be generated by the resolution of disputed issues or subsequent audits will be recorded as
contractual adjustments in the year of final settlement.

Following is a summary of net resident service revenue for the year ended June 30, 2008:

Gross resident service revenue $ 8,517,579
Contractual adjustments under third-party
reimbursement programs (3.396,722)
Net resident service revenue $_5.120,857
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10. Portland Center for Assisted Living f/k/a Woodford Park Nursing Care Center, Inc. (the Center)
(Continued)

Due to the large concentration of residents who receive benefits from the MaineCare reimbursement
program, the Center is highly dependent upon regulatory authorities establishing reimbursement rates
that are adequate to sustain the Center’s operations.

The State of Maine enacted legislation establishing a PNMI Service Provider Tax (State tax). As a
result, the Center was subjected to and recorded approximately $242,300 of State tax in 2008. The
amount is included in resident service and other operating expenses on the statement of operations, while
the increase of MaineCare reimbursement is reflected as a decrease in the contractual adjustments.

Fixed Assets
A summary of fixed assets follows:
2007 Additions Deductions 2008
Land $ 302291 § - $ - $ 302291
Building and improvements 7,351,583 30,116 369) 7,381,330
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,127,535 73,187 (11,537) 1,189,185
Vehicles 21,944 4,790  (21.944) 4.790
8,803,353 108,093  (33,850) 8,877,596

Less accumulated depreciation (5.541.202) (333.647) _33.282  (5.841.567)
Fixed assets, net $.3262,151 $(225554) $__ (568) $.3.036,029

Loan Payable to Taxable Financing Reserve Fund

Loan payable to the taxable financing reserve fund of $2,668,013 at June 30, 2008 consists of amounts
due under a portion of the Authority’s Revenue Bonds Series 1993A, which is payable in monthly
installments of principal and interest to the trustee sufficient to make semi-annual interest payments and
annual principal payments sufficient to retire the bonds when due. The annual payments (including
interest at 7.35% per annum) are approximately $870,000, excluding letter of credit and authority fees.

Approximate annual maturities on this loan for the next five years are as follows:

2009 $610,000
2010 660,000
2011 705,000
2012 693,013
2013 -
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Portland Center for Assisted Living f/k/a Woodford Park Nursing Care Center, Inc. (the Center)
(Continued)

Management Agreement

First Atlantic Corp. provided all management and accounting services required by the Center throughout
2008. Based upon an executed management agreement, First Atlantic Corp. charges the Center an
annual amount equal to the greater of 5% of net patient service revenues or $150,000. Management and
accounting expenses incurred by the Center under this management agreement for the year ended
June 30, 2008 were approximately $260,000.

Employee Benefit Plan

The Center sponsors a discretionary contributory profit sharing plan and 401(k) plan which covers
substantially all employees. The Center may elect to match employee contributions of up to 5% of the
compensation of all eligible participants. The Center may also elect to make additional discretionary
contributions. The Center contributed approximately $5,200 to the plan for the year ended June 30,
2008.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Center has obtained malpractice and general liability coverage from a commercial insurance
company on a claims made basis. As of June 30, 2008, there were no known malpractice claims
outstanding which, in the opinion of management, will be settled for amounts in excess of insurance
coverage, nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents for which a loss accrual has not been made.
The Center intends to continue coverage on a claims made basis with a commercial carrier and
anticipates that such coverage will be available.

The Center is subject to complaints, claims and litigation which have arisen in the normal course of
business. In addition, the Center is subject to compliance with laws and regulations of various
government agencies. While no significant regulatory inquiries have been made at June 30, 2008,
compliance with these laws and regulations is subject to future government review, interpretation or
actions which are unknown and unasserted at this time.

Pending Sale

The Authority has entered into an Asset Purchase and Sale agreement to sell all of the assets of Portland
Center for Assisted Living to Forum Management, LLC. The parties have agreed to a purchase price
and are awaiting final approval from the Department of Health and Human Services. If the transaction
closes, the purchase price will exceed the carrying value of the assets sold.
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ASSETS
Portland
Authority’s Center Consolidated
Operating For Assisted Operating
Fund Living Eliminations Fund
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,618,725 $ 833473 §$ —  $ 11,452,198
Board-designated cash and investments,

at fair value 22,391,725 - - 22,391,725
Accrued investment income 77,495 - - 77,495
Fees and other amounts due from other funds 1,929,593 - - 1,929,593
Resident accounts receivable, net

of allowance of $11,000 - 431,789 - 431,789
Other assets — 53,611 - 53.611

Total current assets 35,017,538 1,318,873 - 36,336,411

Noncurrent assets:

Notes, advances and other receivables from

1institutions, net of allowance of

$864,488 8,481,848 - (8,371,479) 110,369
Assets whose use is limited - 881,713 - 881,713
Fixed assets, net - 3,036,029 - 3,036,029
Deferred financing costs, net - 92,160 - 92,160

Total noncurrent assets 8,481,848 4,009,902 (8,371,479) 4,120,271

Total assets $.43499,386 $_5328,775 $(8,371479) $_40,456,682
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Loan payable to taxable financing
reserve fund
Accounts payable
Estimated third-party payor settlements
Accrued payroll and other expenses
Resident funds held in trust
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Loan payable to taxable financing reserve
fund
Advances and accrued interest due to
Authority’s operating fund
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Common stock, no par value; authorized 10,000
shares, issued and outstanding 200 shares
Net assets (deficit)
Total net assets (deficit)

Total liabilities and net assets (deficit)

Portland
Authority’s Center Consolidated
Operating For Assisted Operating
Fund Living Eliminations Fund
$ - $ 610,000 $ - $ 610,000
55,488 67,963 - 123,451
- 1,447,933 - 1,447,933
- 131,038 - 131,038
- 37,923 - 37,923
- 11,314 - 11,314
200,000 ~ - 200,000
255,488 2,306,171 - 2,561,659
— 2,058,013 - 2,058,013
— 8.371.479  (8.371.479) -
— 10,429.492  (8.371.479) 2,058,013
255,488 12,735,663  (8,371,479) 4,619,672
- 200 (200) -
43,243 898 (7,407.088) 200 35,837,010
43.243.898 (7,406.,888) = 35,837.010
$.43,499386 $_5.328,775 $(8.371479) $_40,456,682
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CHANGES IN NET ASSETS — OPERATING FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Portland
Authority’s Center Consolidated
Operating For Assisted  Elimi- Operating
Fund Living nations _Fund
Operating revenues:
Net resident service revenue $ - $5120857 § - 5,120,857
Administrative and other fees 3,229,985 - - 3,229,985 -
Investment income 1,560,408 - - 1,560,408
Net decrease in the fair value of investments (154,048) - - (154,048)
Interest income from advances and notes
receivable from institutions 877,294 - (831,412) 45,882
Other income 106.474 26.571 - 133,045
5,620,113 ~ 5,147,428  (831,412) 9,936,129
Operating expenses:
Salaries 312,646 - - 312,646
Employee benefits 94,498 - - 94,498
Travel 5,961 - - 5,961
Office expenses 81,360 - - 81,360
Accounting and auditing 78,900 - - 78,900
Legal 95,261 - - 95,261
Telephone 4,036 - - 4,036
Building lease 47,499 - - 47,499
Nursing services - 1,609,638 - 1,609,638
Administrative services - 538,447 - 538,447
PNMI Service Provider Tax - 242,292 - 242,292
Dietary services - 711,139 - 711,139
Depreciation and amortization - 353,732 - 353,732
Plant operations and maintenance - 365,463 - 365,463
Housekeeping services - 161,530 - 161,530
Other services . - 409,617 - 409,617
Other expense - 40,576 - 40,576
Gain on disposal of equipment - (1,932) - (1,932)
Interest expense ' - 1.085.999  (831.412) 254,587
720,161 5,516,501  (831.412) 5.405,250
Operating income (loss) 4,899,952 (369,073) - 4,530,879
Net assets (deficit) at beginning of year 38343946  (7.038.015) 200 31.306,131
Net assets (deficit) at end of year $.43.243.898 $(7,407,088) $ 200 $_35,837,010
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2008
Net Revenue (Expense)
Program Revenues and Changes in net assets
Program Operating Capital
Charges for  Investment  Grants and Grants/
Expenses Services Income  Contributions Contributions Total
Functions/Programs:
Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority $.(73.669.621) $70.086.950 $_7.234.952 § - $ — $_3.652.281
Total $.(73.669,621) $.10.086,950 $_7,234952 $ = $ = 3,652,281
General revenues:

Unrestricted interest and investment earnings 1,406,360

Non program specific grants, contributions and appropriations -
Miscellaneous income 133,045

Loss on assets held for sale -
Extraordinary item =
Total general revenues and extraordinary items 1.539.405
Changes in net assets 5,191,686
Net assets, beginning of year 34.486.355
Net assets, end of year $.39.678,041






Robert O. Lenna, Executive Director

MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER Tel 207-622-1958
EDUCATIONAF, FACILITIES AUTHORITY Fax 207-623-5359

TO: INTERESTED PARTIES
FROM: Robert O. Lenna, Executive Dix
RE: 2007 Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Annual Report

This is the annual report for the Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority for the 2007 fiscal
year, running from July 1, 2006 to June 30, 2007. As of June 30, 2007, the Authority has $50,993,840 out-
standing under its general tax exempt conduit resolution, $1,370,530,000 outstanding under its tax exempt
reserve fund resolution, and $11,545,000 outstanding under it’s taxable reserve fund resolution.

During fiscal year 2007 the Authority issued $166,965,000 of bonds under its tax-exempt reserve fund
resolution and $20,500,000 under its general tax exempt conduit resolution. These sales were accomplished in
three series for four colleges, ten hospitals, two long-term care facilities, two community mental health
facilities, one residential care facility, one community health care facility, and one social services facility.

Started in December of 1991, the Authority’s unique health and higher education program, using a state moral
obligation reserve fund make-up provision and the ability to intercept funds of borrowers prior to any failure to
pay, provides unusual strength to a diversified and dispersed portfolio of loans to health care and higher
educational facilities throughout Maine. By making use of our ability to aggregate issues, share costs for bond
sales among multiple borrowers and provide the State’s moral obligation credit enhancement to eligible
institutions, we provide all of Maine’s health and higher educational facilities, from the largest to the smallest,
with the lowest cost available for the money they borrow to meet their capital needs.

If there is further information you might like or questions you may have concerning the Authority, please feel
free to give us a call at (207) 622-1958. Additional information about the Authority is available at our website:

www.mhhefa.com

3 University Drive * P.O.Box 2268 * Augusta, Maine ¢ 04338-2268 + www.mhhefa.com
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BAKER NEWMAN NOYES,.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements, which include the Consolidated Operating
Fund, Reserve Fund, Taxable Reserve Fund and Taxable Financing Reserve Fund II of Maine Health and
Higher Educational Facilities Authority, which is an instrumentality of the State of Maine and is required by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 14 and 39 to be shown as a component unit of the
State of Maine (for accounting purposes only), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, as listed on the
accompanying table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority, including the individual fund
groups referred to above, as of June 30, 2007, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in note 2 to the financial statements, in 2007 the Authority changcd its method of accounting for
its restricted and trusteed funds from fiduciary fund accounting to proprietary fund accounting.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 30, 2007
on our consideration of Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 —~ 8 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements, but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted n the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.
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To the Members of
Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that comprise the
Authority’s basic financial statements. The supplementary schedules listed in the table of contents are
presented for the purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such supplementary information has been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements, and in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial

statements taken as a whole.
%/ %ﬁwﬂd. /

Portland, Maine Limited Liability Company
November 30, 2007
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2007

As financial management of the Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority™),
we offer readers of these financial statements this narrative, overview and analysis of the financial activities
of the Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. This discussion and analysis is designed to assist the
reader in focusing on the significant financial issues and activities of the Authority and to identify any
significant changes in financial position. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with the basic financial statements as a whole.

The Authority has changed its financial statement presentation for fiscal year 2007, from fiduciary to
proprietary accounting. The decision to make this change was not made lightly, but the Authority feels that
the new presentation is a more accurate presentation of the Authority’s activities. The fiscal year 2006
numbers, presented here, are numbers that have been adjusted to the new presentation format for comparison
purposes. See note 2 of the basic financial statements for further information.

Financial Highlights

e  Operating income for the Authority’s Consolidated Operating Fund was $3,386,106 for fiscal year
2007, a decrease of $740,285 or 17.9% from fiscal 2006. The decrease was primarily attributed to
the Authority’s decision to refund six months of administrative fees received in fiscal 2007 totaling
$1,251,003, and a decrease in interest income from advances and notes receivable of $695,245 or
81.2% from fiscal 2006. These decreases were partially offset by an increase in income from
investments of $547,147 or 72.6% from 2006.

e Total consolidated operating revenues were $74,775,927 for fiscal year 2007, an increase of
$8,735,417 or 13.2% over fiscal 2006. The increase in consolidated operating revenue was more
than offset by an increase in total operating expenses of $8,866,313 or 14.4% from fiscal 2006. The
net effect was a decrease in total operating income of $130,896 or 3.0% from fiscal 2006.

e The Authority’s loans receivable from institutions at June 30, 2007 of $1,254,352,604 represents a
net increase of $193,585,344 or 18.2% from the balance at June 30, 2006. This increase is the net
result of the bond issuances described below, for which various funds were loaned out during fiscal
2007, and repayment of loans by institutions during fiscal 2007.

e The Authority’s gross bonds outstanding at June 30, 2007 of $1,382,075,000 represents a net
increase of $205,880,000 or 17.5% from the balance at June 30, 2006. This increase consists of the
issuance of $86,250,000 in Series 2006E reserve fund bonds, $89,125,000 in Series 2006F reserve
fund bonds, $14,200,000 in Series 2006G reserve fund bonds and $68,400,000 in Series 2006H
reserve fund bonds, less bond principal payments. The Authority’s bonds are a combination of
fixed and variable interest rate and tax-exempt and taxable bonds, although a majority of the bonds
are fixed interest rate and tax-exempt.

Overview of the Authority

The Authority was created in 1973 by an Act of the Maine Legislature, is a public body corporate and politic
and is constituted as an instrumentality exercising public and essential governmental functions of the State.
The Authority was established to issue bonds for the purpose, among other things, of assisting Maine health
care institutions and institutions of higher education in the undertaking of projects involving the acquisition,
construction, improvement, reconstruction and equipping of health care and educational facilities and the
refinancing of existing indebtedness. The Authority, pursuant to the Student Loan Corporations Act of 1983,
also has the power to finance student loan programs of institutions for higher education.



As the result of the Authority issuing tax-exempt debt, the Authority is required to prepare arbitrage rebate
calculations for each series of bonds outstanding and remit payment to the Internal Revenue Service every
five years. The Authority’s policy is to prepare and review the calculations every six months for financial

statement purposes.

For financial statement reporting purposes, the Authority is considered a component unit of the State of
Maine. However, the Authority does not receive any State appropriations for its operations and is funded
from fees charged to participating borrowers and interest earnings on investments.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s financial statements,
which are comprised of the basic financial statements and the notes to the financial statements.

Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The balance sheet presents information on all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Net assets increases when revenues exceed expenses. Increases to
assets without a corresponding increase to liabilities result in increased net assets, which may indicate an
improved financial position.

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets presents information showing how the
Authority’s net assets changed during the fiscal year. Substantially all changes in net assets are reported as
soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless of timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods.

The statement of cash flows is presented using the direct method of reporting which reflects cash flows from
operating, financing and investing activities. Cash collections and payments are reflected in this statement to
arrive at the net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the fiscal year.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the basic financial statements.

Financial Analysis

Net assets may serve, over time, as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the
Authority, assets exceeded liabilities by $34,486,355 at June 30, 2007. This represents an increase of
$4,257,594 or 14.1% over the previous fiscal year, which is the Authority’s 2007 operating income.

v



The Authority’s financial position and operations for the past two years are summarized below based on
information included in the audited financial statements (2006 totals have been adjusted to the new

presentation format for comparative purposes).

MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments held by trustee, at fair value

Board-designated cash and investment, at fair value

Accrued investment income
Loans receivable from institutions
Loan receivable from operating fund

Interest and other receivables from institutions

Fees and other amounts due from other funds

Resident accounts receivable, net of allowance

of $15,000
Other assets
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Investment held by trustee, at fair value
Loans receivable from institutions
Loan receivable from operating fund
Notes, advances and other receivables from

institutions, net of allowance of $1,168,782

Assets whose use is limited

Fixed assets, net

Deferred financing costs, net
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Current liabilities:
Bonds payable

Loan payable to taxable financing reserve fund

Interest payable
Fees and other amounts due to operating fund
Accounts payable
Estimated 3rd party settlements
Rebate payable to Internal Revenue Service
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable

Loan payable to taxable financing reserve fund
Loan payable to taxable financing reserve fund II

Rebate payable to Internal Revenue Service
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

2007 2006 % Change
$ 14898453 $ 10,734,583 38.8%
37,235,110 31,657,607 17.6
16,292,020 12,428,467 31.1
671,508 2,303,232 (70.8)
41,970,000 36,730,000 14.3
570,000 530,000 7.5
3,199,657 1,629,865 96.3
1,485,355 1,552,995 4.4
406,115 328,437 23.7
98.262 80.095 22.7
116,826,480 97,975,281 19.2
118,648,987 104,144,497 13.9
1,212,382,604 1,024,037,260 18.4
2,668,013 6,645,541 (59.9)
60,181 7,163,800 99.2)
786,656 705,730 11.5
3,262,151 3,378,900 3.5)
112.245 132.330 (15.2)
1,337.920.837 1.146,208.058 16.7
$1454747317 51244183339 _169%
$ 41,970,000 $§ 37,260,000 12.6%
570,000 530,000 1.5
27,387,417 25,379,444 79
1,485,355 1,552,995 4.4)
2,066,260 492,299 319.7
1,370,710 1,172,317 16.9
558,590 380,397 46.8
126,112 332,417 62.1)
182.309 141412 _289
75,716,753 67,241,281 12.6
1,340,105,000 1,138,935,000 17.7
2,668,013 3,238,013 (17.6)
- 3,407,528 (100.0)
1,771,196 1,132,756 56.4
1.344.544.209 1.146,713.297 17.3
1,420,260,962 1,213,954,578 17.0



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006
2007 2006 % Change
Net assets:
Unrestricted net assets $ 34,486,355 $__ 30.228.761 14.1%
Total net assets 34.486.355 30.228.761 14.1
Total liabilities and net assets $.1.454,747317 $_1,244,183.339 16,9%

MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006

2007 2006 % Change

Interest and other amounts from institutions $ 55,661,855 $ 46,706,186 19.2%
Interest on loans receivable from operating fund 471,101 585,977 (19.6)
Net resident service revenue 5,307,589 4,601,173 15.4
Administrative and other fees 1,748,395 2,995,308 (41.6)
Income from investments 8,353,633 7,129,901 17.2
Net increase in the fair value of investments 136,060 (5,907) -
Interest income from advances and notes receivable

from institutions 160,522 855,767 (81.2)
Other income 2,936,772 3,172,105 (1.4)

Total operating revenues 74,775,927 66,040,510 13.2

Operating expenses:

Bond issuance costs 2,826,438 3,060,410 (7.6)

Interest expense 61,679,085 52,976,614 16.4

Interest expense to taxable financing reserve funds 471,101 585,977 {19.6)

Operating expenses 654,013 706,549 (1.4)

Resident service and other operating expenses 4,243,837 3,892,697 9.0

Other expenses 643.859 429,773 49.8

Total operating expenses 70,518,333 61,652,020 14.4

Operating income 4,257,594 4,388,490 3.0)
Net assets, beginning of year, as restated 30.,228.761 25.840.271 17.0
Ending balance $34.486,355 $_30,228,761 14.1%

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2007 increased $4,163,870 or 38.8% from balances at June 30, 2006.
This increase was the result of investing excess funds into short-term investments.



Total short and long-term investments held by trustee at June 30, 2007 increased $20,081,993 or 14.8% over
the balance at June 30, 2006. This increase was primarily the result of investing additional excess revenues
over expenses and investing the bond proceeds for the debt service reserve funds of the 2006E, 2006F, 2006G
and 2006H bond issues. The Authority’s investment portfolio is comprised of U.S. Government obligations
(including treasury bills, notes, and bonds), U.S. Government-sponsored enterprise securities and guaranteed
investment contracts. All investments are carried at fair value, and unrealized gains and losses (primarily due
to fluctuations in market values) are recognized in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net
assets.

Board-designated cash and investments increased $3,863,553 or 31.1% over the balance at June 30, 2006.
The increase was primarily the result of the receipt of cash for the pay-off of subordinate loans held by the
Authority. See further discussion below.

Accrued investment income at June 30, 2007 decreased $1,631,724 or 70.8% from June 30 2006. This
decrease was primarily the result of the timing of interest receipts on guaranteed investment contracts.

Loans receivable from institutions increased $193,585,344 or 18.2% at June 30, 2007 over June 30, 2006.
The increase in loans receivable is consistent with the increase in bonds payable, which increased
$205,880,000 or 17.5% at June 30, 2007 over June 30, 2006. The increase in the loans receivable and bonds
payable in fiscal 2007 consists of the issuance of $86,250,000 in Series 2006E reserve fund bonds,
$89,125,000 in Series 2006F reserve fund bonds, $14,200,000 in Series 2006G reserve fund bonds and
$68,400,000 in Series 2006H reserve fund bonds, less scheduled principal payments in 2007. New loans
receivable are written net of the debt service reserve fund deposit, which are investments held by the

Authority.

Interest and other receivables from institutions at June 30, 2007 increased $1,569,792 or 96.3% from balances
at June 30, 2006. This increase was primarily the result of the timing of interest receipts from institutional
trustee held capitalized interest accounts.

Notes, advances and other receivables from institutions at June 30, 2007 decreased $7,103,619 or 99.2% from
balances at June 30, 2006. This decrease was the result of the reduction of subordinate loans during fiscal
2007 that occurred in conjunction with the sale of nursing homes whose subordinate debt was held by the
Authority. This decrease also had a direct effect on the interest income on advances and notes receivable,
which decreased 81.2% in fiscal year 2007 from fiscal 2006.

Loan payable to taxable financing reserve fund II decreased $3,407,528 or 100% at June 30, 2007 over
June 30, 2006. The proceeds that were received from the pay off of the subordinate debt were used to pay off
this loan payable and redeem the outstanding bonds within the taxable financing reserve fund II.

Interest payable at June 30, 2007 increased $2,007,973 or 7.9% from the balance at June 30, 2006. The
increase is directly related to the increase of $205,880,000 in total bonds outstanding at June 30, 2007 from
June 30, 2006.

Accounts payable at June 30, 2007 increased $1,573,961 or 319.7% from balances at June 30, 2006. This
increase is primarily the result of the Authority’s decision to refund six months of administrative fees
collected from institutions during fiscal 2007. The refund was not paid until fiscal 2008 and is therefore
included in accounts payable at June 30, 2007. Further note that this is also the primary contributing factor to
the decrease in related administrative and other fees of $1,246,913 or 41.6% from fiscal 2006 (see note 11).

Total rebate payable to the Internal Revenue Service at June 30, 2007 increased $816,633 or 54.0% from
June 30, 2006. This increase was the net result of additional accrued liability for fiscal year 2007 on all tax-
exempt bond issues and the payment made to the Internal Revenue Service for those tax-exempt issues whose
rebate payment was due during 2007.



Income from investments in fiscal year 2007 increased $1,223,732 or 17.2% from fiscal year 2006. The
increase was the result of an increase in the average investment balances over fiscal 2006 and an improved
short-term interest rate environment during fiscal 2007.

Interest and other amounts from institutions increased $8,955,669 or 19.2% during fiscal 2007 over fiscal
2006. The increase was primarily attributed to increases in average outstanding loan balances during the
current fiscal year.

Interest expense increased $8,702,471 or 16.4% during fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006. Interest expense has a
direct relationship with bonds payable, which had a net increase of $205,880,000 in fiscal year 2007 over
fiscal year 2006.

The Authority shares office space and staff with the Maine Municipal Bond Bank. The Authority reimburses
the Maine Municipal Bond Bank for its proportionate share of personnel services, employee benefits, office
space, equipment rental and other miscellaneous costs.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s financial statements for all
those with an interest in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
request for additional information should be addressed to the Executive Director, Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority, P.O. Box 2268, Augusta, ME 04338-2268.



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2007

ASSETS
Consolidated
Operating
Fund Reserve
(Note 10) Fund
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 14,898,453 $ -
Investments held by trustee, at fair value (note 3) - 36,598,698
Board-designated cash and investments, at fair value (note 3) 16,292,020 -
Accrued investment income 78,444 586,654
Loans receivable from institutions (note 9) - 40,530,000
Loan receivable from operating fund (note 10) - -
Interest and other receivables from institutions - 3,182,425
Fees and other amounts due from other funds 1,485,355 -
Resident accounts receivable, net of allowance of $15,000 406,115 -
Other assets 98,262 -
Total current assets 33,258,649 80,897,777
Noncurrent assets:
Investments held by trustee, at fair value (note 3) - 116,185,406
Loans receivable from institutions (note 9) - 1,207,979,198
Loan receivable from operating fund (note 10) - -
Notes, advances and other receivables from institutions,
net of allowance of $1,064,488 (note 9) 60,181 -
Assets whose use is limited (note 10) 786,656 -
Fixed assets, net (note 10) 3,262,151 -
Deferred financing costs, net 112,245 —
Total noncurrent assets 4,221,233 1,324,164,604
Total assets $.37.479.882 §$_1.405.062,381



Taxable
Financing
Reserve
Fund

$ —
636,412

6,410
1,440,000
570,000
17,232

2,670,054

2,463,581
4,403,406
2,668,013

9,535,000

$_12,205,054

Total

$ 14,898,453
37,235,110
16,292,020

671,508
41,970,000
570,000
3,199,657
1,485,355
406,115

— 98262

116,826,480

118,648,987
1,212,382,604
2,668,013

60,181
786,656
3,262,151

112.245

1,337,920,837

$.1.454,747.317



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2007

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Bonds payable (note 4)
Loan payable to taxable financing reserve fund (note 10)
Interest payable
Fees and other amounts due to operating fund
Accounts payable (note 11)
Estimated third-party payor settlements (note 10)
Rebate payable to Internal Revenue Service
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable (note 4)
Loan payable to taxable financing reserve fund (note 10)
Rebate payable to Internal Revenue Service
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted net assets (note 2)

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated

Operating
Fund Reserve
—(Note 10) ~_Fund
$ - $ 40,530,000
570,000 -
- 27,066,015
- 1,291,168
1,370,963 588,443
1,370,710 -
- 558,590
11,756 114,356
182,309 -
3,505,738 70,148,572
- 1,330,000,000
2,668,013 -

: - 1,771,196
2.668.013 1.331,771.196
6,173,751 1,401,919,768

31,306,131 3,142,613

31.306,131 3.142,613

$.37.479.882 $1.405,062,381



Taxable

Financing
Reserve
Fund Total
$ 1,440,000 $ 41,970,000
- 570,000
321,402 27,387,417
194,187 1,485,355
106,854 2,066,260
- 1,370,710
- 558,590
- 126,112
- 182.309
2,062,443 75,716,753
10,105,000 1,340,105,000
- 2,668,013
- 1,771,196
10,105,000 1.344.544,209
12,167,443 1,420,260,962
37.611 34.486.355
37.611 34,486,355
$_12,205.054 $.1.454,747.317
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Operating revenues;
Interest and other amounts from institutions
Interest on loans receivable from operating fund
Net resident service revenue (note 10)
Administrative and other fees
Income from investments
Net increase in the fair value of investments
Interest income from advances and notes receivable

from institutions

Other income

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Bond issuance costs
Interest expense
Interest expense to taxable financing reserve funds
Operating expenses (note 7)
Resident service and other operating expenses (note 10)
Other expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating income

Net assets, beginning of year, as restated (note 2)

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated
Operating
Fund Reserve
{(Note 10) Fund
5 - $ 55,126,945
5,307,589 -
1,748,395 ' -
1,300,725 6,847,849
136,060 -
160,522 -
110.334 2.826.438
8,763,625 64,801,232
- 2,826,438
- 60,591,008
471,101 -
654,013 -
4,243,837 -
8.568 554,141
5.377.519 63,971,587
3,386,106 829,645
27.920.025 2.312.968
$.31.306,131 §_3,142.613



Taxable
Financing
Reserve
Fund

$ 534,910
302,515

183,391

1,020,816

962,069

57.459
1,019,528
1,288

36,323

$_37,611

Taxable

Financing
Reserve
Fund II Total
$ - $ 55,661,855
168,586 471,101
- 5,307,589
- 1,748,395
21,668 8,353,633
- 136,060
- 160,522
- 2,936,772
190,254 74,775,927
- 2,826,438
126,008 61,679,085
- 471,101
- 654,013
- 4,243,837
23,691 643.859
149,699 70,518,333
40,555 4,257,594
(40,555) 30,228,761
$__ -~ $_34,486,355



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATION FACILITIES AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Consolidated
Operating
Fund Reserve
(Note 10) Fund
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from institutions $ 3,004,683 $ 93,230,343
Cash received from operating fund - -
Cash payments to institutions - (238,572,281)
Cash received from patients 5,426,001 -
Cash received from other income 110,334 -
Cash payments for operating expenses (4,510,988) (338,260)
Cash received from (paid to) other funds 67,640 49,316
Cash (paid for) received from other assets and liabilities (18.167) -
Net cash (used) provided by operating activities 4,079,503 (145,630,882)
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from bonds payable - 260,801,438
Principal paid on bonds payable - (40,450,000)
Interest paid on bonds payable - (58,313,637)
Principal paid on loans payable to taxable financing reserve funds (3,937,528) -
Interest paid on loans payable to taxable financing reserve funds (471,101) -
Issuance costs paid - (2.826.438)
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities (4,408,629) 159,211,363
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investment securities (15,140,818) (295,501,522)
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment securities 11,413,325 273,360,281
Income received from investments and advances 1,399,281 8,941,157
Interest rebate paid to U.S. Government - (380,397)
Additions to equipment (203,979) -
Change in assets whose use is limited (78,432) -
Net decrease in notes, advances and other receivable
from institutions 7.103.619 —
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities 4,492,996 (13.580.481)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,163,870 -
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 10,734.583 -
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $_14808453 $_____ —
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Taxable Taxable
Financing Financing
Reserve Reserve
Fund _Fundll
$ 6,433,435 $ -
832,515 3,576,114
- (23,691)
(116,956) -
33.405 -
7,182,399 3,552,423
(7,395,000) (4,250,000)
(1,120,261) (237,214)
(8,515,261) (4,487,214)
(19,374,849) (5,699,165)
20,524,238 6,609,024
183,473 24,932
1.332.862 934,791
$ = $ —

Total

$ 102,668,461
4,408,629
(238,572,281)
5,426,001
110,334
(4,872,939)

15,238

(130,816,557)

260,801,438
(52,095,000)
(59,671,112)
(3,937,528)
(471,101)
(2,826.438)

141,800,259

(335,716,354)
311,906,868
10,548,843
(380,397)
(203,979)
(78,432)

—1103.619

(6.819,832)
4,163,870

10,734.583

§_14.808453
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATION FACILITIES AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Consolidated
Operating
Fund Reserve

—(Note10) ~  _Fund

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
(used) provided by operating activities:
Operating income $ 3,386,106 $ 829,645
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash (used) provided by operating activities:

Investment and interest income (1,461,247) (6,847,849)
Net increase in the fair value of investments (136,060) -
Arbitrage rebate expense - 794,065
Depreciation and amortization 340,038 -
Loss on disposal of equipment 775 -
Interest expense on bonds payable - 60,591,008
Interest expense on loans payable to taxable
financing reserve funds 471,101 -
Change in assets and liabilities:
Loans receivable from institutions - (199,577,357)
Loan receivable from operating fund - -
Net resident accounts receivable (77,678) -
Accrued interest and other receivables from institutions - (1,558,987
Due to/from other funds 67,640 49,316
Other assets (18,167) -
Estimated third-party payor settlements 198,393 -
Accounts payable and other liabilities 1,305,619 215,881
Deferred revenue 2,983 (126.604)
Net cash (used) provided by operating activities $.4079.503  $(145,630.882)

See accompanying notes.
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Taxable
Financing
Reserve
Fund

$ 1,288

(183,391)

962,069

5,992,013
530,000

(10,804)

(116,956)
90,864

(82.684)

$_1.182.399

Taxable
Financing
Reserve
Fund II

$ 40,555

(21,668)

126,008

3,407,528

Total

$ 4,257,594

(8,514,155)

(136,060)
794,065
340,038
775
61,679,085

471,101

(193,585,344)
3,937,528

(77,678)

(1,569,791)

(18,167)
198,393
1,612,364

—(206.305)

$(130.816.557)

18



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2007

Organization

Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority (the Authority) is constituted as an
instrumentality and, for accounting purposes under Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and No. 39, Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Unils, is considered a component unit of the State of Maine, organized
and existing under and pursuant to M.R.S.A., Title 22, Chapter 413, Sections 2051 to 2074, inclusive -
and as amended by Chapter 584 of the Public Laws of 1991,

The purpose of the Authority, among others, is to assist Maine health care institutions and institutions for
higher education (the institutions) in the undertaking of projects involving the acquisition, construction,
improvement, reconstruction and equipping of health care and educational facilities and the refinancing.
of existing indebtedness. The Authority, pursuant to the Student Loan Corporations Act of 1983, also-
has the power to finance student loan programs of institutions for higher education.

Debt issued by the Authority is not debt of the State of Maine or any political subdivision within the
State and the State is not obligated for such debt, nor is the full faith and credit of the State pledged for
such debt. The Authority is exempt from federal and State of Maine income taxes.

Legislation enacted in 1991 permitted the Authority to establish a reserve fund which will benefit from a.
“moral obligation™ reserve fund replenishment mechanism from the State of Maine. Although the
legislation does not bind or obligate the State, it does permit the legislature to appropriate and pay the
Authority the amount necessary to restore the reserve fund to the required amount in the event the fund -
goes below the statutorily established minimum balance of one year’s debt service on outstanding bonds.
The legislation also allows the Authority to implement a State funding intercept mechanism which
permits the Authority to cause the Treasurer of the State of Maine to withhold funds in the Treasurer’s
custody that otherwise would be paid to a borrower that has failed or may fail to make a debt service
payment and to direct the Treasurer to apply those funds as debt service to the applicable bonds or notes.
The State funding intercept is applicable to all future borrowings as well as currently outstanding bond
issues, whether or not secured by the “moral obligation” reserve fund replenishment mechanism.

Operating Fund

The Authority’s operating fund records the revenues and expenses generated from its daily operations,
and also includes the operations of Portland Center for Assisted Living f/k/a Woodford Park Nursing
Care Center, Inc. (the Center), which was acquired by the Authority in 1998 (see note 10). The
Authority has a management agreement with Maine Municipal Bond Bank (the Bond Bank) resulting in
an allocation of general overhead expenses from the operations of the Bond Bank to the Authority and
payment of direct operating expenses by the Authority.
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2007

Organization (Continued)

Presently, the Authority operates pursuant to four bond resolutions as follows:

Reserve Fund

These funds and accounts are established under the Authority’s Resolution establishing the Maine Health
Facilities’ Reserve Fund adopted December 6, 1991. Under this resolution, the Authority issues Bonds
exempt from federal and State of Maine income taxes for the purpose of providing financing for Maine
health and higher educational facilities. Bonds issued under this resolution are secured by all of the
reserve funds within the resolution and benefit from the moral obligation reserve fund replenishment
mechanism from the State of Maine. Loans to institutions made with proceeds of bonds issued under
this resolution are generally written for the net amount of bond proceeds less debt service reserve funds
retained by the Authority.

Taxable Financing Reserve Fund

These funds and accounts are established under the Authority’s Resolution establishing the Maine Health
Facilities’ Taxable Financing Reserve Fund Resolution adopted December 15, 1992. Under this
resolution, the Authority issues Bonds exempt from State of Maine income taxes. Bonds issued under
this resolution are secured by all of the reserve funds within the resolution and benefit from the moral
obligation reserve fund replenishment mechanism from the State of Maine. Loans to institutions made
with proceeds of bonds issued under this resolution are generally written for the net amount of bond
proceeds less debt service reserve funds retained by the Authority.

Taxable Financing Reserve Fund 1]

These funds and accounts are established under the Authority’s Resolution establishing the Maine Health
Facilities’ Taxable Financing Reserve Fund II adopted July 11, 2003. Under this resolution, the
Authority issues Bonds exempt from State of Maine income taxes, which proceeds are used for funding
subordinated loans to certain nursing homes in the State of Maine. Bonds issued under this resolution
are secured by all of the reserve funds within the resolution and benefit from the moral obligation reserve
fund replenishment mechanism from the State of Maine. All of the outstanding bonds were retired
during the year ended June 30, 2007.

General Resolution

These funds consist of funds and accounts established under the Authority’s General Bond Resolution
adopted June 5, 1973. Under this resolution, the Authority issues bonds exempt from federal and State
of Maine income taxes and assists in financing health care institutions and institutions for higher
education. Bonds issued under this resolution may be issued under the original Bond Resolution or
under an individual Bond Indenture between the Authority and an institution. Loans to institutions made
with proceeds of general resolution bonds are written for the entire amount of the bonds (including debt
service reserve funds). Security for these bonds is limited to debt service reserve funds of and the loans
to the specific institution for which the bond was issued. Therefore, these bonds are considered conduit
debt. (See notes 2 and 5).
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Significant Accounting Policies
Change in Accounting

Prior to fiscal 2007, the Authority accounted for its operating fund (including the Center) as a proprietary
fund and its restricted and trusteed funds as fiduciary funds.

During 2007, the Authority changed its method of accounting for its restricted and trusteed funds from
fiduciary fund accounting to proprietary fund accounting. As a result, the Authority no longer reports
institutional “funds held in trust” that had previously been reported in these funds. Additionally, the
Authority determined that its General Resolution accounts should be accounted for as conduit debt under
proprietary fund accounting as the Authority has no obligation for the outstanding bonds under this
resolution beyond the resources provided by the loans to the respective institutions on whose behalf the
bonds were issued. As such, the General Resolution accounts are no longer reported on the Authority’s.-
basic financial statements.

The change in accounting impacts beginning of year net assets under the respective bond fund
resolutions of the Authority as follows:

Taxable  Taxable

Financing Financing
General Reserve Reserve  Reserve
Resolution Fund Fund Fund II

Fund balance and funds held in trust as .
previously reported at June 30,2006 $§ 12,793,119 § 129,093,772 § 2,431,503 $ (40,555)

Adjustment to remove General Resolution (12,793,119) - - -

Adjustment for institutional “funds
held in trust” - (126.780.804)  (2.395.180) =

Beginning of year net assets,

June 30, 2006, as restated $___ -~ §__2312968 $__ 36323 $(40.555)

Substantially all of the adjustment for institutional “funds held in trust” above relate to amounts
previously reflected as construction/program funds and debt service funds (except for interest funds) and
the offsetting amounts consisted primarily of cash and/or investments. These funds are held by trustees
and are outside of the control of the Authority. Such amounts continue to collateralize the related
outstanding bonds and are reflected in the balance sheets of the borrowing entities. Activity within these
funds is not included in the statement of revenues, expenses and net assets.

Proprietary Fund Accounting

The Authority’s operations are, for the most part, financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprise, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing goods and
services is financed through user charges. Therefore, it meets the criteria for an enterprise fund and is
accounted for under the accrual basis of accounting.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Prior to the accounting change described above, restricted and trusteed funds were accounted for using
the modified accrual basis of accounting, which, except for the changes noted above, was substantially
the same as the accrual basis.

The Authority complies with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB) No. 20,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that use
Proprietary Fund Accounting. This Statement requires that the Authority apply all applicable GASB
pronouncements as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989,
unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions,
and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB’s). As permitted by GASB No. 20, the Authority has elected
not to comply with the FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statements No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State
and Local Governments, No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and
Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 21 and
No. 34 and No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures (the Statements).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Authority considers all checking and savings deposits and highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The consolidated cash and cash equivalents of
the Authority’s operating fund at June 30, 2007 consist of $300,000 insured and $2,370,316 noninsured
deposits with banks and $12,228,137 of money market funds held by a custodian and secured by short-
term U.S. Treasury obligations.

jnvestments

Investments are carried at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded as net increase (decrease) in the
fair value of investments on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets.

Bond Discounts, Premiums and Issuance Cosis

Costs associated with issuing debt, which are generally paid by means of fees collected from institutions
(borrowers), are expensed in the year incurred. To the extent they are used to pay bond issuance costs,
premiums are remitted to the Authority and are recorded as other income. Other premiums and
discounts are passed on to the borrowers, and are, therefore, not recorded.

Inte ansactions
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenses initially made from it that are

properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions
of expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation expense has been computed using the straight-
line method at rates intended to amortize the cost of the related assets over their estimated useful lives.

Estimated Third-Party Payor Setilements

Estimated third-party payor settlements with respect to the Center represent estimates of final settlements
under cost-reimbursed programs.

Amounts due under the cost reimbursement programs will become determinable and final only upon
completion of cost reporting and subsequent audit as required under the terms of agreements with
respective third-party reimbursing agencies.

Revenue Recognition and Resident Accounts Receivable

Net resident service revenue of the Center is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from
patients, third-party reimbursing agencies, and others for services rendered, including estimated
retroactive adjustments under reimbursement formulas with third-party reimbursing agencies.
Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered
and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined.

Resident accounts receivable of the Center are carried net of an allowance for bad debts, if any is

considered necessary by management after considering the nature and circumstances of past due
accounts. Accounts are charged off when deemed uncollectible.

Amortization

Deferred financing costs of the Center are amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the
respective loans.

Income Taxes

The Center has been granted tax-exempt status under IRS Code Section 501(c)(3) and, as such, is not
subject to federal or state income taxes.

Princivles of Consolidation

The consolidated operating fund reflects the accounts of the Authority and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
the Center. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Employers for Post-
Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, in June 2004, This statement establishes standards for the
measurement, recognition and display of other post-employment benefits (including post-employment
healthcare benefits). This statement is expected to be applicable to the Authority beginning in fiscal
2009.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Total Columns

The “total” columns contain the totals of the similar accounts of the various funds. The combination of
the accounts, including assets therein, is for convenience only and does not indicate that the combined
assets are available in any manner other than that provided for in the separate funds.

Investments Held by Trustee and Board-Designated Investments

The Authority is authorized, under Maine statutes, to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises and certain state and local governments, as well as certain
investment contracts and collateralized repurchase agreements. The trustees/custodians invest available
cash in accordance with Maine statutes, applicable Series Resolutions and Tax Regulatory Agreements.
At June 30, 2007, investments are categorized as follows:

Fair Value
Consolidated Operating Fund
Board-designated investments:
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises $_16.292,020
$_16,292,020
Reserve Fund
Investments held by trustee:
Guaranteed investment contracts $116,116,340
U.S. Government obligations 133,285
Cash and cash equivalents 36.534.479
$152,784.104
Taxable Financing Reserve Fund
Investments held by trustee:
Guaranteed investment contracts $ 2,463,581
Cash and cash equivalents 636,412
$_3.099,993
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Investments Held by Trustee (Continued)

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Authority’s
investment policy provides that investment maturities be closely matched with future bond principal and
interest requirements, which are the primary use of invested assets. Further, guaranteed investment
contracts, which maturities are also closely matched with future bond principal and interest
requirements, contain provisions that allow the Authority to terminate individual contracts at par. The
Authority’s general practice has been to hold all debt securities to their maturity, at which point the
funds are needed to make required bond principal and interest payments for the respective resolutions.
The following table provides information on future maturities of the Authority’s investments in
guaranteed investment contracts, U.S. government obligations and U.S. Government-sponsored
enterprises as of June 30, 2007:

Fair Less than One to Six to More than
Value One Year Five Years Ten Years Ten Years

Authority’s Operating Fund

U.S. Government-sponsored

enterprises $_16292,020 $5229.330 §.11.062,690 § = § =

Reserve Fund

Guaranteed investment
contracts $116,116,340 $ - $ - $3,132,500 $ 112,983,840
U.S. Government obligations 133.285 64.219 69.066 - -

$116249625 $__64219 $___ 69066 $3.132.500 $112,983.840

Taxable Financing Reserve Fund

Guaranteed investment

contracts $__2463581 $____ - $_1547449 $_916132 $___ -

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The Authority’s investments are primarily held by U.S. Bank.
Management of the Authority is not aware of any issues with respect to custodial credit risk at U.S. Bank
at June 30, 2007.

For an investment, credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligations to the Authority. The Authority’s investment policy limits its irivestments to those
with high credit quality such as U.S. Treasury Obligations and U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises,
as rated by rating agencies such as Moody’s Investor Service or Standard and Poor’s, or guaranteed
investment contracts backed by high credit quality banks and insurance companies (AA rated or better).
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Investments Held by Trustee (Continued)

At June 30, 2007, approximately $100,832,000 in guaranteed investment contracts within the reserve
fund are with three institutions. Additionally, approximately $2,464,000 in guaranteed investment
contracts within taxable financing reserve fund are with two institutions. The Authority limits its credit
risk by investing in guaranteed investment contracts backed by high credit quality banks and insurance
companies.

Bonds Payable
Total Reserve Fund bonds payable consist of the following at June 30, 2007:

26

Amount
Original Original Outstanding
Maturity Amount Issued June 30. 2007
Reserve Fund: .

Series 1992B, 3.0% — 5.875%,

dated September 15, 1992 19932022 § 44,850,000 $ 1,135,000
Series 1993D, 2.6% — 5.7%,

dated December 1, 1993 1994 — 2023 93,540,000 3,220,000
Series 1994A, 3.3% — 6.0%,

dated March 1, 1994 1994 — 2024 18,380,000 8,275,000
Series 1995A, 4.4% — 5.878%,

dated April 1, 1995 1996 — 2025 33,285,000 735,000
Series 1995B, variable rate,

dated August 2, 1995 1998 — 2025 17,535,000 12,635,000
Series 1995C, 3.875% — 6.2%,

dated August 1, 1995 1996 — 2025 13,745,000 990,000
Series 1996A, 3.75% — 5.625%,

dated August 15, 1996 1997 - 2026 28,515,000 19,890,000
Series 1996B, 4.5% — 5.75%,

dated October 15, 1996 1997 — 2026 41,855,000 7,670,000
Serjes 1997A, 4.3% — 5.7%,

dated June 1, 1997 2000 — 2027 8,310,000 7,175,000
Series 1997B, 4.25% — 5.0%,

dated December 1, 1997 1998 — 2018 52,640,000 34,515,000
Series 1998A, 4.0% — 5.28%,

dated March 18, 1998 1999 — 2028 76,800,000 60,480,000
Series 1998B, 3.7% — 5.0%,

dated June 1, 1998 1999 — 2028 100,540,000 74,870,000
Series 1998C, 2.95% — 5.1%,

dated November 1, 1998 1999 - 2029 30,585,000 25,790,000
Series 1999A, 3.5% — 5.25%,

dated April 15, 1999 1999 — 2030 98,385,000 77,305,000
Series 1999B, 4.0% — 6.0%,

dated December 1, 1999 2000 — 2029 41,505,000 37,460,000
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Bonds Payable

Reserve Fund (continued):

Series 2000A, variable rate,
dated January 27, 2000

Series 2000B, variable rate,
dated January 27, 2000

Series 2000C, 4.375% — 5.75%,
dated July 15, 2000

Series 2001A, 3.45% — 5.25%,
dated February 15, 2001

Series 2001B, 3.25% — 5.20%,
dated May 15, 2001

Series 2001C, 3.25% — 5.125%,
dated May 15, 2001

Series 2001D, 3.0% — 5.0%,
dated November 1, 2001

Series 2002A, 3.0% — 5.125%,
dated July 1, 2002

Series 2002B, 3.0% — 5.125%,
dated July 1, 2002

Series 2003A, 2.25% — 5.0%,
dated January 15, 2003

Series 2003B, 2.0% — 5.0%,
dated July 1, 2003

Series 2003C, 2.0% — 4.6%,
dated July 1, 2003

Series 2003D, 2.0% — 5.0%,
dated September 1, 2003

Series 2004 A, 2.0% — 5.375%,
dated June 3, 2004

Series 2004B, 3.00% — 5.00%,
dated December 9, 2004

Series 2005A, 3.0% — 5.0%,
dated August 17, 2005

Series 2005B, 3.5% — 5.0%,
dated December 29, 2005

Series 2006A, 3.5% — 5.0%,
dated February 2, 2006

Series 2006B, 3.5% — 5.0%,
dated April 6, 2006

Series 2006C, variable rate,
dated May 18, 2006

Series 2006D, variable rate,
dated May 18, 2006

June 30, 2007
Amount

Original Original Outstanding

Maturity Amount Issued June 30, 2007
2002-2022 § 11,755,000 § 9,840,000
20002019 12,685,000 8,465,000
2001 —-2030 51,540,000 46,520,000
2002 - 2031 66,585,000 57,755,000
2002 - 2022 10,615,000 8,855,000
2002 ~ 2031 27,565,000 18,935,000
2002 - 2031 50,700,000 42,910,000
2003 —2032 56,040,000 47,755,000
2003 —2032 8,175,000 7,770,000
2004 —2032 63,080,000 59,250,000
2004 —2033 59,245,000 54,030,000
2004 —2033 7,050,000 6,590,000
2004 - 2023 35,880,000 30,960,000
2004 — 2025 72,315,000 65,570,000
2006 —2034 42,265,000 41,130,000
2006 — 2035 48,325,000 46,355,000
2006 —2030 28,325,000 27,650,000
2006 — 2035 51,855,000 51,725,000
2007 — 2036 56,795,000 56,795,000
2007 -2014 31,575,000 31,575,000
2007 - 2026 19,975,000 19,975,000
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4. Bonds Payable (Continued)

Amount
Original Original Outstanding
Maturity Amount Issued June 30, 2007
Reserve Fund (continued):
Series 2006E, variable rate,
dated July 12, 2006 2009-2036 $ 86,250,000 $ 86,250,000
Series 2006F, 4.0% — 5.0%,
dated September 7, 2006 2007 — 2036 89,125,000 89,125,000
Series 2006G, variable rate,
dated September 7, 2006 2008 - 2036 14,200,000 14,200,000
Series 2006H, variable rate,
dated December 20, 2006 2012 -2036 68.400,000 68.400,000
$_1,770.790.000 1,370,530,000
Current portion 40,530,000
Noncurrent portion $_1,330,000,000

The outstanding Reserve Fund bonds payable will mature in each of the following years with interest

payable semiannually:

Year Ending

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013 -2017
2018 -2022
2023 - 2027
2028 —-2032
2033 -2037

Total

Principal Interest Total
40,530,000 $ 62,305,796 § 102,835,796
43,345,000 60,637,763 103,982,763
46,365,000 58,814,600 105,179,600
48,635,000 56,839,258 105,474,258
53,250,000 54,667,358 107,917,358
289,980,000 235,376,771 525,356,771
286,900,000 168,076,740 454,976,740
257,940,000 101,596,279 359,536,279
199,450,000 45,279,018 244,729,018
104.135.000 10.438.124 114.573.124

$.1.370,530,000 $_854.031,707 $2.224.561,707
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Bonds Pavable (Continued)

Taxable Financing Reserve fund bonds payable consist of the following at June 30, 2007;

Taxable Financing Reserve Fund:
Series 1993A, variable interest rate,
dated January 1, 1993
Series 1993B, variable interest rate,
dated October 27, 1993
Series 1996A, variable interest
rate, dated February 22, 1996

Current portion

Noncurrent portion

June 30, 2007

Original
Maturity
1993 - 2012
1994 - 2013

1996 - 2016

Original

Amount Issued

$ 57,125,000

Outstanding
June 30, 2007

$ 7,070,000

25,060,000 2,270,000
16.440,000 2,205,000
$_98,625,000 11,545,000
1,440,000

$.10.105,000

The outstanding Taxable Financing Reserve Fund bonds payable will mature in each of the following

years with interest payable semiannually:

Year Ending

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013 - 2017

The following summarizes bonds payable activity for the Authority for the year ended June 30, 2007:

Balance, beginning of year
Issuances

Redemptions:
Principal payments

Balance, end of year

Principal Interest Total

$ 1,440,000 $ 782,258 $ 2,222,258
1,535,000 674,392 2,209,392
1,615,000 560,135 2,175,135
1,715,000 439,303 2,154,303
1,840,000 310,305 2,150,305
3.400,000 341,143 3.741,143

$_11,545,000 $_3.107,536  $.14.652.536

Taxable Taxable
Reserve Financing Financing
Fund Reserve Fund  Reserve Fund I1

$ 1,153,005,000

$ 18,940,000

$ 4,250,000

257,975,000 - -
40.450,000  _ 7.395.000 4,250,000
$.1.370,530.000 $.11545000 $____-—_
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Conduit Debt

Conduit debt of the Authority consists of bonds outstanding within the general resolution. The following
is a summary of outstanding conduit debt at June 30, 2007:

Amount
Original Original Qutstanding
Maturity Amount Issued June 30, 2007

General Resolution:
VHA of New England Capital Asset Financing
Program, 1985 Series A Through Series G,
variable rate beginning at 6%, dated

December 30, 1985 2025 $ 26,100,000 $ 18,700,000
Southern Maine Medical Center, Series 1989,
5.9% — 7.3%, dated November 1, 1989 1990 - 2014 11,885,000 1,390,000

Mit. Desert Island Hospital, Series 1992, variable
interest rate equal to 80% of the prime rate of

Bank of America, dated July 15, 1992 1993 - 2012 1,300,000 550,000
Spurwink School, Series 1997, 6.5%,

dated December 23, 1997 1998 —2012 315,000 15,000
Mid Coast Hospital, 2001 lease purchase, 4.95%,

dated November 15, 2001 2002 - 2008 5,865,635 1,243,840
Mid Coast Geriatrics, Series 2002, 4.5% — 5.4%,

dated July 1, 2002 2006 — 2043 8,830,000 8,595,000
Bowdoin College, Series 2007, variable rate,

dated June 6, 2007 2032 -2037 20.500,000 20.500,000

$.74,795,635 $_50.993.840

The following is a summary of conduit debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2007:

Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2006 $ 31,830,068
Plus: Bonds issued during fiscal 2007 20,500,000
Less: Redemptions during fiscal 2007 1,336,228
Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2007 $_50,993,840

At June 30, 2007, there were approximately $24,070,000 of defeased bonds remaining outstanding with
respect to advance refunded bond issues of the general resolution.
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Reserve Funds

Each of the following resolutions require the Authority to set up reserve funds (maintain assets) as
follows:

Reserve Fund

The Authority is required to maintain debt service reserve assets which are equal to the maximum
amount of principal installments and interest maturing and becoming due in any succeeding calendar
year on all loan obligations then outstanding as of such date of calculation. At June 30, 2007, the
required debt service reserve was approximately $111,132,000 and the fair value of the debt service
reserve assets totaled approximately $122,000,000.

Taxable Financing Reserve Fund

The Authority is required to maintain debt service reserve assets which are equal to the maximum
amount of principal installments and interest maturing and becoming due in any succeeding calendar
year on all loan obligations then outstanding as of such date of calculation. At June 30, 2007, the
required debt service reserve was approximately $2,265,000 and the fair value of the debt service reserve
assets totaled approximately $2,464,000.

Operating Expenses

The Authority has a management agreement with Maine Municipal Bond Bank (the Bond Bank) which
allocates a portion of Bond Bank expenses to the Authority. The allocation is based on expenses
specifically incurred on behalf of the Authority and the Authority’s estimated portion of general
overhead. The Authority recognized approximately $507,000 of expense under this agreement in 2007.

Refunded Issues

In periods of declining interest rates, the Authority has refunded various bond obligations. The proceeds
of any advance refunding bonds are primarily used to purchase U.S. Treasury obligations, the principal
and interest on which will be sufficient to pay the principal and interest, when due, of the defeased
bonds. Neither the U.S. Treasury obligations nor the defeased bonds are reflected on the accompanying
financial statements. The U.S. Treasury obligations are placed in irrevocable trust accounts with the
trustees of the defeased bonds. The gains, losses and economic benefits of these transactions inure to the
respective Institution and not the Authority, although the Authority may receive an administrative fee.

At June 30, 2007, there were approximately $6,700,000 of in-substance defeased bonds remaining

outstanding with respect to all advance-refunded issues within the reserve fund and taxable fund
resolutions.
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Nursing Home Loans and Advances

In 1994, the Maine Department of Human Services (DHS) substantially revised the eligibility criteria for
Medicaid coverage of nursing facility services, causing a decline in occupancy in nursing facilities. The
occupancy decline has not affected each nursing facility equally. In some instances, particularly in
proprietary nursing homes borrowing under the taxable financing reserve fund resolution, which consists
primarily of loans to nursing homes, these declines in occupancy created cash flow problems.

In years prior to fiscal 2007, the Authority made significant loans and advances on behalf of financially
troubled nursing homes to assist in meeting debt service requirements. A group of certain financially
troubled homes, with the Authority’s concurrence, began refinancing portions of Authority loans and
advances with the U.S. Department of Housing and Rural Development (HUD). As part of the
refinancing completed by HUD, the Authority agreed to issue 8% subordinate notes receivable from its
operating fund to each nursing home. These notes totaled $7,822,057 at June 30, 2006. During fiscal
2007, the group of nursing homes was sold to a third party and as part of the sale the Authority was
repaid a substantial portion of the remaining subordinate note balances. There are no subordinate notes
remaining in the Authority’s Operating fund at June 30, 2007.

The Authority has advanced approximately $152,000 from its operating fund to two institutions with
outstanding loans owed to the Authority of approximately $1,650,000 within the taxable resolution, and
has loaned from its operating fund approximately $609,000 to an institution with outstanding loans owed
to the Authority of approximately $9,700,000 within the reserve fund at June 30, 2007. These advances
and loans, upon which interest income is recognized only to the extent that cash payments are received,
were primarily made to assist these institutions in meeting debt service requirements in years prior to
fiscal 2007. The Authority also has approximately $467,000 of other receivables outstanding within the
operating fund at June 30, 2007, primarily related to amounts due from institutions to reimburse the
Authority for arbitrage rebate payments made on their behalf.

The $609,000 loan referenced above also sets forth a Forbearance Period. The Authority agreed that it
would not commence foreclosure on or before April 30, 2009 unless or until an occurrence of a default
(event of default includes, among other events, lack of payment under either note). In the case of a
default during the Forbearance Period, the Authority has the option at its sole discretion to enforce its
rights under the reserve fund resolution and operating fund loan agreements. Under the operating fund
loan agreement, the institution has stipulated in advance to a deed in lieu of foreclosure on the property,
bill of sale in lieu of foreclosure on equipment fixtures, and gross receipts, stipulated consent to
appointment of receiver, and stipulated consent to judgment of foreclosure and sale with waiver of right
of appeal and redemption. These agreements and stipulations have been signed and agreed to by the
institution, but not executed or enacted by the Authority; however, the Authority has the right to enact
these documents should an event of default occur under either the reserve fund or operating fund loan
agreements. If the Authority executed its rights, management believes that sufficient changes could be
made to the operations of the facility to allow it to service its reserve fund debt.

At June 30, 2007, the Authority has established a $1,064,488 reserve in the operating fund related to the
above loans, advances and other receivables outstanding.
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2007

10. Portland Center for Assisted Living f/k/a Woodford Park Nursing Care Center, Inc. (the Center)

Effective January 5, 1998, the Authority elected to purchase 100% of the issued and outstanding shares
of common stock of the Center. No amounts were paid or are payable to former owners of the Center
with respect to this transaction. The Center, as purchased, was a 126-bed facility which provided long-
term nursing care to the elderly. The Center was subsequently converted to a 125-bed assisted living
facility, which is eligible for reimbursements under MaineCare, the State of Maine Medicaid program.
During fiscal 1998, the Authority recorded a loss of approximately $3.5 million, representing the excess
of the Center’s liabilities over the estimated fair value of its assets. In May 2006, the Center added an
Alzheimer’s wing with additional beds which brought the total number of beds to 152,

Ultimate realization of recorded amounts with respect to the Center’s assets is dependent upon continued
operations of the Center, which in turn is dependent upon the Center’s ability to meet its financing
requirements and the success of its future operations. The Center is highly dependent upon regulatory
authorities establishing reimbursement rates that are adequate to sustain the Center’s operations. As
discussed more fully in the following paragraph, management believes that actions presently being taken
to revise the Center’s operating and financial requirements will allow the Center to continue as a going
concern and, following such revisions, management plans to sell the Center’s assets to an outside party.

In 2000, management completed the process of restructuring the Center so that it now qualifies as a
nonprofit entity under Internal Revenue Service code section 501(c)(3). As a result, management may,
at their discretion, refinance the existing Authority Revenue Bonds Series 1993A by issuing nontaxable
bonds at a lower rate of interest, potentially resulting in interest savings to the Center. Additionally,
management of the Authority has indicated their intent to provide resources needed to allow the Center
to continue operations through the next fiscal year.

Relevant disclosures for the Center are summarized as follows:

Assets Whose Use is Limited

Assets whose use is limited consist of resident funds held in trust and funds required by the terms of the
Authority’s Revenue Bonds Series 1993A and are invested in cash and money market securities at
June 30, 3007. A summary follows:

Principal and interest debt service accounts $743,535
Resident funds 43,121
Total assets whose use is limited $1786.656

The Center is required by the bond issue to make monthly principal and interest payments into debt
service accounts which are held by the bond trustee. The funds in these accounts are used to make the
semi-annual payments of interest and annual payments of principal to the bond holders.
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10. Portland Center for Assisted Living f/k/a Woodford Park Nursing Care Center, Inc. (the Center)
(Continued)

Significant Concentration and Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements

Upon the conversion of the Center to an assisted living facility in December 1998, the Center is no
longer eligible for reimbursements under the Federal Medicare program. Approximately 94% of the
residents served in 2007 were beneficiaries of the MaineCare program. Under this program, the provider
is reimbursed for the care of qualified residents at specified interim contractual rates during the year.
Differences between these interim contractual rates and the “cost” of this care, as defined by the
Principles of Reimbursement governing the respective programs, are determined and settled on a
retroactive basis.

The Center’s financial statements reflect the estimated settlements under the MaineCare program.
Settlements do not become final until the cost reports are audited and approved by the Maine
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS). Differences between estimated and actual
settlements are recorded as contractual adjustments in the year of final determination.

The estimated settlements to the MaineCare program include amounts which DHHS has determined to
be owed based on audited cost reports for years 1995 through 1998 and 2003 through 2005, plus an
estimated settlement for 2006 and 2007. Any change in the recorded estimated settlements which may
be generated by the resolution of disputed issues or subsequent audits will be recorded as contractual
adjustments in the year of final settlement.

Following is a summary of net resident service revenue for the year ended June 30, 2007:

Gross resident service revenue $ 7.875,905
Contractual adjustments under third-party
reimbursement programs : (2.568.316)
Net resident service revenue $_5.307,589

Due to the large concentration of residents who receive benefits from the MaineCare reimbursement
program, the Center is highly dependent upon regulatory authorities establishing reimbursement rates
that are adequate to sustain the Center’s operations.

The State of Maine enacted legislation establishing a PNMI Service Provider Tax (State tax). As a
result, the Center was subjected to and recorded $248,306 of State tax in 2007. The amount is included
in resident service and other operating expenses on the statement of operations, while the increase of
MaineCare reimbursement is reflected as a decrease in the contractual adjustments,
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10. Portland Center for Assisted Living f/k/a Woodford Park Nursing Care Center, Inc. (the Center)
{Continued)

Fixed Assets
A summary of fixed assets follows:

006 Additions Deductions 007

Land $ 302,291 $ - $ -~ § 302291
Building and improvements 7,261,012 90,571 - 7,351,583
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,018,080 113,408 (3,953) 1,127,535
Vehicles 21.944 ~ -~ 21,944
8,603,327 203,979 (3,953) 8,803,353
Less accumulated depreciation (5.224.427) (319.953) 3,178  (5.541.202)
Fixed assets, net $.3,378900 $(115974) $_(775) $_3.262.151

Loan Pavable to Taxable Financing Reserve Fund

Loan payable to the taxable financing reserve fund of $3,238,013 at June 30, 2007 consists of amounts
due under a portion of the Authority’s Revenue Bonds Series 1993A, which is payable in monthly
installments of principal and interest to the trustee sufficient to make semi-annual interest payments and
annual principal payments sufficient to retire the bonds when due. The annual payments (including
interest at 7.35% per annum) are approximately $860,000, excluding letter of credit and authority fees.

Approximate annual maturities on this loan for the next five years are as follows:

2008 $570,000
2009 610,000
2010 660,000
2011 705,000
2012 693,013

Management Agreement

First Atlantic Corp. provided all management and accounting services required by the Center throughout
2007. Based upon an executed management agreement, First Atlantic Corp. charges the Center an
annual amount equal to the greater of 5% of net patient service revenues or $150,000. Management and
accounting expenses incurred by the Center under this management agreement for the year ended
June 30, 2007 were approximately $260,000.
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10, Portland Center for Assisted Living f/l/a Woodford Park Nursing Care Center, Inc. (the Center)

11.

{Continued)
Employee Benefit Plan

The Center sponsors a discretionary contributory profit sharing plan and 401(k) plan which covers
substantially all employees. The Center may elect to match employee contributions of up to 5% of the
compensation of all eligible participants. The Center may also elect to make additional discretionary
contributions. The Center contributed approximately $4,000 to the plan for the year ended June 30,
2007.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Center has obtained malpractice and general liability coverage from a commercial insurance
company on a claims made basis. As of June 30, 2007, there were no known malpractice claims
outstanding which, in the opinion of management, will be settled for amounts in excess of insurance
coverage, nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents for which a loss accrual has not been made.
The Center intends to continue coverage on a claims made basis with a commercial carrier and
anticipates that such coverage will be available.

The Center is subject to complaints, claims and litigation which have arisen in the normal course of
business. In addition, the Center is subject to compliance with laws and regulations of various
government agencies. While no significant regulatory inquiries have been made at June 30, 2007,
compliance with these laws and regulations is subject to future government review, interpretation or
actions which are unknown and unasserted at this time.

Administrative Fees

The Authority’s Board of Commissioners voted to refund six months of fiscal 2007 administrative fees
paid to the Authority totaling $1,251,003 back to the respective institutions. This amount is included in
accounts payable of the Authority’s operating fund at June 30, 2007.
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET — OPERATING FUND

June 30, 2007
ASSETS
Portland
Authority’s Center Consolidated
Operating For Assisted Operating
Fund Living Eliminations Fund
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $14,132873 $§ 765580 $ - § 14,898,453
Board-designated cash and investments,

at fair value 16,292,020 ~ - 16,292,020
Accrued investment income 78,444 - - 78,444
Fees and other amounts due from other funds 1,485,355 - - 1,485,355
Resident accounts receivable, net of

allowance of $15,000 - 406,115 - 406,115
Other assets 4.416 93.846 - 98.262

Total current assets 31,993,108 1,265,541 - 33,258,649

Long-term assets:

Notes, advances and other receivables from

institutions, net of allowance of

$1,064,488 7,656,196 - (7,596,015) 60,181
Assets whose use is limited - 786,656 - 786,656
Fixed assets, net - 3,262,151 - 3,262,151
Deferred financing costs, net - 112,245 - 112,245

Total noncurrent assets 7,656,196 4,161,052 (7,596,015) 4,221,233

Total assets

$.39.649.304 $_5.426.503
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Portland
Authority’s Center Consolidated
Operating For Assisted Operating
Fund Living Eliminations _Fund
Current liabilities:
Loan payable to taxable financing
reserve fund $ - $ 570,000 $ - $§ 570,000
Accounts payable 1,300,072 70,891 - 1,370,963
Estimated third-party payor settlements - 1,370,710 - 1,370,710
Accrued payroll and other expenses . - 139,188 - 139,188
Resident funds held in trust - 43,121 - 43,121
Deferred revenue 5.286 6.470 - 11.756
Total current liabilities 1,305,358 2,200,380 - 3,505,738
Long-term liabilities:
Loan payable to taxable financing reserve
fund - 2,668,013 - 2,668,013
Advances and accrued interest due to
Authority’s operating fund - 7.596.015  (7.596.015) =
Total noncurrent liabilities -~ 10,264,028  (7.596.015) 2,668.013
Total liabilities 1,305,358 12,464,408 (7,596,015) 6,173,751
Common stock, no par value; authorized 10,000
shares, issued and outstanding 200 shares - 200 (200) -
Net assets (deficit) 38.343.946 (7.038.015) 200 31,306,131
Total net assets (deficit) 38.343.946 (7.037.815) - 31.306.131

Total liabilities and net assets (deficit) $.39.649304 $_5426593 $(7.596,015) $.37.479.882
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS — OPERATING FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Portland
Authority’s Center Consolidated
Operating For Assisted Elimi- Operating
Fund Living nations Fund

Operating revenues:

Net resident service revenue $ - $5307,58 $ - § 5,307,589
Administrative and other fees 1,748,395 - -~ 1,748,395
Investment income 1,300,725 - - 1,300,725
Net increase in the fair value of investments 136,060 - - 136,060
Interest income from advances and notes

receivable from institutions 917,154 - (756,632) 160,522
Other income 110,334 - — 110,334

4,212,668 5,307,589  (756,632) 8,763,625

Operating expenses:

Salaries ' 303,771 - - 303,771
Employee benefits 89,402 - - 89,402
Travel 4,883 - - 4,883
Office expenses 68,017 - - 68,017
Accounting and auditing 56,000 - - 56,000
Legal 77,041 - - 77,041
Telephone 6,356 - - 6,356
Building lease 48,543 - - 48,543
Interest expense to taxable financing

reserve fund 11 168,586 - - 168,586
Nursing services - 1,522,084 - 1,522,084
Administrative services - 521,361 ~ 521,361
PNMI Service Provider Tax - 248,306 - 248,306
Dietary services - 698,353 - 698,353
Depreciation and amortization - 340,038 - 340,038
Plant operations and maintenance - 321,937 - 321,937
Housekeeping services - 170,202 - 170,202
Other services - 409,951 - 409,951
Bad debt expense - 11,605 - 11,605
Interest expense - 1,059,147  (756,632) 302,515
Other expenses - 8.568 - 8.568

822.599 5.311.552  (756.632) 5.377.519

Operating income (loss) 3,390,069 (3,963) - 3,386,106
Net assets (deficit) at beginning of year 34.953.877  (7.034.052) 200 27,920,025
Net assets (deficit) at end of year $.38.343946 $(7,038.015) § 200 $.31,306,131
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Program Revenues

Net Revenue (Expense)
and Changes in net assets

Program Operating Capital
Charges for Investment Grants and Grants/
Expenses Services Income Contributions  Contributions
Functions/Programs:
Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority $(70.,518.333) $63.349.462 $_7,052,.908 $2.826.438 $ —
Total $.(70.518333) $.63349462 $_7.052,908 $2.826438 § -

General revenues:
Unrestricted interest and investment earnings

Non program specific grants, contributions and appropriations
Miscellaneous income

Loss on assets held for sale

Extraordinary item
Total general revenues and extraordinary items
Changes in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year, as restated

Net assets, end of year

Note 1 — Operating grants and contributions shown above consist of other income of the Reserve Fund.
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Total

$_2.710.475

2,710,475

1,436,785
110,334

1,547.119
4,257,594
30,228,761
$.34.486.355
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER Tel 207-622-1958

EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY Fax 207-623-5359
TO: INTERESTED PARTIES

FROM: Robert O. Lenna, Executive Director

RE: 2006 Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Annual Report

Thisisthe annual report for the Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority for the 2006 fiscal
year, running from July 1, 2005 to June 30, 2006. As of June 30, 2006, the Authority has $31,830,069
outstanding under its general tax exempt conduit resolution, $1,153,005,000 outstanding under its tax exempt
reserve fund resolution, $18,940,000 outstanding under it’s taxable reserve fund resolution, and $4,250,000
outstanding under its taxable II reserve fund resolution.

During fiscal year 2006 the Authority issued $236,850,000 of bonds under its tax-exempt reserve fund
resolution. This sale were accomplished in six series for four colleges, six hospitals, one continuing care
retirement community, and one social servicesfacility.

Started in December of 1991, the Authority’s unique health and higher education program, using a state moral
obligation reserve fund make-up provision and the ability to intercept funds of borrowers prior to any failure to
pay, provides unusual strength to a diversified and dispersed portfolio of loans to health care and higher
educational facilities throughout Maine. By making use of out ability to aggregate issues, share costs for bond
sales among multiple borrowers and provide the State’s moral obligation credit enhancement to eligible
institutions, we provide al of Maine’s health and higher educational facilities, from the largest to the smallest,
with the lowest cost available for the money they borrow to meet their capital needs.

If there is further information you might like or questions you may have concerning the Authority, please feel
free to give us a call at (207) 622-1958. Additional information about the Authority is avpilable at out website:

www.mhhefa.com
< 4 A ,\

3 University Drive * P.O.Box 2268 * Augusta, Maine ¢ 04338-2268 ¢ www.mhhefa.com
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BAKER NEWMAN NOYES,.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements, consisting of the consolidating balance sheet —
operating fund and the balance sheets — restricted and trusteed funds, including the General Resolution,
Reserve Fund, Taxable Financing Reserve Fund and Taxable Financing Reserve Fund II, and the related
consolidating statement of operations and changes in fund balance — operating fund, statements of changes in
fund balance and funds held in trust ~ restricted and trusteed funds and consolidating statement of cash flows
— operating fund of Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority, which is an instrumentality of
the State of Maine and is required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 14 and 39
to be shown as a component unit of the State of Maine (for accounting purposes only), as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority and the individual fund
groups referred to above as of June 30, 2006, and the results of their operations and cash flows of its
operating fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 13, 2006
on our consideration of Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.



To the Members of
Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority

The Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 — 10 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements, but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

%%M, Ly

Portland, Maine Limited Liability Company
October 13, 2006



MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2006

As financial management of the Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”),
we offer readers of these financial statements this narrative, overview and analysis of the financial activities
of the Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. This discussion and analysis is designed to assist the
reader in focusing on the significant financial issues and activities of the Authority and to identify any
significant changes in financial position. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with the basic financial statements as a whole.

Financial Highlights

Consolidated revenues for the Authority’s Operating Fund were $9,311,614 for fiscal year 2006, an
increase of $340,229 or 3.8% over fiscal year 2005. Consolidated operating income for the Authority’s
Operating Fund was $4,126,391 for fiscal year 2006, an increase of $72,076 from fiscal year 2005. This
increase in consolidated operating income was mainly due to an improving short-term interest rate
environment and additional net resident service revenue in 2006.

Notes, advances and other receivables from institutions in the Authority’s Operating Fund of $7,101,883
at June 30, 2006 consists of subordinate loans that the Authority assumed as part of the refinancing of
several taxable nursing home bonds with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) during fiscal years 2002 — 2006 (refer to note 8 of the audited financial statements), advances
made to financially troubled institutions for required debt service payments and other miscellaneous
receivables. The net amount increased $269,834 over fiscal year 2005. The Authority is recording
interest income on a cash basis for notes and advances receivable.

Loan receivable from Operating Fund in the Authority’s Restricted and Trusteed Funds represents bond
principal payments due from Portland Center for Assisted Living (the Center) at June 30, 2006. The
Center was acquired by the Authority in 1998 and is entirely owned by the Authority.

The Authority’s loans receivable from institutions in the Restricted and Trusteed Funds at June 30, 2006
of $1,083,932,329 represents a net increase of $104,528,952 or 10.7% from the balance at June 30, 2005.
This increase is the net result of the bond issuances described below, for which various funds were loaned
out during fiscal 2006, repayment of loans by institutions during fiscal 2006 and certain refundings and
refinancings that occurred in fiscal 2006.

The Authority’s gross bonds outstanding at June 30, 2006 of $1,208,025,068 represents a net increase of
$111,984,137 or 10.2% from the balance at June 30, 2005. This increase consists of the issuance of
$48,325,000 in Series 2005A reserve fund bonds, $28,325,000 in Series 2005B reserve fund bonds,
$51,855,000 in Series 2006A reserve fund bonds, $56,795,000 in Series 2006B reserve fund bonds,
$31,575,000 in Series 2006C reserve fund bonds and $19,975,000 in Series 2006D reserve fund bonds,
less scheduled bond principal payments and certain refundings and refinancings that occurred in 2006
(refer to notes 4 and 7 of the audited financial statements). The Authority’s bonds are a combination of
fixed and variable interest rate and tax-exempt and taxable bonds, although a majority of the bonds are
fixed interest rate and tax-exempt.



Overview of the Authority

The Authority was created in 1973 by an Act of the Maine Legislature, is a public body corporate and politic
and is constituted as an instrumentality exercising public and essential governmental functions of the State.
The Authority was established to issue bonds for the purpose, among other things, of assisting Maine health
care institutions and institutions of higher education in the undertaking of projects involving the acquisition,
construction, improvement, reconstruction and equipping of health care and educational facilities and the
refinancing of existing indebtedness. The Authority, pursuant to the Student Loan Corporations Act of 1983,
also has the power to finance student loan programs of institutions for higher education.

As the result of the Authority issuing tax-exempt debt, the Authority is required to prepare arbitrage rebate
calculations for each series of bonds outstanding and remit payment to the Internal Revenue Service every
five years. The Authority’s policy is to prepare and review the calculations every six months for financial
statement purposes.

For financial statement reporting purposes, the Authority is considered a component unit of the State of
Maine. However, the Authority does not receive any State appropriations for its operations.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s financial statements,
which are comprised of the basic financial statements and the notes to the financial statements.

Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The balance sheets present information on all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as fund balance and funds held in trust. Fund balance and funds held in trust
increase when revenues and additions exceed expenses and deductions. Increases to assets without a
corresponding increase to liabilities result in increased fund balance and funds held in trust, which may
indicate an improved financial position.

The statements of operations and changes in fund balance and funds held in trust present information showing
how the Authority’s fund balance and funds held in trust changed during the fiscal year. Substantially all
changes in fund balance and funds held in trust are reported as soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless
of timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and additions and expenses and deductions are reported in
this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the basic financial statements.

Financial Analysis

In the Authority’s Operating Fund, assets exceeded liabilities by $27,920,025 at June 30, 2006. This
represents an increase of $4,126,391 or 17.3% over the previous fiscal year, which is the Authority’s 2006
operating income within the Operating Fund.

The Authority’s financial position and operations for the past two years are summarized below based on
information included in the audited financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED OPERATING FUND

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments, at fair value

Accrued investment income

Fees and other amounts receivable from
trusteed funds

Resident accounts receivable, net
of allowance of $19,000

Other assets
Total current assets

Long-term assets:
Notes, advances and other receivables from
institutions, net of allowance of $2,050,270
Assets whose use is limited
Fixed and other assets, net
Deferred financing costs, net
Total long-term assets

Total assets

Current liabilities:
Current portion of loan payable
to trusteed funds
Accounts payable
Estimated third-party payor settlements
Accrued payroll and other expenses
Resident funds held in trust
Deferred revenue
Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Loan payable to trustee funds
Other amounts due to trusteed funds
Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

Percentage

2006 2005 Change
10,734,583 $ 9,207,276 16.6%
12,428,467 10,996,431 13.0
16,478 12,022 37.1
1,614,912 1,562,297 34
328,437 281,279 16.8
80,095 151,423 @7.1)
25,202,972 22,210,728 13.5
7,101,883 6,832,049 3.9
705,730 679,996 3.8
3,378,900 3,631,598 (7.0)
132,330 152,415 (13.2)
11,318,843 11,296,058 0.2
36,521,815 § 33,506,786 9.0%
530,000 $ 495,000 7.1%
103,747 69,539 49.2
1,172,317 1,256,051 6.7
100,785 103,170 (2.3)
40,627 36,097 12.5
8,773 2,754 218.6
1,956,249 1,962,611 0.3)
3,238,013 3,768,013 (14.1)
3,407,528 3,982,528 (14.4)
6,645,541 7,750,541 (14.3)
8,601,790 9,713,152 (11.4)
27,920,025 23,793,634 17.3
36,521,815 $ 33,506,786 9.0%




RESTRICTED AND TRUSTEED FUNDS Percentage

2006 2005 Change
Current assets;
Cash and cash equivalents $ 74,333,947 $ 78,832,376 5.7%
Investments, at fair value 99,715,755 15,647,818 537.3
Accrued interest receivable 2,620,926 582,716 349.8
Loans receivable from institutions 38,066,228 40,490,863 (6.0)
Loan receivable from operating fund 530,000 495,000 7.1
Other receivables from institutions 148,936 192,926 (22.8)
Total current assets 215,415,792 136,241,699 58.1
Noncurrent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 795,600 795,600 0.0
Investments, at fair value 115,806,558 107,421,051 7.8
Loans receivable from institutions 1,045,866,101 938,912,514 11.4
Loan receivable from operating fund 3,238,013 3,768,013 (14.1)
Other amounts due from operating fund 3,407,528 3,982,528 (14.4)
Total noncurrent assets 1,169,113,800 1,054,879,706 10.8
Total assets $ 1,384,529,592 $ 1,191,121,405 16.2%
Current liabilities:
Bonds payable § 38,596,228 $ 40,985,863 (5.8)%
Interest payable 25,487,921 24,198,633 53
Fees payable to operating fund 1,614,912 1,562,297 34
Accounts payable 2,845,617 86,372 3,194.6
Rebate payable to Internal Revenue Service 397,319 782,496 (49.2)
Deferred revenue 765,082 1,478,589 (48.3)
Total current liabilities 69,707,079 69,094,250 0.9
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable 1,169,428,840 1,055,055,068 10.8
Rebate payable to Internal Revenue Service 1,115,834 943,539 18.3
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,170,544,674 1,055,998,607 10.8
Total liabilities 1,240,251,753 1,125,092,857 10.2
Funds held in trust:
Construction/program funds 94,533,159 20,196,994 368.1
Expense funds 535,333 (38,467) 1,491.7
Debt service funds 43,607,232 40,157,022 8.6
Debt service reserve funds 4,212,512 4,217,758 (0.1)
Earnings funds 235 451 47.9)
Redemption funds 655,010 58,964 1010.9
Unrestricted fund balance 734,358 1,435,826 (48.9)
Total funds held in trust and fund balance 144,277,839 66,028,548 118.5
$ 1,384,529,592 § 1,191,121,405 16.2%




The Authority’s results of operations for the past two years is summarized below based on information

included in the audited financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED OPERATING FUND

Operating revenues:
Net resident service revenue
Administrative and other fees
Investment income

Net decrease in the fair value of investments
Interest income from advances and notes

receivable from institutions
Other income

Operating expenses:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Travel
Office expenses
Accounting and auditing
Legal
Telephone
Building lease
Paid to trusteed funds
Nursing services
Administrative services
PNMI Service Provider Tax
Dietary services
Depreciation and amortization
Plant operations and maintenance
Housekeeping services
Other services
Bad debt expense
Loss on disposal of equipment
Interest expense

Operating income
Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

Percentage

2006 2005 Change
4,601,173 4,441,652 3.6%
2,995,308 3,120,087 4.0)
753,578 451,099 67.1
(5,907 (72,588) 91.9
855,767 917,160 6.7
111,695 113,975 2.0)
9,311,614 8,971,385 3.8
330,613 314,869 5.0
88,335 78,018 13.2
6,255 4,948 26.4
75,020 64,594 16.1
50,000 48,500 3.1
98,101 29,537 232.1
6,135 6,818 (10.0)
52,090 54,535 4.5)
185,591 143,593 29.2
1,413,094 1,427,703 (1.0)
470,520 467,220 0.7
243,333 188,087 29.4
604,565 595,700 1.5
328,879 330,900 0.6)
315,451 289,385 9.0
138,208 142,155 2.8)
370,743 351,199 5.6

7,904 - -
- 158 (100.0)
400,386 379,151 5.6
5,185,223 4,917,070 5.5
4,126,391 4,054,315 1.8
23,793,634 19,739,319 20.5
27,920,025 § 23,793,634 17.3%




RESTRICTED & TRUSTEED FUNDS Percentage

2006 2005 Change
Funds held in trust and fund balance, beginning of year $ 66,028,548 § 87,218,199 24.3)%
Additions:
Bond proceeds 236,850,000 42,265,000 460.4
Received and receivable from institutions 95,408,914 89,693,651 6.4
Received and receivable from operating fund 1,545,591 303,593 409.1
Transfer from debt service reserves 893,687 152,957 484.3
Income from investments 10,850,310 7,270,771 49.2
Net (decrease) increase in the fair value of (610,189) 490,715 (224.3)
investments
Premium on sale of bonds 5,919,344 - -
Other income - 293,912 (100.0)
Total additions 350,857,657 140,470,599 149.8
Deductions:
Construction and program costs 72,884,614 35,415,860 105.8
Bond issuance costs 3,060,410 886,602 245.2
Principal payments 43,095,863 37,727,685 14.2
Interest expense 54,294,742 51,231,366 6.0
Paid to institutions 4,307,827 3,267,422 31.8
Paid to refunding & refinancing escrows 83,799,576 30,565,650 174.2
Transfer to debt service reserves 10,368,872 1,861,516 457.0
Other deductions 796,462 704,149 13.1
Total deductions 272,608,366 161,660,250 68.6
Increase (decrease) in fund balance and funds held in trust 78,249,291 (21,189,651) 469.3
Funds held in trust and fund balance, end of year 144,277,839 § 66,028,548 118.5%

Operating Fund consolidated cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2006 increased $1,527,307 or 16.6% from
balances at June 30, 2005. This increase was the result of investing excess funds into short-term investments.

Investments within the Operating Fund at June 30, 2006 increased $1,432,036 or 13.0% over the balance at
June 30, 2005. This increase was the result of investing additional excess revenues over expenses into long-
term investments. The Authority’s Operating Funds’ long-term investment portfolio is comprised of U.S.
Government-sponsored enterprise securities. All investments are carried at fair value, and unrealized gains
and losses (primarily due to fluctuations in interest rates) are recognized in the statements of operations and

changes in fund balance.

Accounts payable within the Operating Fund at June 30, 2006 increased $34,208 or 49.2% from June 30,
2005. The increase was the result of the timing of the payment of accounts payable at fiscal year end.



Notes, advances and other receivables from institutions within the Operating Fund at June 30, 2006 increased
$269,834 or 3.9% over balances from June 30, 2005. This increase was primarily the net result of the
Authority retaining subordinated debt on additional refinancings with HUD and repayments on the advances
and subordinate debt by the institutions in 2006.

Investments within the Restricted and Trusteed Funds at June 30, 2006 increased $92,453,444 or 75.1% from
June 30 2005. This increase is the net result of the investment of bond proceeds from the Series 2005A,
2005B, 2006A, 2006B, 2006C and 2006D issues, and the disbursement of funds to institutions for project
costs throughout the year. Total bond issuances (par) were up $194,585,000 or 460.4% over fiscal 2005. A
significant amount of total bond proceeds were undisbursed at June 30, 2006, and therefore remain in
investment balances at this date. The Authority’s investment portfolio is comprised of cash and cash
equivalents, U.S. Government obligations (including treasury bills, notes, and bonds), U.S. Government-
sponsored enterprise securities and guaranteed investment contracts. All investments are carried at fair value,
and unrealized gains and losses (primarily due to fluctuations in interest rates) are recognized in the
statements of operations and changes in fund balance and funds held in trust.

Accrued interest receivable within the Restricted and Trusteed Funds at June 30, 2006 increased $2,038,210
or 349.8% from June 30 2005. This increase was primarily the result of the timing of interest receipts on
guaranteed investment contracts within the Reserve Fund Resolution. The increase in short-term interest rates
over fiscal 2005 also contributed to the increase.

Accounts payable within the Restricted and Trusteed Funds at June 30, 2006 increased $2,759,245 or
3,194.6% from June 30, 2005. The increase was primarily the result of the timing of the payment of
construction draws at fiscal year end (expense and related payable recorded at time of requisition request).

Total rebate payable to the Internal Revenue Service at June 30, 2006 decreased $212,882 or 12.3% from
June 30, 2005. This decrease was the net result of additional accrued liability for fiscal year 2006 on all tax-
exempt bond issues and the payment to the Internal Revenue Service of the rebate liability for those tax-
exempt issues whose rebate payment was due during 2006.

Fund balance within the Restricted and Trusteed Funds increased $78,249,291 or 118.5% at June 30, 2006
over June 30, 2005. This increase is primarily attributed to the net result of the timing of the new bonds
issued during fiscal year 2006 within the Reserve Fund Resolution and the related construction funds that
have not been disbursed as of June 30, 2006.

The net change in fair value of investments in 2006 was a decrease of $5,907 in the Operating Fund
(consolidated) and a decrease of $610,189 in the Restricted and Trusteed Funds. The decreases experienced
during fiscal 2006 are the result of an improvement in the interest rate environment which resulted in a
decrease of the market value of investments that were purchased in prior periods when interest rates were
lower. The Authority’s investment portfolio is comprised of cash and cash equivalents, U.S. Government
obligations (including treasury bills, notes, and bonds), U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises and
guaranteed investment contracts. All investments are carried at fair value, and unrealized gains and losses
(primarily due to fluctuations in market values) are recognized in the statements of operations and changes in
fund balance and funds held in trust. The maturities of investments held in the Restricted and Trusteed Funds
are scheduled to match debt service payments and anticipated cash flows for construction draws and are
normally held to maturity.

Income from investments in 2006 increased 67.1% in the Operating Fund (consolidated) and increased 49.2%
in the Restricted and Trusteed Funds from 2005. The increase in the Operating Fund was the result of an
increase in average investment balances over fiscal 2005 and an improved short-term interest rate
environment during fiscal 2006. The increase in the Restricted and Trusteed Funds was primarily the result of
the investment of the proceeds from the several bond issues sold in fiscal year 2006, thereby increasing
average investment balances over fiscal 2005. The improving short-term interest rate environment was also a
contributing factor.



Bond and note proceeds for 2006 in the Restricted and Trusteed Funds increased 460.4% from 2005 as a
result of an increase in loan requests from the borrowers, which resulted in the bond issues described above.
This also increased loans receivable from institutions and gross bonds outstanding in the Restricted and
Trusteed Funds at June 30, 2006 as compared to June 30, 2005. Received and receivable from institutions
increased 6.4% which is the net effect of scheduled principal payments, refundings and refinancings that
occurred in 2006 and payments required on new issues. Principal payments increased 14.2% from 2005 in
the Restricted and Trusteed Funds due primarily to an increase in scheduled principal payments required from
institutions during 2006.

Received and receivable from operating fund in the Restricted and Trusteed Funds for fiscal year 2006
increased $1,241,998 or 409.1% over fiscal year 2005 as a result of the combination of an increase in the
variable rate on the debt outstanding in the Taxable II resolution and the operating fund providing additional
funds to the Taxable II resolution that were used to make a larger principal payment in fiscal year 2006.

Premium on sale of bonds in the Restricted and Trusteed Funds for fiscal year 2006 increased $5,919,344
over fiscal year 2005. The amount for fiscal year 2006 is premium received from the several bond issues that
were sold during the fiscal year. There were no premiums on sale of bonds during fiscal 2005.

Bond issuance costs for fiscal year 2006 increased $2,173,808 or 245.2% over fiscal year 2005 as a result of
the number of new series of bonds and the amount of bonds sold in 2006. The proceeds of some of the bonds
sold in fiscal year 2006 were used to refund prior bonds outstanding. These proceeds were used to fund
refunding & refinancing escrows that will make the future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. As a
result of these refundings in fiscal year 2006, paid to refunding & refinancing escrows increased $53,233,926
or 174.2% from 2005.

Construction and program costs for fiscal year 2006 increased $37,468,754 or 105.8% over 2005. These
costs represent payment of the construction and program costs for which the bonds were sold. The increase in
2006 costs reflects the increased number of bonds sold in 2006.

The Authority shares office space and staff with the Maine Municipal Bond Bank. The Authority reimburses
the Maine Municipal Bond Bank for its proportionate share of personnel services, employee benefits, office
space, equipment rental and other miscellaneous costs.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s financial statements for all
those with an interest in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or

request for additional information should be addressed to the Executive Director, Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority, P.O. Box 2268, Augusta, ME 04338-2268.
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MAINE HEALTH AND HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET — OPERATING FUND

June 30, 2006

ASSETS
Portland
Center
Authority’s  For Assisted Consolidated
Operating Living Operating
Fund (Note 9) Eliminations Fund
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (note 3) $ 10355347 § 379,236 $ - $ 10,734,583
Investments, at fair value (note 3) 12,428,467 - - 12,428,467
Accrued investment income 16,478 - - 16,478
Fees and other amounts receivable from

trusteed funds 1,614,912 - - 1,614,912
Resident accounts receivable, net

of allowance of $19,000 - 328,437 - 328,437
Other assets - 80.095 - 80.095

Total current assets 24,415,204 787,768 - 25,202,972

Long-term assets:

Notes, advances and other receivables

from institutions, net of allowance

of $2,050,270 (note 8) 13,998,399 - (6,896,516) 7,101,883
Assets whose use is limited - 705,730 - 705,730
Fixed and other assets, net - 3,378,900 - 3,378,900
Deferred financing costs, net - 132,330 - 132,330

Total long-term assets 13,998,399 4,216,960 (6,896,516) 11,318,843

$.38,413,603 $_5.004,728 $(6.,896,516) $.36,521.815
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LIABILITIES AND FUND BAL ANCE

Current liabilities:
Current portion of loan payable
to trusteed funds
Accounts payable
Estimated third-party payor settlements
Accrued payroll and other expenses
Resident funds held in trust
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities:
Loan payable to trusteed funds
Other amounts due to trusteed funds
Advances due to Authority’s operating fund
Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Common stock, no par value; authorized 10,000

shares, issued and outstanding 200 shares
Fund balance (deficit)

See accompanying notes.

Portland
Center
Authority’s  For Assisted Consolidated
Operating Living Operating
Fund (Note 9) Eliminations